{2 ) San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
) Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
2850 Via Orange Way, Spring Valley, CA 91978

AGENDA Wednesday, September 25, 2024 - 5:30 p.m.

MEETINGS - The Board meets regularly on the second Wednesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. The District reserves
the 4 Wednesday of each month for an additional Regular Meeting if needed. Special and Emergency meetings
may be scheduled as needed, and cancelled meetings will be noticed by posting on the District website.

AGENDA - Agenda items shall be addressed in the published order unless a member of the Board or a member of
the public requests a specific item to be taken out of order, and the Board agrees to do so.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (US CODE TITLE 42) - If you need
accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call or email and Board Clerk Shayna Rians will coordinate
arrangements: (619) 670-0500 or info@sanmiguelfire.org

PUBLIC COMMENT - The public may attend meetings in person, complete a speaker slip, and bring an item not on
the agenda forward; however, the Board will not be able to take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, the item will
be referred to the Board and/or Fire Chief to determine if the item will be placed on a future Board agenda. The
Board may not discuss items from Board members or Staff, but, if appropriate, will be placed on a future Board
agenda. A three (3) minute period shall be allotted to each person addressing the Board to facilitate business
proceedings.

MEETING MATERIALS (GOVERNMENT CODE §54957.5 AND AB 2647) - Documents provided to members of
a Brown Act body in the 72 hours before a meeting (i.e., after the agenda is typically posted) are available to the
public at the same time they are provided to the board members. The agenda and supporting documents are
available online at https://www.sanmiguelfire.org/board-meetings

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
APPROVAL OF AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT

1. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
1.1 Approval of the Minutes Regular Meeting of August 14, 2024.
1.2 Approval of Board Member Stipends.

2. INFORMATIONAL AGENDA ITEMS
2.1 Facilities Updates — Division Chief Riley will provide an update to the Board.
2.2 Quarterly Financial Update - Administrative Officer/Finance Officer Harris will provide an update to the Board.

3. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS
3.1 Ordinance 24-05 - The Board of Directors will conduct the Second Reading and may consider adopting
Ordinance 24-05 (CFD 2022-1 Annexation 5, APN 503-261-07-00).


mailto:info@sanmiguelfire.org
https://www.sanmiguelfire.org/board-meetings
https://www.sanmiguelfire.org/board-meetings

3.2 Ordinance 24-06 — The Board of Directors will conduct the Second Reading and may consider adopting
Ordinance 24-06 (CFD 2022-1 Annexation 6, APN 387-142-36-00).

3.3 Resolution 24-44 — The Board of Directors will consider adopting Resolution 24-44, approving the procurement
process for purchasing equipment and service from Cradlepoint and NetCloud.

3.4 Public Hearing — 2024/2025 Fiscal Year Final Budget — Staff will make a presentation of the Final Budget, and
the Board of Directors will conduct a public hearing and may adopt the 2024/2025 Fiscal Year Final Budget via
Resolution 24-45.

3.5 Station 21 Retaining Wall — The Board of Directors may take action based on a recommendation to award the
contract for retaining wall repair at Station 21.

3.6 Committee Intent Policies — The Board will consider approving additions to the Board Policy Manual.

4. REPORTS

4.1 Committee Reports

4.2 Directors’ Reports

4.3 Fire Chief Report

4.4 Association of San Miguel Chief Officers Communications
4.5 Association of San Miguel Firefighters Communications
4.6 Correspondence

5. CLOSED SESSION
5.1 Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)

Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Employee Organization: Association of San Miguel Firefighters IAFF Local 1434

5.2 Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)
Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Employee Organization: Chief Officer's Association of San Miguel

5.3 Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)
Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Unrepresented Employees: Division Chief, Fire Marshal, Administrative Officer/Finance Officer,

Administrative Analyst, Human Resources Specialist, Accounting
Specialist, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk, Fire Inspector(s), Fire
Services Officer

ACTION PLAN RECAP

NEXT MEETING - Regular Meeting, October 9, 2024, 5:30 p.m., District Headquarters

ADJOURNMENT CERTIFICATION OF POSTING | certify that on September 20, 2024, a copy of the foregoing agenda

was posted on the District's website and near the meeting place of the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District, said time being at least 72 hours in advance of the Board of Directors
meeting (Government Code §54954.2). Executed at Spring Valley, California on September 20, 2024

W pm Shayna Rians, Board Clerk

SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 BOARD MEETING AGENDA - PAGE 2



AGENDAITEM 1.1

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

MINUTES Wednesday, August 14, 2024 - 5:30 p.m.

President Robles called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles, and Woodruff
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT None

STAFF PRESENT Fire Chief Lawler, Division Chiefs Durrell and Riley, Battalion Chief
Christiansen, Administrative Officer/Finance Officer Harris, Fire Marshal
Newman, and Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Rians.

Director Nelson led the Pledge of Allegiance

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
By Board Consensus, the agenda was approved.

The Agenda for the Regular Meeting of August 14, 2024, was posted at District Headquarters on Friday,
August 9, 2024, at 5:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT
None.

SPECIAL PRESENTATION
Firefighter Paramedic Arteaga presented a PowerPoint about USAR (Urban Search and Rescue), and had his
K9, Sid, perform a demonstration.

Meeting attendees went outside for the K9 demonstration, with the meeting taking an intermission from 5:52 — 5:59 p.m.

1. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
Upon a motion by Director Pierce, second by Director Raddatz, and vote (unanimously in favor), the Consent
Agenda was approved.

1.1 Approval of the Minutes — Regular Meeting of July 24, 2024.

1.2 Approval of Board Member Stipends.

1.3 Receive and File Quarterly Investment Report in Accordance with California Government Code.

1.4 Review the credit card expenditures of the Fire Chief and Administrative Officer/Finance Officer.

2. INFORMATIONAL AGENDA ITEMS
2.1 Division Chief Riley provided a facilities update to the Board.
2.2 Battalion Chief Christiansen provided a Training Division update to the Board.



3.1

ACTION AGENDA ITEMS

Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 24-04 (Annexation 4).

Upon a motion by Director McKenna, second by Director Nelson, and vote (unanimously in favor), the
second reading of Ordinance 24-04 was waived, and Ordinance 24-04 was introduced by title only.
Upon a motion by Director Nelson, second by Director Raddatz, and vote (unanimously in favor),
Ordinance 24-04 was adopted.

Committee Intent Policies — The Board will consider approving additions to the Board Policy Manual.
There was discussion regarding ERAF and verbiage contained in some of the draft policies, resulting in
the Committee Intent Policies being tabled and set for discussion and possible vote at the next meeting.

REPORTS

Committee Reports

Director Raddatz shared that the Finance Committee will meet at the end of the month.

Director Woodruff commended the Chief and staff on reports and being updated on matters in the District.
Director Muns attended the Heartland Communications Commission meeting, sharing that multiple
personnel have been acknowledged for their work, and noted that an emergency need arose to replace the
power backup system.

4.2 Directors Reports

Director Raddatz requested that handouts/presentations to the Board be saved somewhere for Directors to
access.

Director Muns spoke regarding the Anita Fire and commended the suppression response, also noting a
smooth activation of the Genesis Protect program.

Director McKenna commended Chief Lawler for his proactive work building relationships, securing funds,
and leading the District. She also congratulated the four Directors who submitted their re-election paperwork
unopposed.

Director Robles acknowledged Chief Lawler’s attendance at the Spring Valley Community Planning Group
meeting, and said the community appreciated him keeping them informed.

4.3 Fire Chief Report

See Attachment A

4.4 Association of San Miguel Chief Officers Communications

4.5

4.6

5.
5.1

5.2

Battalion Chief Christiansen shared that Engineer Delgadillo has completed CalJAC training and is now a
journeyman Engineer.

Association of San Miguel Firefighters Communications

None.

Correspondence

Chief Lawler shared an email received from a resident thanking suppression personnel for their quick work
to stop the recent Anita Fire.

CLOSED SESSION

Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)

Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Employee Organization: Association of San Miguel Firefighters IAFF Local 1434
Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)

Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Employee Organization: Chief Officer's Association of San Miguel

AUGUST 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING MINUTES - PAGE 2



5.3 Conference with Labor Negotiator (GOV §54957.6)
Agency Negotiators: Directors McKenna, Muns, Robles, and Attorney Joseph Sanchez
Unrepresented Employees: Division Chief, Fire Marshal, Administrative Officer/Finance Officer,

Administrative Analyst, Human Resources Specialist, Accounting
Specialist, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk, Fire Inspector(s), Fire
Services Officer

President Robles adjourned the meeting to Closed Session from 7:22 p.m. to 8:08 p.m.

ACTION PLAN RECAP

Committee Intent Policies to be added as an Action ltem on the next meeting agenda.

Chief Lawler to research any updates related to the Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund
(“ERAF”) discussions and any committee work being completed.

Board Clerk Rians to establish a SharePoint folder for Directors to access handouts and presentations
Board Clerk Rians to schedule public notice to be published announcing Ordinance 24-04 adoption.
Chief Lawler and Board President to draft a “Proof of Funds” letter for potential purchase of property
for permanent Station 19.

Chief Lawler to contact Rojas Public Affairs to see what outreach was completed on the District’s
behalf.

The next Board Meeting will be a Regular Meeting on September 11, 2024, at 5:30 p.m., District
Headquarters.

President Robles adjourned the meeting at 8:10 pm.

Minutes approved at the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors, San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection
District, on September 25, 2024.

Attest:

Jesse A. Robles, Board President

Shayna Rians, Board Clerk

AUGUST 14, 2024 BOARD MEETING MINUTES - PAGE 3



AGENDA ITEM 1.2

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT
DATE: September 25, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Shayna Rians, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

SUBJECT: Board Member Stipends

BACKGROUND

Effective January 1, 2015, a formal payment procedure was established to pay board members their monthly
meeting stipends. To initiate the payment process, a stipend form for board meetings, training, and local
meetings/events will be submitted.

DISCUSSION
Meetings attended during the month of August 2024 include:
Meeting Date Attended By
Board 08/14/2024 | McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
CSDA Quarterly 08/15/2024 | Woodruff
Finance Committee 08/29/2024 | Nelson, Raddatz and Robles

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the attached stipend forms for meetings that took place during the month of August 2024.




Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form
August 2024

Theresa McKenna

Month/Year:

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25 X
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $0.00
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $0.00
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $0.00

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form
August 2024

Harry Muns

Month/Year:

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25 X
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $0.00
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $0.00
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $0.00

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form

Jeff Nelson

Month/Year:

August 2024

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25
08/29/24 |Special Finance Committee Meeting $100.00
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $273.25
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $273.25
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $273.25

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form

Christopher Pierce

Month/Year:

August 2024

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $173.25
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $173.25
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $173.25

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form

Kim Raddatz

Month/Year:

August 2024

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25
08/29/24 |Special Finance Committee Meeting $100.00
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $273.25
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $273.25
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $273.25

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form

Jesse A. Robles

Month/Year:

August 2024

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25
08/29/24 |Special Finance Committee Meeting $100.00
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $273.25
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $273.25
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $273.25

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

Name:

San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Board Member Monthly Meeting Stipend Form

Ed Woodruff

Month/Year:

August 2024

Section | - Board/Committee Meetings

Check box (x)
if you do not

Meeting
Stipend w.ant t_° be
Date Board/Committee Meeting Attended $173.25 paid Stipend
08/14/24 |Regular Board Meeting $173.25
08/15/24 |CSDA San Diego Chapter Quarterly Meeting $100.00
TOTAL MEETING STIPEND $273.25
Section Il - Training and Local Meetings/Events
Mileage
Date Training/Local Meeting Attended Days (0.56 / Mile) Amount
TOTAL MILES 0 $0.00
Section lll - Expense Claim Summary (Expense Report Form must be attached)
Date Description Amount
Section IV - Summary
Total Stipend Paid: $273.25
Signature: Totel Expense Claim: $0.00
Total Mileage: $0.00
Date: Total Amount Due: $273.25

Approved at Board Meeting on:

9/25/2024

MAXIMUM OF 4 MEETINGS PAID PER MONTH

Forms are due the 1st of each month
Please submit to Shayna Rians

srians@sanmiguelfire.org



mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org
mailto:srians@sanmiguelfire.org

FIRE & RESCUE

Quarterly Financial Update
For the Period Ending
June 30, 2024

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors
June 12, 2024



Executive Summary
San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Financial Strategies & Looking Ahead

The District presents the financials for the period ended June 30, 2024, on a cash-only basis
and does not include audit adjustments. The preliminary budget was approved in June 2024,
with the final budget being presented on September 25, 2024. The financial performance for the
Year to Date (YTD) presents a mixed outcome, with several line items trending over budget
while others remained on track or under.

CalPERS finalized the health insurance premiums, which are rising due to health care costs
increasing nationwide. CalPERS reported a preliminary net return of 9.3% on its investments
for the 12 months ending June 30, 2024. The District continues to look at strategies for
addressing rising pension costs. Executive Staff will meet with a Financial consultant later in
September and bring additional information to the Board of Directors on strategies for stabilizing
liability costs and capital needs, along with reviewing financial forecasting. We are requesting
that the Finance Committee be involved with this discussion, along with Employee Associations
and members of the community. A collaborative approach to reviewing many aspects of
sustainability is important for moving the District forward with service level changes and external
challenges we are currently seeing. All information will be presented to the Board of Directors in
a workshop after the initial information has been compiled.

The Board of Directors gave Staff approval to move forward with some investment strategies,
looking at short-term investments and, in the future, long-term investments. California
Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CLASS) is a Joint Powers Authority investment
pool that provides public agencies the opportunity to invest funds on a cooperative basis in
rated pools that are managed in accordance with state law with the primary objectives of
offering participants safety, daily and next-day liquidity, and optimized returns. This strategy has
been determined successful for Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Delays in equipment continue to impact day-to-day operations. The Board of Directors
approved fleet purchases in the preliminary budget that were off schedule due to significant
delays in apparatus delivery.

The District’s financial position remains stable despite variances across multiple revenue and
expense categories. The organization has maintained a positive balance, primarily due to
conservative budgeting and unanticipated revenue inflows.

The District looks forward to continually providing Service Beyond Expectations for everyone
impacted by our services.

Seak Harsis

Administrative Officer/Finance Officer

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 1 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



San Miguel Fire & Rescue

FIRE. & RESCUFE Statement of Revenues and Expenses

= wwN -

For the Period Ending June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)
YTD Budget YTD % Prior YTD

Operating Revenues $ 30,022,751 $§ 28,130,200 107% $ 28,230,332
Non-Operating Revenues 2,689,451 1,371,000 196% 2,011,576
Total Revenues 32,712,202 29,501,200 1M11% 30,241,908
Total Expenses (26,854,670) (27,330,090) 98% (24,823,043)
Net Income Before

Reserve Related Activities $ 5857532 $ 2,171,110 $ 5,418,865
Total Reserve Revenues 1,887,877 - - 710,478
Total Reserve Expenditures (4,615,940) (5,264,000) 88% (3,277,225)
Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 3129470 $  (3,092,890) $ 2852118
Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.
Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not
included.

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 2 Quarterly Financial Update

Period Ended June 30, 2024



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Detail Statement of Revenues and Expenses
For the Period Ending June 30, 2024

FIRE & RESCUFE

(Unaudited)
YTD Budget YTD 100% Prior YTD

1 Operating Revenues
2 Property Taxes $ 27,059,534 § 25,198,200 107% $ 25,415,295
3 Benefit Assessments 2,963,217 2,932,000 101% 2,815,037
4 Total Operating Revenues 30,022,751 28,130,200 107% 28,230,332
5 Non-Operating Revenues
6 Community Facilities District Fees 53,190 - 0% 11,572
7 AMR Contract 884,835 852,000 104% 852,442
8 OES Reimbursements 680,514 - 0% 215,247
9 Other Miscellaneous 875,012 509,000 172% 834,983
10 Interest Income 195,900 10,000 1959% 97,332
" Total Non-Operating Revenues 2,689,451 1,371,000 196% 2,011,576
12 Total Revenues 32,712,202 29,501,200 111% 30,241,908
13 Operating Expenses
14 Salaries and Benefits
15 Director Fees 13,575 20,000 68% 15,142
16 Prior Director Benefits 25,697 24,000 107% 25,862
17 Retiree Benefits 1,085,638 1,503,100 2% 916,354
18 Employee Salaries 9,490,628 9,905,970 96% 10,104,599
19 Employee Overtime 3,252,472 2,736,100 119% 3,112,270
20 Employee Benefits 3,259,938 3,507,600 93% 4,223,430
21 Financial Emergency Plan - 332,500 0% -
22 UAL - Pension Payment 1,159,708 1,420,000 82% 1,417,754
23 Pension Bond 1,179,211 1,260,700 94% (77,056)
24 Pension Savings Reserve 1,339,300 1,339,300 100% -
25 Total Salaries and Benefits 20,806,168 22,049,270 94% 19,738,405
26 Services and Supplies
27 Professional Services 2,445,951 2,098,100 17% 1,686,891
28 Special District Expense 428,437 285,950 150% 336,953
29 Maintenance 921,306 655,750 140% 788,752
30 Insurance 975,070 907,260 107% 984,855
31 Equipment 602,036 698,300 86% 583,698
32 Utilities 475,896 404,700 118% 469,989
33 Supplies 101,166 90,560 112% 101,082
34 Personnel Development 57,737 95,800 60% 88,747
35 Rents and Leases 40,903 44,400 92% 43,670
36 Total Service and Supplies 6,048,502 5,280,820 115% 5,084,638
37 Total Expenses 26,854,670 27,330,090 98% 24,823,043

Net Income Before
38 Reserve Related Activities $ 5857532 $ 2,171,110 $ 5,418,865
39 Fire Mitigation Revenue $ 366,686 $ - 0% $ 259,217
40 Miscellaneous Reserve Revenue 618,000 - 0% 103,120
4 Interest Reserve Revenue 903,192 - 0% 348,142
42 Total Reserve Revenues 1,887,877 - 0% 70,478
43 Total Reserve Expenditures 4,615,940 5,264,000 88% 3,271,225
44 Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 3,129,470 $ (3,092,890) $ 2,852,118

*YTD - Year to Date
Preliminary - does not ii all year end adji
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.
Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included.

1,

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 3 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE
Financial Statement Analysis
June 2024 — 100% of Fiscal Year

Unaudited

Line 2 Property Taxes: YTD (Year to date) ended over budget — the majority of property taxes are received in
December and April, and as such, this line item can appear high or low depending upon time of the year.

Line 3 Benefit Assessments Revenue: YTD ended over budget — the majority of assessments are received in
April, and as such, this line item can appear high or low depending upon the time of the year.

Line 6 Community Facilities District Fees: Includes community facilities district fee revenues. This line item
was not budgeted.

Line 7 AMR Contract: Includes AMR contract revenues. YTD will trend over or under budget depending upon
the timing of receipts. YTD ended over budget mainly due to more first responder fees received than anticipated.

Line 8 OES Reimbursements: Includes reimbursements from the California Governor’s Office of Emergency
Services (OES) for personnel and administrative time related to state-wide emergency services. This line item
was not budgeted.

Line 9 Other Miscellaneous Revenue: Includes plan check fees, inspection fees, rental fees of various
facilities, and miscellaneous reimbursements. YTD will trend over or under budget depending upon the timing of
receipts, and if unanticipated reimbursements are received.

Line 10 Interest Income: Consists of County Investment Pool, the Public Agency Self Insurance System
(PASIS), and the California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CA CLASS). YTD ended over budget
due to conservative budgeting and favorable interest rates.

Line 15 Director Fees: Includes director fees for committee and board meetings. YTD ended at 68% of budget
due to less meetings needed in the fiscal year.

Line 16 Prior Director Benefits: Includes prior Board of Directors health benefits. Premiums are paid in
advance; therefore, YTD ended over budget before year-end audit adjustments. YTD ended over budget due to
increased benefit fees not being calculated.

Line 17 Retiree Benefits: Includes Retiree health benefits. Due to conservative budgeting, YTD ended at 72%
of the budget. This was adjusted for the current year.

Line 18 Employee Salaries: Includes salaries and leave pay for all staff. YTD ended at 96% of budget.

Line 19 Employee Overtime: Includes operations, training, administration overtime, and strike teams. YTD
ended over budget due to strike teams in the first quarter of the fiscal year and positional vacancies. Overtime
trends high due to OES reimbursements not offsetting the expense. Refer to the Overtime Analysis for more
detailed information.

Line 20 Employee Benefits: Includes retirement, health insurance, uniform allowance, and recertification. YTD
ended at 93% of budget due to positional vacancies and conservative budgeting for health insurance.

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 4 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



Line 21 Financial Emergency Plan: Salaries and benefits line item based on Emergency Financial Plan
budgeting of 2% as outlined in the Board of Directors Policy Manual Section 823.3 Contingency Reserve Fund
(A Committed Fund). This line item is not authorized to be spent without authorization of the BOD and is a
safeguard in the budget for the stabilization of the Contingency Fund.

Line 22 UAL — Pension Payment: It is the employer’'s normal cost rate (expressed as a percentage of payroll)
plus the employer’'s Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) contribution amount. Payment is made annually in July.
YTD ended at 82% of the budget due to conservative budgeting.

Line 23 Pension Bond: Consists of payments for the pension bond that were issued in June 2022. Semi-annual
payments are made in December and June. YTD ended at 94% of budget before year-end interest accruals.

Line 24 Pension Savings Reserve: Consists of the savings from what the UAL payment would have been to
the what the pension payment is.

Line 27 Professional Services: Includes financial audits, dispatching services, and apparatus contracts. YTD
ended over budget due to needs and timing of services required. Dispatching services costs increased due to a
billing error from the dispatch center and billing the District late from the previous fiscal year. The expenses show
five (5) payments instead of four (4).

Line 28 Special District Expense: Includes publications and media, special district memberships, election
costs, software upgrades and weed abatement services. YTD ended over budget due to more employee travel
and grant expenses than expected.

Line 29 Maintenance: Includes all equipment and facility maintenance. YTD ended over budget due to several
costly facilities and fleet repairs.

Line 30 Insurance: Includes general liability insurance, automobile/fleet insurance and workers compensation
claims. Annual payments are made in July for liability and auto insurance, while workers compensation is a
monthly payment based on open claims. YTD ended over budget due to higher workers’ compensation claims
than anticipated.

Line 31 Equipment: Includes communication equipment, safety clothing, safety equipment and miscellaneous
equipment purchased on an as-needed-basis. YTD ended at 86% of budget due to expenses being on an as
needed basis.

Line 32 Utilities: Includes all utilities associated with all Fire & Rescue facilities. YTD ended over budget due to
the rising cost of utilities.

Line 33 Supplies: Includes office, housekeeping and medical supplies for all stations and the administration
building, which are purchased on a monthly basis. YTD ended over budget due to the rising cost of medical
supplies.

Line 34 Personnel Development: Includes all training, conferences, and seminars for all departments. YTD will
trend over or under budget depending upon timing of trainings. YTD ended at 60% of budget due to less training
and conferences attended than expected.

Line 35 Rents and Leases: Includes the lease of Station 19 and the copy machine in the administration building.
YTD ended at 92% of budget due to timing of year-end accruals.

Line 38 Net Income before Reserve Related Activities: This is Revenues minus Expenses. Overall, Fire and
Rescue is showing a net gain through June mainly as a result of more property tax and non-operating revenues
received than expected.

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 5 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



Line 39 Fire Mitigation Revenue: Includes fire mitigation revenues in the reserve fund. This revenue is not
budgeted for as it is variable each year and cannot be anticipated.

Line 40 Miscellaneous Reserve Revenue: Includes reimbursements recorded for the use of the fire engines
on strike teams and fair share contributions on an as-needed basis.

Line 41 Interest Reserve Revenue: Mostly consists of California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System
(CLASS), County Investment Pool, and the Public Agency Self Insurance System (PASIS) related to reserve
fund investments.

Line 43 Total Reserve Expenditures: This account is for Capital Expenditures from Reserve Funds. These
funds are used towards replacement cycles on an as-needed basis. The district’s current fiscal year budgeted
projects were upgraded IT equipment for the board and conference room, apparatus and equipment for the
new Type 1 engine, a new emergency response vehicle, Type 1 engine refurbishment, cardiac monitors, along
with various upgrades and renovations through the district.

Line 44 Increase or (Decrease) in Fund Balance: This is the increase or (decrease) to Fund Balance, including
Operating and Reserve Fund changes.

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 6 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



. San Miguel Fire and Rescue

FIRE ﬂ:.Ri:]S(:[,'E Cash & Investments

As of June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)

District Cash & Investments
Unrestricted

Cash in County - General Fund $ 9,657,901 $§ 10,043,483
Cash in CB&T - Accounts Payable 1,084,144 267,917
Cash in CB&T - Pub Ed Sponsorships 1,352 1,352
Cash in CB&T - CERT Grant 9,669 9,670
Cash in CB&T - Public Funds 3,752 3,505
Cashin CB&T - Worker's Compensation 45,050 150,276
Cash in CB&T - Payroll 750,610 736,784
Total Unrestricted 11,552,471 11,212,988
Restricted
CA CLASS - Contingency Fund - 10,895,972
CA CLASS - District Liabilities Fund - 1,555,237
CA CLASS - Compensated Absences Fund - 1,052,731
Cash in County - Fixed Equipment Replacement Fund 1,261,017 1,293,512
Cash in County - Contingency Reserve Fund 8,868,965 207,831
Cashin County - Uncompensated Leave Fund 1,051,715 11,153
Cash in County - Capital Equipment Fund 510,529 805,326
Cash in County - Facilities Replace/Renovate Fund 3,187,365 4,155,314
Cash in County - Vehicle Replacement Fund 3,209,791 2,888,672
Cash in County - Workers' Compensation Reserves 515,092 532,969
Cash in County - Fire Mitigation Fee Fund 265,444 699,648
PASIS Deposit 561,841 544,421
Total Restricted 19,431,760 24,642,785

Total District Cash & Investments $ 30,984,237 $ 35,855,772

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 7 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



FIRE & RESCUE

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Balance Sheet

For the Period Ending June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)
Jun-23 Jun-24

Assets

Cashin County - General 9,658,001 10,043,583

Cashin County - Fund Reserves 18,604,475 23,398,716

Fire Mitigation Fund 265,444 699,648

Restricted Cash and Investments 561,841 544,421

Cashin CB&T 1,894,577 1,178,416

Accounts Receivable 971,038 387,077

Fixed Assets 15,593,615 15,593,615
Total Assets 47,548,989 51,845,474
Liability

Current Liabilities 29,039,822 28,958,311

Net Pension Liability 30,031,222 41,576,272

Deferred Revenue - 13

Accounts Payable 1,268,572 1,140,058
Total Liability 60,339,615 71,674,654
Fund Balance (12,790,626) (19,829,180)
Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 47548989 $ 51,845,474

Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States are not included,

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 8 Quarterly Financial Update

Period Ended June 30, 2024



$24,000,000
$22,000,000
$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
S-

$24,000,000
$22,000,000
$20,000,000
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2,000,000
S-

San Miguel Fire & Rescue

Cash And Investments
$23,398,716

$18,604,475
$9,658,001 $10,043,583
l l $265'444 $699'648
Pe—— Pe— Pe— Pe— ————4 :

Cash in County - General Cash in County - Fund Reserves

¥ Jun-23 K Jun-24

Cash And Investments By Month

Sep-23 Dec-23

Cash in County - General =& Cash in County - Fund Reserves

Fire Mitigation Fund

Mar-24

Fire Mitigation Fund

Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



Revenues
,000, 7,059,534
T g $25,198,200  $25,415,295
$24,000,000
$20,000,000
$16,000,000 o YTD
$12,000,000 oy
,000, $1,371,000 i Prior YTD
$8,000,000 $2,932,000
$2,963,217 $2,689,451 $2,011,576
$4,000,000
$-
Property Taxes Benefit Assessments Total Non-Operating Revenues J
i b
Expenses
$25,000,000
$22,049,270
$20,000,000 T 19,738,405
$15,000,000
D YTD
1 Budget
$10,000,000 @ Prior YTD
$5,000,000
$-
TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS COSTS TOTAL SERVICE AND SUPPLIES
A 4
San Miguel Fire & Rescue 10 Quarterly Financial Update

Period Ended June 30, 2024



Personnel Costs

$24,000,000
$22,000,000

$20,000,000 —
$18,000,000
$16,000,000
$14,000,000
$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000 |
$2,000,000 -- Tr—

s$-

Employee Salaries Employee Overtime Employee Benefits |  Total Salaries and Benefits Costs
$9,490,628 $3,252,472 $6,938,157 $20,806,168
X Budget | $9,905,970 ' $2,736,100 $7,527,600 $22,049,270
Prior YTD $10,104,599 | $3,112,270 5 $5,564,177 ' $19,738,405

Interest Earned YTD
CA CLASS

$500,000

$450,000

$37,124

$55,237

$400,000
$350,000

$300,000

Compensated Absences

$250,000 B .
K District Liabilities

$200,000 X Contingency
$350,972

$150,000
$100,000

$50,000

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 11 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Benefit Assessment
Statement of Revenues and Expenses

(Unaudited)
Jun-24 Jun-23

Operating Revenues
Benefit Assessment - Crest $ 60,396 $ 59,794
Benefit Assessment - Bostonia 330,595 303,223
Benefit Assessment - Paramedic (ECO) 492,991 452,702
Parcel Tax (ECO) 2,079,235 1,999,317

Total Operating Revenues 2,963,217 2,815,037
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits Costs
Director Fees 3,394 3,785
Director Benefits 6,424 425
Employee Salaries 3,152,913 2,966,982
Employee Benefits 1,078,488 1,573,333
Total Salaries and Benefits Costs 4,241,219 4,550,935
Services and Supplies
Professional Services 192,728 214,876
Special District Expense 45,396 42,872
Maintenance 173,647 180,926
Insurance 243,768 246,214
Equipment 130,897 61,083
Utilities 93,891 89,014
Supplies 25,292 26,572
Personnel Development 14,434 22,320
Rents and Leases 35,141 37,139
Total Service and Supplies 955,194 921,016

Total Expenses 5,196,414 5,471,951
Net Income/ (Loss) Before

Reserve Related Activities $ (2,233197) $ (2,656,915)
Station 18 Renovation $ 352618 $ -
Net Income/ (Loss) After

Reserve Related Activities $ (2,585,815) $ (2,656,915)

Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments

No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.
Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States are not included.

San Miguel Fire & Rescue 12 Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



P San Miguel Fire & Rescue
FIRE & RESCURE Fire Prevention Revenue vs. Expense
FY 2022 through 2024 (Unaudited)

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024
1 Revenues:
2 Plans $ 19079540 $ 188,411.36 $  217,601.73
3 Inspections 110,830.68 112,492.93 100,900.48
4 Total Revenues 301,626.08 300,904.29 318,502.21
5 Expenses:
6 Salaries and Benefits
7  Fire Marshal
8 Salary 96,240.00 75,069.00 155,994.44
9 Benefits 80,409.00 63,000.00 44,496.23
10 Total Fire Marshal 176,649.00 138,069.00 200,490.67
11 Fire Inspector (2)
12 Salary 167,376.00 130,554.00 182,739.16
13 Benefits 144,946.00 113,613.00 54,241.79
14 Total Fire Inspector 312,322.00 244,167.00 236,980.95
15 Accounting Specialist (25%)
16 Salary 16,224.00 12,656.25 19,029.22
17 Benefits 15,077.50 11,620.69 7,055.38
18 Total Accounting Specialist 31,301.50 24,276.94 26,084.60
19  Administrative Assistant (25%)
20 Salary 15,009.00 13,950.00 21,240.64
21 Benefits 14,309.25 12,438.94 5,564.50
22  Total Administrative Asst. 29,318.25 26,388.94 26,805.14
23 Total Salaries and Benefits 549,590.75 432,901.88 490,361.36
24 Other Expenses
25 Minor Equipment 5,286.40 1,702.72 4,167.58
26 Office Supplies 597.82 1,524.17 954.35
27 Personnel Development 2,009.91 3,372.74 1,643.27
28 Publications and Media 687.51 5,570.79 -
29 Special District Expenses 25,857.25 27,306.45 9,609.10
30 Travel and Subsistence - 5.00 2,354.41
31 Vehicle 20,309.63 29,167.79 30,270.19
32 Utilities 1,073.24 670.11 -
33 Total Other Expenses 55,821.76 69,319.77 48,998.90
34  Total Expenses 605,412.51 502,221.65 539,360.26
35 Net Profit/ (Loss) $ (303,786.43) $ (201,317.36) $  (220,858.05)
36 Fire Mitigation Fees $ 17045162 $§ 385976.01 $§  366,685.62
San Miguel Fire & Rescue 13 Quarterly Financial Update

Period Ended June 30, 2024



July-23
August-23
September-23
October-23
November-23
December-23
January-24
February-24
March-24
April-24
May-24
June-24

Totals:

Percent of Total:

2023-24 Overtime Costs

San Miguel Fire & Rescue

0;2:::::: Oven:time: Overtime: Overtime: Overtim_e: ::::;?;er; l\(:::::tz:; U?:ilz:i‘lr"il:e Ox::::r: Over_tim?: Overtime: Overtime: Overti.me: Over_time: (?vertime: O‘F’::;il';e: Overti.rne: Overtime: Oveni!ne: 0v;nr’tliéne: Overtime: (\)A‘lls:tki;"r:': 3\‘1/:::::'. 0vertir_ne: g::::::ﬁ Total:
Light Duty Fire EMS Late Call Late Relief Hold Hold-Fire Bank - Backfill Fire | Bereavement | Jury Duty Meeting | Recruitment| Sick Leave Education Training | Up Staffing | Operations ey Vacancy Comp c(c:)c:’rr;;g Admin Instruction
12,883.20 18,640.37 0.00 77.99 754.35 8,095.25 1,403.76 0.00 109,208.01 13,564.70 0.00 0.00 802.52 0.00 30,719.01 0.00 1,212.84 0.00 1,730.50 0.00 34,467.90 24,345.30 0.00 906.11 0.00 $258,811.79
4,106.16 40,634.66 0.00 74.32 443.09 13,924.92 0.00 0.00 72,474.00 36,671.50 0.00 0.00 674.29 0.00 43,955.11 457.80 2,073.64 18,887.02 195.54 10,437.14 42,611.12 22,217.50 4,166.22 13,797.36 0.00 $327,801.36
0.00 110,295.38 731.19 99.18 1,138.44 9,972.11 8,751.63 0.00 84,601.26 30,241.10 0.00 1,247.76 50.45 457.80 38,610.74 0.00 4,640.70 1,459.92 1,361.92 935.84 43,749.60 15,743.69 1,013.81 103.98 0.00 $355,206.47
0.00 13,200.00 114.45 192.66 767.25 7,564.95 0.00 292.45 88,454.14 8,774.16 0.00 0.00 2,796.62 1,820.44 50,883.39 0.00 15,461.48 469.92 441.48 0.00 21,534.66 20,454.09 0.00 103.98 0.00 $233,326.12
0.00 27,180.36 210.59 435.22 437.11 2,468.64 2,776.08 600.00 64,788.09 12,620.35 0.00 228.90 732.35 0.00 54,104.16 121.66 12,171.88 0.00 6,458.95 0.00 8,833.92 16,119.95 0.00 0.00 $210,288.19
0.00 704.88 710.16 232.23 366.57 5,278.50 0.00 0.00 86,533.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 524.09 2,951.79 44,906.88 0.00 6,781.50 0.00 4,390.96 0.00 18,228.21 14,686.08 0.00 1,988.97 0.00 $188,284.19
0.00 309.73 289.62 949.36 266.64 1,401.00 0.00 0.00 72,421.20 1,276.56 5,960.64 0.00 362.05 0.00 44,364.05 219.36 6,802.75 0.00 421.92 0.00 27,114.27 18,264.36 0.00 1,291.23 0.00 $181,714.73
0.00 43,942.52 226.98 117.12 515.00 128.32 0.00 0.00 72,736.95 15,800.95 0.00 0 62.22 0.00 32,013.56 281.58 32,014.29 4,409.78 183.06 1,276.56 30,763.20 44,068.32 0.00 1,287.96 1,398.69 $281,227.05
7,940.16 0.00 814.05 54.84 455.88 3,940.32 0.00 0.00 58,498.89 0.00 4,318.92 0 1,597.89 1,151.79 35,557.71 609.09 24,880.36 0.00 3,129.84 0.00 33,461.08 21,350.40 0.00 1,145.22 3,699.34 $202,605.76
12,840.24 309.73 883.41 341.33 172.24 1,480.32 0.00 4,178.04 80,243.37 1,647.72 1,316.16 0 1,341.78 0.00 50,583.57 386.24 29,288.13 0.00 6,979.98 127.37 33,624.96 10,843.08 0.00 4,020.32 627.53 $241,235.50
7,745.04 0.00 295.44 162.93 436.75 7,394.54 0 0.00 61,238.37 0.00 3,897.84 0 375.04 415.39 45,642.54 1,251.23 43,076.55 0.00 3,441.95 11,870.55 44,507.37 19,391.76 0.00 120.60 0.00 $251,263.88
15,472.56 27,673.78 559.98 455.70 388.66 4,211.30 1316.16 0.00 74,387.63 9,114.62 2,581.68 0 621.48 0.00 51,157.81 246.78 24,214.21 0.00 8,167.33 4,868.25 45,360.80 13,555.80 0.00 2,018.01 229.29 $286,601.81
60,987.36 282,891.39 4,835.87 3,192.86 6,141.94 65,860.17 14,247.63 5,070.49( 925,585.27| 129,711.65 18,075.24 1,476.66 9,940.78 6,797.21( 522,498.52 3,573.74| 202,618.31 25,226.64 36,903.42 29,515.70| 384,257.08| 241,040.33 5,180.03 26,783.74 5,954.85| $3,018,366.83
2.02% 9.37% 0.16% 0.11% 0.20% 2.18% 0.47% 0.17% 30.67% 4.30% 0.60% 0.05% 0.33% 0.23% 17.31% 0.12% 6.71% 0.84% 1.22% 0.98% 12.73% 7.99% 0.17% 0.89% 0.20% 100.00%
Less OES Paid: (81,239)
Less OES Owed: (333,141)
Workers' Comp/Light Duty - |
Strike Teams/Overhead Assignments ** Note: FLSA OT paid (not included in total): Net Overtime Expense: 2,603,987
Operations April: $5,054.04 8 shifts
Training June: $3,475.68 2 shifts Percent of Budget 104.11% 120.67%
Leaves 2023-24 Budget 2,501,300 Not including OES
Percent of Fiscal Year-to-Date: 100.00%
San Miguel Fire & Rescue 14

Quarterly Financial Update
Period Ended June 30, 2024



AGENDA ITEMS 3.1 & 3.2

FIRE PREVENTION REPORT

DATE: September 25, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jon Newman, Fire Marshal

SUBJECT: CFD 2022-1, Finalize Annexations 5 and 6 via Ordinances 24-05 and 24-06

BACKGROUND

On September 14, 2022, the District received their first petition for a CFD and on October 12, 2022, approved
Ordinance 2022-2 Levying Special Taxes Within San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District.
Annexation 1 was approved May 10, 2023. Since then, qualifying projects have annexed into CFD 2022-1.

DISCUSSION

Resolutions 24-38 and 24-39, declaring intent to annex properties into CFD 2022-1 via Annexations 5 and 6,
were adopted at the regular meeting of the Board of Directors on July 24, 2024. Two public hearings and
elections occurred at the September 11, 2024, regular meeting (Resolutions 24-40, 24-41, 24-42, and 24-
43), with a first reading of Ordinances 24-05 and 24-06 occurring at that same meeting. Tonight's meeting of
September 25, 2024 presents the second and final reading of Ordinances 24-05 and 24-06, which finalizes
Annexations 5 and 6 once adopted.

FISCAL IMPACT
None, as the costs for the formation of CFD 2022-1 are paid through a deposit provided by the Developer
and ongoing administrative costs are paid for through the levy of special taxes within CFD 2022-1.

ATTACHMENTS
e Attachment A — Ordinance 24-05
e Attachment B — Ordinance 24-06

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Ordinances 24-05 and 24-06, which finalizes CFD 2022-1 Annexations 5 and 6.



ATTACHMENT A

Ordinance 24-05

Ordinance of the Board Of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Authorizing the Levy Of Special Taxes in a Community Facilities District,
Including Certain Annexation Territory Identified As Annexation 5
(APN 503-261-07-00), into San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Community Facilities District 2022-1

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection
District (the “District”) has established the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District,
Community Facilities District 2022-1, County of San Diego, State of California (“CFD 2022-1”) for
the purpose of levying special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of
providing certain services, which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the
District as a result of the development of said real property; and

WHEREAS, the rate and method of apportionment of special tax for CFD 2022-1 is set forth in
Exhibit “C” to the Board Resolution 24-38, which was adopted on July 24, 2024 (the “Resolution
of Intention”); and

WHEREAS, the District has conducted proceedings to annex territory into CFD 2022-1 and, with
respect to the proceedings, following an election of the qualified electors in the territory proposed
for annexation (the “Annexation 5”), the Board, on September 11, 2024, adopted a resolution
which declared the results of the special election and determined that the territory proposed to be
annexed is added to and part of CFD 2022-1.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District, California, acting in its capacity as the legislative body of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District, Community Facilities District 2022-1, County of San Diego,
State of California, does hereby:

Section 1.
The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2.

By the passage of this Ordinance, the Board hereby authorizes and levies the special tax
within CFD 2022-1, including the Annexation Territory, pursuant to Article 3.5
(commencing with Section 53339) of Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the
California Government Code, commonly known as the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982,” (the “Act”), at the rate and in accordance with the rate and method of
apportionment of special tax set forth in the Resolution of Intention, which rate and
method is by this reference incorporated herein. The special tax has previously been
levied in the original territory of CFD 2022-1 pursuant to Ordinance 2022-2 passed and



adopted by the Board on October 12, 2022, and the special tax is hereby levied
commencing in Fiscal Year 2024-25 in CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 5, and in each
fiscal year thereafter to pay for the services for CFD 2022-1 and the costs of administering
the District.

Section 3.

The Fire Chief of the District or designee or employee or consultant of the District is
hereby authorized and directed each fiscal year to determine the specific special tax to
be levied for the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within CFD 2022-
1, including Annexation 5, in the manner and as provided in the Resolution of Intention.

Section 4.

Exemptions from the levy of the special tax shall be as provided in the Resolution of
Intention and the applicable provisions of the Act. In no event shall the special tax be
levied on any parcel within CFD 2022-1 in excess of the maximum special tax specified
in the Resolution of Intention.

Section 5.

All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided in the Act and in the
Resolution of Intention, including, but not limited to, the payment of the costs of the
services, the payment of the costs of the District in administering CFD 2022-1, and the
costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Section 6.

The special tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary
ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to
the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided
for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that CFD 2022-1 may collect Special Taxes at
a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial obligations. The
Fire Chief of the District, or his or her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to
provide all necessary information to the auditor/tax collector of the County of San Diego
in order to effect proper billing and collection of the special tax, so that the special tax
shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the County of San Diego for Fiscal
Year 2024-25 and for each fiscal year thereafter until no longer required to pay for the
Services or until otherwise terminated by the District.

Section 7.

If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the special tax
is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 5,
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the application of
the special tax to the remaining parcels within CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 5, shall
not be affected.

Ordinance 24-05 - Page 2



Section 8.

This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its adoption. Within fifteen (15)
days after its adoption, the Board Clerk shall cause this Ordinance, or a summary of it, to
be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 25" day of September 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST

Shayna Rians, Board Clerk Jesse A. Robles, Board President

| hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular public meeting of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District Board, held on September 11, 2024, and was duly
adopted, passed, and ordered posted at an adjourned regular meeting of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District Board held on September 25, 2024.

Board Clerk
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Ordinance 24-05 - Page 3



ATTACHMENT B

Ordinance 24-06

Ordinance of the Board Of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Authorizing the Levy Of Special Taxes in a Community Facilities District,
Including Certain Annexation Territory Identified As Annexation 6
(APN 387-142-36-00), into San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Community Facilities District 2022-1

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection
District (the “District’) has established the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District,
Community Facilities District 2022-1, County of San Diego, State of California (“CFD 2022-1") for
the purpose of levying special taxes on parcels of taxable property therein for the purpose of
providing certain services, which are necessary to meet increased demands placed upon the
District as a result of the development of said real property; and

WHEREAS, the rate and method of apportionment of special tax for CFD 2022-1 is set forth in
Exhibit “C” to the Board Resolution 24-39, which was adopted on July 24, 2024 (the “Resolution
of Intention”); and

WHEREAS, the District has conducted proceedings to annex territory into CFD 2022-1 and, with
respect to the proceedings, following an election of the qualified electors in the territory proposed
for annexation (the “Annexation 6”), the Board, on September 11, 2024, adopted a resolution
which declared the results of the special election and determined that the territory proposed to be
annexed is added to and part of CFD 2022-1.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District, California, acting in its capacity as the legislative body of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District, Community Facilities District 2022-1, County of San Diego,
State of California, does hereby:

Section 1.
The foregoing recitals are true and correct.

Section 2.

By the passage of this Ordinance, the Board hereby authorizes and levies the special tax
within CFD 2022-1, including the Annexation Territory, pursuant to Article 3.5
(commencing with Section 53339) of Chapter 2.5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the
California Government Code, commonly known as the “Mello-Roos Community Facilities
Act of 1982,” (the “Act”), at the rate and in accordance with the rate and method of
apportionment of special tax set forth in the Resolution of Intention, which rate and
method is by this reference incorporated herein. The special tax has previously been
levied in the original territory of CFD 2022-1 pursuant to Ordinance 2022-2 passed and



adopted by the Board on October 12, 2022, and the special tax is hereby levied
commencing in Fiscal Year 2024-25 in CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 6, and in each
fiscal year thereafter to pay for the services for CFD 2022-1 and the costs of administering
the District.

Section 3.

The Fire Chief of the District or designee or employee or consultant of the District is
hereby authorized and directed each fiscal year to determine the specific special tax to
be levied for the next ensuing fiscal year for each parcel of real property within CFD 2022-
1, including Annexation 6, in the manner and as provided in the Resolution of Intention.

Section 4.

Exemptions from the levy of the special tax shall be as provided in the Resolution of
Intention and the applicable provisions of the Act. In no event shall the special tax be
levied on any parcel within CFD 2022-1 in excess of the maximum special tax specified
in the Resolution of Intention.

Section 5.

All of the collections of the special tax shall be used as provided in the Act and in the
Resolution of Intention, including, but not limited to, the payment of the costs of the
services, the payment of the costs of the District in administering CFD 2022-1, and the
costs of collecting and administering the special tax.

Section 6.

The special tax shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary
ad valorem taxes are collected and shall have the same lien priority, and be subject to
the same penalties and the same procedure and sale in cases of delinquency as provided
for ad valorem taxes; provided, however, that CFD 2022-1 may collect Special Taxes at
a different time or in a different manner if necessary to meet its financial obligations. The
Fire Chief of the District, or his or her designee, is hereby authorized and directed to
provide all necessary information to the auditor/tax collector of the County of San Diego
in order to effect proper billing and collection of the special tax, so that the special tax
shall be included on the secured property tax roll of the County of San Diego for Fiscal
Year 2024-25 and for each fiscal year thereafter until no longer required to pay for the
Services or until otherwise terminated by the District.

Section 7.

If for any reason any portion of this Ordinance is found to be invalid, or if the special tax
is found inapplicable to any particular parcel within CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 6,
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the balance of this Ordinance and the application of
the special tax to the remaining parcels within CFD 2022-1, including Annexation 6, shall
not be affected.

Ordinance 24-06 - Page 2



Section 8.

This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its adoption. Within fifteen (15)
days after its adoption, the Board Clerk shall cause this Ordinance, or a summary of it, to
be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 25" day of September 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST

Shayna Rians, Board Clerk Jesse A. Robles, Board President

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinance was duly introduced at a regular public meeting of the San
Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District Board, held on September 11, 2024, and was duly adopted,
passed, and ordered posted at an adjourned regular meeting of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District Board held on September 25, 2024.

Board Clerk
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District

Ordinance 24-06 - Page 3



AGENDA ITEM 3.3

DIVISION CHIEF REPORT
DATE: September 25, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Rich Durrell, Division Chief

SUBJECT: Cradlepoint Upgrade

BACKGROUND

The San Miguel Fire District relies heavily on wireless technology to ensure effective communication, data
transfer, and operational efficiency during emergency responses and daily operations. Currently, the District's
communication infrastructure is based on outdated 4G technology that has reached the end of its lifecycle.
As technology advances, particularly with the advent of 5G, it is critical to upgrade our systems to maintain
reliable connectivity, support growing data demands, and ensure public safety services run smoothly.

Cradlepoint, a leading provider of wireless WAN and private cellular networks, offers a comprehensive
solution for public safety agencies like ours. Their routers, gateways, and software utilize 4G and 5G signals,
providing high-speed, secure, and reliable communication essential for emergency response operations.
Cradlepoint's services are used by various industries including public safety, federal government, healthcare,
and transportation. Their solutions are designed to be secure, easy to manage, and adaptable to the needs
of evolving organizations.

DISCUSSION

The current communication infrastructure within our District, which includes 4G-enabled routers, has become
outdated. It struggles with coverage limitations, slow data transfer rates, lacks the ability to handle multiple
carriers efficiently, and will become more costly in troubleshooting and maintenance as it becomes more
outdated. Cradlepoint's 5G-enabled routers, specifically the R1900 model, would offer significant
improvements. Key features and benefits of this upgrade include:

e Routers offer increased coverage and speed with 5G capability three times faster than our current
4G routers, providing data transfer speeds up to 1000 Mbps compared to the 300-400 Mbps we
currently experience. This increase in speed is critical for transferring large amounts of call data,
including mapping, pre-planning, and EMS reporting.

e Roof-mounted, premium antennas that offer 35% more coverage compared to standard iPad
antennas. This enhanced coverage will ensure more reliable communication even in remote areas
where signal strength is weak.

e NetCloud platform offers real-time monitoring, remote troubleshooting, and cloud-based
management, allowing for swift resolutions to connectivity issues. This will improve our operational
efficiency by minimizing downtime and interruptions.

e Devices can operate on up to six carriers simultaneously, ensuring that if one network is down or
congested, others can provide a seamless connection. This is particularly crucial during large-scale
emergencies or in areas with spotty coverage.



e R1900 5G routers have a technology relevancy projection of 6-7 years, allowing the District to remain
current with the latest advancements in connectivity without frequent upgrades.

e The Cradlepoint upgrade will integrate seamlessly with Central Dispatch by providing faster, more
reliable, and secure communication through 5G-enabled routers. This allows for real-time data
transfer, including critical information like mapping, EMS reporting, and pre-planning, ensuring
dispatchers and field units stay connected even in remote areas. Benefits include enhanced
coverage, multi-carrier support, real-time device management, and cloud-based monitoring,
improving operational efficiency, minimizing downtime, and increased responsiveness during
emergencies.

Other fire agencies such as CalFire, Orange County Fire Authority, and Riverside City have successfully
implemented Cradlepoint solutions, enhancing their communication networks' reliability and capacity.

FISCAL IMPACT
$46,026.86 out of the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund.

The Cradlepoint upgrade will involve purchasing 19 R1900 routers, antennas, and the subscription-based
NetCloud software platform. This package comes with a 3-year warranty on all equipment, with an option to
extend the warranty for up to 9 years. Additionally, the subscription includes support, cloud management,
and device monitoring. While the upfront cost may be significant, the long-term benefits in terms of
operational efficiency, increased coverage, and reduced downtime justify the investment.

ATTACHMENTS
e Attachment A — Quote for equipment from CDCE, Incorporated
e Attachment B — Resolution 24-44

RECOMMENDATION
Approve the upgrade to Cradlepoint's R1900 5G routers and the NetCloud management platform.

AGENDA ITEM 3.3 - PAGE 2



CDCE, Inc.
22641 Old Canal Road
Yorba Linda, CA 92887

Telephone: 800-373-5353

O
I:IﬂI:E

INCORPORATED

[ Bill To

San Miguel Fire District

2850 Via Orange Way

Spring Valley, CA 91978-1746
United States

Contact:  Accounts Payable
Telephone: 619-660-5359

ATTACHMENT A

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No. 122292-B

Customer No. SAN MIG FD

Ship To |

San Miguel CFPD

2850 Via Orange Way

Spring Valley, CA 91978-1746
United States

Contact:  Art Camarena
Telephone: 619-961-7609

E-mail: Ifernandez@sanmiguelfire.org E-mail: acamarena@sanmiguelfire.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number
08/20/24 Drop Ship Destination
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Payment Method
Crystal Beach Shane Williams Art Camarena Net 30
Line | Order . . Unit Extended
Ttem Qty Part # Description Price Price
1 19] DM-400155 R1900 router with WiFi (5G modem) 3-yr NetCloud Mobile 1.999.00 37,981.00
Performance Essentials Plan, no AC power supply or antennas, Global,
MFG# MB03-19005GB-GA
2 19| ANT-841090 Panorama Low Profile IOT Antenna (7 in 1) 206.00 3,914.00
4A—4 MiMo 698-960/1427-4200MHz,
2A—2 MiMo WiFi 6,
GPS/GNSS,
Black,
2 meter cables,
meets IK10 and IP69K,,
MFG Part Number: LGSADM4-7-42
Estimated Delivery Date:
Cradlepoint: 2 weeks ARO.
Antennas: 4 - 8 weeks ARO.
Cradlepoint NetCloud Admin:
Henry Kozik
HKozik@heartlandfire.net
619-441-1639
**Purchase orders must include CDCE's Quote#, all part numbers, descriptions, quantities, and
price. Purchase orders must also include payment terms and bill to/ship to addresses**
Print Date | 08/19/24 Subtotal 41,895.00
Print Time | 12:17:39 PM Freight 885.00
Page No. | Page 1 of | 7.750 % Sales Tax 3,246.86
Printed by Hubmate User: Cbeach
Order Total 46,026.86




CDCE, Inc.
22641 Old Canal Road
Yorba Linda, CA 92887

Telephone: 800-373-5353

O
I:IJI:E

INCORPORATED

Bill To

San Miguel Fire District
2850 Via Orange Way

Spring Valley, CA 91978-1746

United States

Contact:

Telephone: 619-660-5359

Accounts Payable

Sales Quote

Sales Quote No.

122292-B

Customer No.

SAN MIG FD

Ship To

San Miguel CFPD

2850 Via Orange Way
Spring Valley, CA 91978-1746

United States

Contact:  Art Camarena
Telephone: 619-961-7609

E-mail: Ifernandez@sanmiguelfire.org E-mail: acamarena@sanmiguelfire.org
Quote Date Ship Via F.O.B. Customer PO Number
08/20/24 Drop Ship Destination
Entered By Salesperson Ordered By Payment Method
Crystal Beach Shane Williams Art Camarena Net 30
Line | Order . . Unit Extended
Ttem Qty Part # Description Price Price
Purchase orders must include the following:
CDCE Quote#
All part numbers
Part Descriptions
Quantities and price
Sales Tax & Freight
Bill to/Ship To
Payment Terms
***This quote is valid for 30 days from the stated Quote Date***
Print Date | 08/19/24 Subtotal 41,895.00
Print Time | 12:17:39 PM Freight 885.00
Page No. | Page 1 of | 7.750 % Sales Tax 3,246.86
Printed by Hubmate User: Cbeach
Order Total 46,026.86




ATTACHMENT B

Resolution 24-44

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Purchase of
Cradlepoint Equipment and NetCloud Service, and Granting the Fire Chief
Authority to Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District relies heavily on wireless technology to ensure effective
communication, data transfer, and operational efficiency during emergency responses and
daily operations; and

WHEREAS, the District's communication infrastructure is based on outdated 4G technology
that has reached the end of its lifecycle; and

WHEREAS, it is critical to upgrade our systems to maintain reliable connectivity, support
growing data demands, and ensure public safety services run smoothly; and

WHEREAS, the cost to upgrade equipment will be approximately $46,026.86, which has been
accounted for in the FY2024/2025 final budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$50,000.00, for the purchase of Cradlepoint Equipment and NetCloud Service.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 25" day of September 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST

Shayna Rians, Board Clerk Jesse A. Robles, Board President



AGENDA ITEM 3.4

FIRE CHIEF REPORT

DATE: September 25, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Andy Lawler, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Proposed Final Budget Adoption

BACKGROUND
Per the California Government Code, final budget adoption must occur by October 1st of each year. On June
12, 2024, the Board of Directors adopted the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Preliminary Budget.

DISCUSSION

On August 29, 2024, the Finance Committee reviewed the Proposed Final Budget. The Finance Committee
discussed the budget in length, focusing on some increases, pension liability, and any new position/program
requests. The Finance Committee requested that additional comparison data be included in the Budget
Summary, and the current budget is being presented with that information.

The Fire Chief and Executive Staff proudly present the Proposed Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025.
This budget would not be possible without the support of all personnel, Safety and Non-Safety. The dedication
taken to providing the community and Board of Directors with a comprehensive look into the District's financial
standing is beyond measure. The Fire Chief and Executive Staff would like to specifically acknowledge Diana
DeRobertis and Shayna Rians for their roles in compiling information, assisting with formatting, and the
overall support to ensure this document was completed accurately and effectively.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget via Resolution 24-45, and direct staff to move forward with
the completion of the comprehensive budget report.

ATTACHMENTS
A. Comprehensive Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2024/2025.
B. Resolution 24-45



¢ ‘z%"":

FIRE & RESCUE

Service Beyond Expectations

Fiscal Year 2024-2025

Proposed Final Budget




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Board of Directors

History of San Miguel

Mission & Vision, Core Values, and Guiding Principles

A Message from the Fire Chief

Organizational Structure & District Personnel

Governance Codes

State Appropriations Limit

Resolution 24-18

Budget Process Information

The District’s Ultimate Goal

District Revenues

FY25 Budgeted Revenues by Source

Property Tax Information

Miscellaneous District Financial Information

Revenue Forecasting

Reserves and Long-Term Forecasts

Unfunded Liabilities

June 30t Comparisons

Revenue and Expenses

Balance Sheet Comparison

Revenues vs Total Expense

Total Revenues & Expense — Year to Year

Revenue Detail

Expense Detail

Draft Final Budget Summary

Pending/Deferred Budget Requests

Budget Summary Revenue Narrative

Detailed Expense Budget Narrative

Division Updates

2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Reserve Fund Information

Replacement Schedule

Approved Purchasing Resolutions

Financial Management Policy

Acknowledgments




Board of Directors

~San Miguel Fire & Rescue is governed by a 7-member Board of Directors as an
independent Fire District. These individuals meet monthly to discuss District business
and make decisions by a majority vote.

Our current Directors are:

A _
Jeff Nelson Kim Raddatz Harry Muns Christopher Pierce
Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4

Theresa McKenna Jesse A. Robles Ed Woodruff

Division 5 Division 6 Division 7
Page 1 of 141



Page 2 of 141

v

HISTORY OF SAN MIGUEL

San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District is one of the largest
Fire Districts in San Diego County,
formed on July 1, 1988 through a
merger of the Spring Valley and
Grossmont/Mt. Helix Fire Protection
Districts, and again on July 3, 2008
with the East County Fire Protection
District.

The District serves nearly 140,000
residents in the communities of
Bostonia, Casa de Oro, Crest,
Grossmont/Mt. Helix, La Presa,
Rancho San Diego, Spring Valley and
the unincorporated areas of El Cajon
and La Mesa.

San Miguel’s 80 full-time employees
provide suppression, prevention and
emergency medical services. Crews
respond to approximately 15,000 calls
for service annually covering various
commercial and industrial operations,
single-family residences, large multi-
unit apartments and condominium
projects, and an extensive
urban/wildland interface area.



(X

Service Beyond Expectations
Dedicated professionals committed to excellent service with compassion and pride,
providing for the health and safety of the communities we serve

S Act selflessly to benefit the community
Sacrifice and strive to adapt to our situation
E Build understanding and compassion for
Empathy all individuals
R Invest time, knowledge, and
Respect understanding at all levels
Vv Dedicate our efforts to the protection of
Valor others despite great personal risk
[ Build and instill trust wherever possible,
as it is of the utmost importance in
Integrity public safety
C Listen to others and actively exchange
Collaboration ideas in pursuit of common goals
E . .
Strive to always exceed expectations
Excellence

COMMITMENT
to service that is guided by our
shared goals and values

COMPASSION
for others and a willingness to
assist those who need us most

COMMUNITY
involvement to inspire others
and lead by example

Page 3 of 141



A MESSAGE FROM THE FIRE CHIEF

Since 2017, the District has maintained flexibility and adaptability to a quickly evolving fire service. The
sources of these changes are multifaceted, but they clearly have created management challenges when
developing short and long-term models specific to budgeting.

The “post-Covid” era is quickly blamed as a common theme when discussing supply chain delays for goods
and services and challenges with recruitment and retention in public safety. However, it should be noted that
state and federal legislative mandates, sky-rocketing insurance rates, and “nuclear” employee claim verdicts
favorable to plaintiffs place increased responsibilities on public safety entities without clear, accessible
funding sources.

The District has several key platform areas moving forward, which consist of the health and safety of our
personnel, effective response readiness, short and long-term fiscal sustainability, and security of the District
for our personnel, facilities, and cyber threats.

We have also placed a heavy focus on replacement cycles for all equipment, which includes our light and
heavy fleet. Due to aging facilities identified in a 2023 facilities conditions report, we are placing increased
attention on facility refurbishment and replacement cycles.

Below are a few of our specific focused areas with examples of associated challenges specific to cost:

Health & Safety

Doubled in cost and acquisition due to supply chain issues, “post covid”.
Polyfluoroalkyl (PFAS) identified in PPE, potentially cancer causing to Firefighters. Causing fire departments to buy additional sets of non-PFAS
gear for responses.
Increased suicide rates
M Call from unions, federal and state legislation to establish peer support, chaplain, and psychological support services. Funding sources have been
ental Health o . Lo . e .
limited and difficult to access, forcing fire departments to identify internal funding sources.
Anticipated increase in workers compensation claims for PTSD.
Facility Aging facilities identified in 2023 report for potential health and safety risks.
Mandated prevailing wage causing 30-40% cost increased.
Mandated RFP process with very few contractors bidding, “post covid.”
50-75% increases in building materials.

Personal Protective
Equipment

Refurbishment and
Replacement

Response Readiness

30-50% increases in apparatus cost, manufacturer dependent, “supply chain, post covid.”
Apparatus Triple the timeframe in apparatus delivery, “post-covid.” This is causing difficulties in forecasting replacement cycles.

Clean cab (cancer rates) concepts forcing further customization.

Page40f141



FIRE CHIEF’S MESSAGE CONTINUED

While there have been challenges, the District is proud to have made strides in many categories:

Health & Safety:

» Establishment of a District peer support program.

» Maintained a strong Chaplain program that has been utilized by the zone as well as the County of San Diego.

» Participation and development of a Serious Incident Response Team in coordination with the County of San Diego.

Facility Refurbishment and Replacement:

» Entered the final phases of the construction of new Station 18.
Groundbreaking Oct. 11, 2024. Completion December 2025.

» Established a 3-year phased approach to construct new Station 19.

+ Of the 250 items identified in the 2023 Facilities Condition Report, almost all Health & Safety issues have been
mitigated. The remaining items are cosmetic in nature.

Response Readiness:

« Outdated alerting system upgraded, 90% completed.

» Three frontline Type 1 apparatus on order as well as a type 3 (partial grant funding).

* Nurse Navigator to go into effect September 2024. This will appropriately route patients to the appropriate care destination.

« We are now receiving monthly reports to ensure our transport contractor is meeting the response times of 11:59, 90% of the time.

Political and Community Group Partnerships:

+  We have met and continue to meet with all local, state, and federal politicians that govern within the San Miguel District. In the past year, those relationships have
yielded the District $1,750,000.00.

* Inthe last 8 months, we have engaged all formalized community groups within the District. We have partnered with these group in the development of the Districts new
Strategic Plan.

Legislative Involvement:
» District staff is actively engaged in the California Special Districts Association (CSDA), Fire Districts Association of California (FDAC), and National Special Districts
Coalition (NSDC). Staff is taking an active role in monitoring and contributing to current and anticipated, local, state and federal legislation through these organizations.

Succession Planning:
* In 2024, the District conducted a succession planning survey of our personnel to anticipate future needs. This document will assist the District in identifying any gaps
that would inhibit District personnel growth.

The District is looking to optimize our response model into the future, which may include an increased number of first responders as well as support staff. The District will
accomplish this goal through alternative funding mechanisms. We will always strive to deliver Service Beyond Expectations.

\\Andy Lawler, Fire Chief
Page 5 of 141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Organizational Structure

Constituents in the communities of Bostonia, Casa de Oro, Crest, Grossmont/Mt. Helix, La Presa,
Rancho San Diego, Spring Valley, and unincorporated areas of El Cajon and La Mesa

Board of Directors

Fire Chief

ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT SERVICES FIRE PREVENTION HEALTH & SAFETY/EMS OPERATIONS

Administrative Officer / Finance Officer Fire Marshal Division Chief Division Chief

Battalion Chief
Fire Services Officer Operations Training Division

@ ) (1)

Administrative Analyst Fire Inspector

Human Resources Specialist Captain
(24)

Accounting Specialist Engineer
g Sp 20

Firefighter Paramedic

Executive Assistant / Board Clerk @)

Page 6 of 141



DISTRICT PERSONNEL

SUMMARY OF PERSONNEL (BY POSITION)

Page 7 of 141

Fire Chief

FY2023
1

FY2024

FY2025

Division Chief

Admin/Finance Officer

Battalion Chief - Training/EMS

2
1
1

Battalion Chief Paramedic - Operations

Battalion Chief - Operations

3

Captain Paramedic

Captain

24

Engineer Paramedic

Engineer

24

Firefighter/Paramedic

27

Fire Marshal

Deputy Fire Marshal

Fire Inspector

Administrative Analyst

Human Resources Specialist

Accounting Specialist

Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Fire Services Officer

L\ L\ [ N S N PSRN | \G I RN




DISTRICT PERSONNEL
ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES

The Fire Chief is appointed by the Board of Directors and oversees all aspects of the District, working closely with the Division Chiefs and the Administrative Officer/Finance Officer.
The Division Chief oversees one of two divisions (Operations or Health & Safety/EMS) and ensures everything within their divisional scope is managed.

The Administrative Officer/Finance Officer oversees all Administrative staff and is tasked with balancing the budget. Large expenditures (like building a new fire station) require the AO/FO’s advanced budgeting
and planning expertise.

The Battalion Chief supervises all crews at all stations during their shift, responding to critical incidents within our service area and working as “Incident Commander” to manage large-scale events. There is one
Battalion Chief on duty per shift, with the District employing a total of three Battalion Chiefs.

The Training Battalion Chief manages the Training Division, ensuring all personnel are up-to-date on critical licensure and certifications.

The Captain works at one of our eight stations during their shift and manages the Engineer and Firefighter under them. They can be seen in the front passenger seat when a truck or engine is responding to an
incident, and they may maintain their paramedic licensure, although it is not mandatory. There are eight Captains working on any given shift (one at each station).

The Engineer manages and operates the truck or engine. You will find them in the driver's seat, and operating the pumping mechanism on any incidents requiring the use of water. They may maintain their paramedic
licensure, although it is not mandatory. There are eight Engineers working on any given shift (one at each station).

The Firefighter Paramedic is first in action to render medical aid. The Engineer and Captain assist, but the Firefighter Paramedic quickly acts to assess injuries and patient needs, and must maintain paramedic
licensure while in the Firefighter Paramedic rank. There are eight Firefighter Paramedics working on any given shift (one at each station).

The Fire Marshal oversees the Fire Prevention Division, and supervises two Fire Inspectors. The Fire Prevention Division is responsible for conducting state-mandated inspections, new constructions inspections,
plan reviews, and enforcing the District's weed abatement standards.

The Fire Inspector conducts inspections in the field and reviews building plans for conformance to fire code. When conducting inspections that result in violations, Fire Inspectors work with property owners and
managers to ensure life-safety measures, like smoke detectors, are in place. The District employs two Fire Inspectors.

The Administrative Analyst performs professional-level analytical support and Finance/Human Resources work in conducting comprehensive analyses. Prepares, analyzes, and maintains a variety of finance,
accounting, and human resources work.

The Human Resources Specialist assists with coordinating the implementation of recruitment and selection activities and new hire orientation, administers the Department of Transportation (DOT) pull program, and
participates in the development of policies and procedures. Assists in the oversight of workers’ compensation claims, along with reviewing and developing recommendations regarding the impact of State, Federal, and
local legislation on assigned areas.

The Accounting Specialist processes accounts payable and accounts receivable entries for the District and tracks reimbursable expenditures, such as strike team deployments. Assists in the tracking of budget and
expenditures related to specific divisions, programs, and projects.

The Executive Assistant/Board Clerk performs a wide variety of administrative support and technical duties for the District. They also prepare agendas, minutes, resolutions, ordinances, and supporting documents
for the Board of Directors.

The Fire Services Officer is the District’s subject matter expert on compliance, inventory, and logistics items. From generator permits and supplies to turnouts and equipping personnel for strike team deployments,
the FSO ensures every position in the District has the tools they need.

Page 8of 141



ERECUTIVE BRIEF

Page 9 of 141

The District must adhere to California
Code, Government Code - GOV §
61110

* Follow all local, state, and federal guidelines
and Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles & Governmental Accounting
Principles

* Must break out certain expenditures by
category
» Salaries & Benefits
» Capital Outlay
» Services and Supplies
* Designated Reserves
* Preliminary must be approved by June 30 of
each year & final adoption must be

completed at a regularly scheduled meeting
with a hearing by October 1 of each year.



Gann Limit
State
Appropriations
Limit

The Gann Limit (Proposition 4
and Proposition 111)
establishes spending

limitations of tax revenue on
all government agencies. This
limit is based on increases in
population and per capita
personal income and is
adjusted every year.

The limit for the fiscal year
2024-2025is $40,771,899,
an increase of 3.79%

Page 10 0f 141




Page 11 of 141

Resolution 24-18

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Establishing the Limit for Appropriations of Proceeds of Tax
Subject to Limitation for Fiscal Year 2024/2025

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District, as follows:

1. The calculated maximum limit applicable to the 2024/2025 appropriations of proceeds of
tax subject to limitation established in compliance with Article XIIIB of the Constitution of
the State of California is $40,771,899.

2. The population and cost of living per capita income increase, provided by the State of
California Department of Finance, used to determine the above limitation under Article
XIIIB of the Constitution of the State of California, were on file and available for public
inspection as of June 1, 2023.

Determination of Appropriation Limitation: 2024/2025

2023/2024 Appropriation Limitation: $39,225,918
Adjustments:
Per Capita Personal Income: 1.0362
Population Change: 1.0031
Adjustment Factor: 1.0394

(per capita population change)

2024/2025 Appropriation Limitation: $40,771,899
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 12" day of June, 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Director Pierce

ATTEST

Shayna Riaf\s, Board Clerk Jesse A-—Robles, Board President



Page 12 of 141

Budget Process Timeline

Phase |

Implementation
of new fiscal
year’s
budgetary
workbook

Phase Il
Draft
preliminary
budget
submitted to
Finance

Committee for
review

Phase Il

Preliminary Budget
adoption and
Fiscal Year
closeout
completion

Phase IV

Revenue Forecasting
completed.
Projections reviewed
and approved by the
Fire Chief

Phase V

Final Budget
reviewed by
Finance Committee
& approved by BOD




Budget Discussion

4
|

|

The District has multiple funds
that keep designations for public
money organized and
transparent. Each major division
has a line-item budget that tracks
every dollar spent on personnel,
operating, and equipment costs
(broken down further into more
detail by program).

The District has been working to
improve its local government
budgeting, moving toward the

best practices of the Government

Finance Officers Association
(GFOA). Establishing a budget
that follows these recommended
practices allows the budget
process to be consistent with our
goals, policies, and plans.




Page 14 of 141

Budget Priorities Overview

The District began prioritizing expenditure line items in the 2019/2020
budget. Five categories have been established; however, the prioritization
of line items continues to be reviewed, and a budget committee will be
developed to help with this process, with other budgetary discussions as
part of the process.

This is one facet focuses on allocating financial resources based on the
district's most critical needs, such as emergency response, wildfire
prevention, and public safety initiatives. It involves identifying and ranking
services and programs by their importance to the community, ensuring that
essential functions, like staffing, equipment maintenance, and training,
receive the highest priority.

This approach ensures that limited funds are directed toward achieving the
district’s core goals, aligning spending with strategic priorities, and
enhancing service efficiency and effectiveness, particularly in areas with
high fire risk.



Budgets Mission

To help decision-makers
make informed choices about *
providing services and

capital assets and promote
stakeholder participation in
the process.

An internal and external plan to
allocate government resources
toward the outcomes desired
by the community and the
entity being served.

Page 15 of 141



Page 16 of 141

The District’s Ultimate Goal

Establish Broad Goals

* Broad goals that provide overall directions for the
District and serve as a basis for decision-making

* The District is developing the budget around the
Strategic Plan
Develop Approaches to Achieve Goals
* Specific policies, plans, programs, and management
strategies to define how it will achieve long-term goals
Develop a Budget Consistent with the Approaches to Achieve
the Goals

e A financial plan that moves toward the achievement of
goals within the constraints of available resources

Evaluate Performance and Adjust

* Program and financial performance should be
monitored, and adjustments made to encourage
continuous progress




District Revenues

You can reference the Financial Management Policy
for a complete breakdown of District Revenues.

* Property Taxes

* Special Taxes/Benefit Assessments

* Mitigation Fees/Community Facility District Fees
* Contracts

* Interest Earned

* Miscellaneous Revenue

Page 17 of 141



FY 25 Budgeted Revenues by Source

Benefit Assessments, 9.8%

Property Taxes, 85.7%

AMR Contract and Other

Misc., 4.5%

Interest Income, 0.0%

Page 18 of 141



Property Taxes

Property tax revenue is a primary funding source for San Miguel Fire
& Rescue, which serves areas of San Diego County. Property
owners within the district pay an annual tax based on their property's
assessed value, which is allocated to the fire district. These funds
are essential for covering operational costs, including staffing,
equipment, and maintaining fire stations and capital improvements
like new fire stations and upgraded response vehicles.

In California, Proposition 13 limits the growth of property tax revenue
by ca.ppl_n annual property value increases, which can restrict the
fire district's revenue growth over time. To supplement this, fire
districts may seek voter apFrovaI for additional assessments or
bonds to meet rising operational costs and expanding service
needs. Property tax revenue ensures that San Miguel Fire & Rescue
can continue providing critical fire suppression, emergency medical,
and rescue services to the community.

Page 19 of 141



DELINQUENT PROPERTY TAXES AS A % OF TOTAL

$25,415,295

$23,087,281
$22,080,382

Page 20 of 141



Page 21 of 141



County Loan Trend Analysis

$14,000,000 $40,000
$12,000,000 $35,000
$30,000
$10,000,000
$25,000
$8,000,000
$20,000
$6,000,000
$15,000
$4,000,000
$10,000
$2,000,000 $5,000
$0 $0
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Paid off April 2020 Paid off January 2021 Paid off December 2021 Paid off December 2022 Paid off December 2023

I Total Loan (s) e====Total Interest

Page 22 of 141



m—— California Cooperative
California *  Liquid Assets Securities

~ California CLASS is a Joint Powers Authority

investment pool for public agencies. Participants
are offered safety, daily and next-day liquidity, and
optimized returns. These investments have proven
to yield higher interest rates than those received at

other Institutions. Three accounts are held:
Contingency Funds, District Liabilities Funds, and
Compensated Absences Funds.

Average Yield . Vel Local A | -

verage Yield, Loca ency Investment Fund:

for FY2024: 3.927% (State of Calli or(?)ia},/ Local Investment
un

5.45%

The FOMC (Federal Open Market Committee)
voted on Sept. 19, 2024, to cut the Fed Funds
Target Rate by 50 basis points. This cut will likely
impact California CLASS yields.

Page 23 of 141



Revenue Forecasting

Analysis of revenue trends is
an important tool for
forecasting and looking at any

potential economic downturns.

Staff will be monitoring these
trends on a quarterly basis.
Property tax isn’t the only
revenue source that will be
reviewed. The District has
begun looking at all revenue
sources and analyzing the
potential for future use of
these revenues. We are
looking at the whole picture
when it comes to the financial
standing of the district.

Page 24 of 141

Property taxes have been trending
up for the past 5 years. Delinquent
payments have been a part of this
increase, and those payments have
started to decrease throughout the
years. The District now has a
forecasting tool to help break down
the County Valuation Report to
extract important property tax data
for trends that will impact decision-
making in the future.




Reserves and
Long-Term Forecasts

A process of developing a long-term financial plan for the District that combines financial
forecasting with strategizing is in the final stages of review, and a request to have the
Finance Committee, along with Employee Associations, be part of the final discussions, is
being sought. The District will use forecasts to provide insight into future financial capacity

to develop strategies to achieve long-term sustainability while considering any financial
challenges.

Long-term financial planning also
includes a recession plan that

prioritizes expenditures,
forecasts revenue and confronts
an economic downturn early.

Page 25 of 141



Unfunded Liabilities

The District has two main unfunded liabilities
that are continuously being reviewed.

« CalPERS Unfunded Annual Liability (UAL)
» Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District has a Liability Fund specific
for the use of controlling liability costs.

Page 26 of 141



California Public
Employees’ Retirement Z2=
System =
(CalPERS)

Our pension system, which provides retirement
and health benefits to our employees, is
CalPERS. CalPERS manages retirement assets
to ensure retirement security for our employees.

The UAL (Unfunded Annual Liability) is the gap
between assets available to pay retirement
benefits and the actual projected liability.

The normal cost is the annual cost of benefits
accrued by employees for the current year.

Page 27 of 141



Unfunded Annual Liability

The BOD approved a
Pension Obligation
Bond with a private

bank in 2022 as a
strategy to decrease
its long-term liability.

However, additional

strategies still must be
considered for the
District's sustainability.

Pension Liability Payments Projection

MILLIONS

$5
$5
$4
$4
$3
$3
$2
$2
$1
$1
$-

Page 28 of 141



Other Post- "
. The District currently manages
Employment Benefits its health costs monthly.
(OPEB) Liability Prefunding programs are

available, which can reduce
unfunded liabilities and future

contributions while improving
financial reporting outcomes.

Though this liability is on the
District’s radar, a full analysis has
not started. It has been
determined that the pension
liability is a higher priority for
review at this time.

The OPEB liability is currently at
approximately $24 Million.

Page 29 of 141



June 30" Comparisons

This section of the budget provides the readers with a
comparison of financial information for the period ending
June 30™ of each Fiscal Year beginning with Fiscal Year

2019-2020.

Page 30 of 141



\(@},

£ San Miguel Fire & Rescue

Statement of Revenues and Expenses
FIRE & RESCUE (Unaudited)
Jun-24 Jun-23 Jun-22 Jun-21 Jun-20
1 Operating Revenues $ 30,022,751 $ 28,230,332 $ 25,802,449 $ 24.719,905 $ 23,773,818
2 Non-Operating Revenues 2,689,451 2,011,576 5,568,905 3,082,419 2,026,487
3 Total Revenues 32,712,202 30,241,908 31,371,354 27,802,324 25,800,305
4 Total Expenses (26,854,670) (25,014,208) (24,705,418) (22,874,741) (20,354,450)
Net Income Before
5 Reserve Related Expenditures $ 5857532 $ 5227,700 $ 6,665,935 $ 4,927583 $ 5,445,855
6 Total Reserve Revenues 1,887,877 710,478 459,127 887,850 507,409
7 Total Reserve Expenditures (4,615,940) (3,086,059) (988,036) (1,327,018) (926,357)
8 Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 3,129,470 $ 2,852,118 $ 6,137,026 $ 4,488,415 $ 5,026,907

Page 31 of 141

Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included.



FIRE

Page 32 of 141

& RESCUE

0 N O o1 S o N -

_ = - O
N — O

_
w

N NN NN NN = =@ @ e e
Ol B WON— O OwWoo N O &

Operating Revenues
Property Taxes

Benefit Assessments
Total Operating Revenues

Non-Operating Revenues
Community Facilities District Fees
AMR Contract

CARES Act

OES Reimbursement

Other Miscellaneous

Interest Income

Total Non-Operating Revenues

Total Revenues

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits
Director Fees

Prior Director Benefits
Retiree Benefits
Employee Salaries
Employee Overtime
Employee Benefits

UAL - Pension Payment
Pension Bond

Pension Savings Reserve
Total Salaries and Benefits

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Detail Statement of Revenues and Expenses Comparison

(Unaudited)
Jun-24 Jun-23 Jun-22 Jun-21 Jun-20
$ 27059534 $ 25415295 $ 23,087,281 $ 22,080,382 $ 21,150,402
2,963,217 2,815,037 2,715,168 2,639,523 2,623,416
30,022,751 28,230,332 25,802,449 24,719,905 23,773,818
53,190 11,572 - - -
884,835 852,442 839,018 871,772 839,858
2,129,691
680,514 215,247 1,491,461 1,398,101 240,666
875,012 834,983 1,087,348 780,573 889,297
195,900 97,332 21,387 31,973 56,667
2,689,451 2,011,576 5,568,905 3,082,419 2,026,487
32,712,202 30,241,908 31,371,354 27,802,324 25,800,305
13,575 15,142 11,968 15,128 12,954
25,697 26,180 25,396 23,274 13,741
1,085,638 916,354 - - -
9,490,628 10,108,666 8,827,124 8,559,243 7,749,414
3,252,472 3,112,270 3,866,025 3,406,488 2,117,332
3,259,938 3,160,247 3,880,360 3,606,779 2,968,620
1,159,708 1,417,754 3,460,697 3,027,616 2,758,252
1,179,211 1,058,847 - - -
1,339,300 - - - -
20,806,168 19,815,461 20,071,570 18,638,529 15,620,313



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Detail Statement of Revenues and Expenses Comparison

¢ ¥ (Unaudited)
FIRE & RESCUE
Jun-24 Jun-23 Jun-22 Jun-21 Jun-20

26 Services and Supplies

27 Professional Services 2,445,951 1,715,086 1,934,706 1,972,366 1,786,812
28 Special District Expense 428,437 422,867 334,294 360,315 464,350
29 Maintenance 921,306 788,752 627,439 534,204 576,148
30 Insurance 975,070 984,855 792,152 691,399 870,117
31 Equipment 602,036 583,698 356,255 287,530 573,144
32 Utilities 475,896 469,989 402,357 253,054 221,745
33 Supplies 101,166 101,082 95,638 70,813 154,014
34 Personnel Development 51,7131 88,747 48,685 21,557 42,611
35 Rents and Leases 40,903 43,670 42,322 38,974 45,194
36 Total Service and Supplies 6,048,502 5,198,747 4,633,848 4,236,212 4,734,137
37 Total Expenses 26,854,670 25,014,208 24,705,418 22,874,141 20,354,450

Net Income Before

38 Reserve Related Activities $ 5857532 $§ 5227,700 $ 6665935 $ 4927583 $ 5,445,855
39 Fire Mitigation Revenue $ 366,686 $ 259,217 $ 170,452 $ 328,815 $ 169,486
40 Miscellaneous Reserve Revenue 618,000 103,120 220,715 446,739 175,579
41 Interest Reserve Revenue 903,192 348,142 67,961 112,296 162,344
42 Total Reserve Revenues 1,887,877 710,478 459,127 887,850 507,409
43 Total Reserve Expenditures 4,615,940 3,086,059 988,036 1,321,018 926,357
44 Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ 3129470 $ 2852118 $ 6137026 $ 4483415 $ 5,026,907

*YTD - Year to Date
Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included.

Page 33 of 141



FIRE

Page 34 of 141

& RES

CUE

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Balance Sheet Comparison

(Unaudited)
Jun-24 Jun-23 Jun-22 Jun-21 Jun-20

Assets

Cashin County - General $ 10,043583 $ 9658001 $§ 9718910 $  8,995428 $ 5,965,908

Cashin County - Fund Reserves 23,398,716 18,604,475 16,793,777 11,387,177 9,084,362

Fire Mitigation Fund 699,648 265,444 504,030 248,217 331,453

Restricted Cash and Investments 544,421 533,109 545,771 354,783 527,821

Cashin CB&T 1,178,416 1,894,577 - - -

Accounts Receivable 387,077 164,180 43,398 496,132 305,612

Fixed Assets 15,593,615 13,404,910 13,394,186 13,361,222 14,074,086
Total Assets 51,845,474 44,524,695 41,253,118 35,481,461 30,692,208
Liability

Current Liabilities 28,958,311 29,112,443 2,878,362 3,036,226 4,340,615

Net Pension Liability 41,576,272 30,031,222 53,964,863 51,495,820 (1,739,390)

Deferred Revenue 13 2 1 1 6

Accounts Payable 1,140,058 903,316 (88,678) 582,328 (710,221)
Total Liability 71,674,654 60,046,984 56,754,549 55,114,376 1,891,010
Fund Balance (19,829,180) (15,522,289) (15,501,431) (19,632,915) 28,801,198

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $ 51845474 $ 44524695 $ 41253118 § 35481461 $ 30,692,208

Preliminary - does not include all year end adjustments
No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
The financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.

Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included.



Revenues vs Total Expense

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

Property Taxes Benefit Assessments = AMR Contract and Other Miscellaneous I Interest Income Total Expenses

Page 35 of 141



Total Revenues & Expense - Year to Year Comparison

$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$0

= Total Revenues 32,712,202 30,241,908 31,371,354 21,802,324 25,800,305
26,854,670 , 14,208 | | 22,874,141

Total Revenues Total Expenses

Page 36 of 141



Page 37 of 141

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$-

Revenue Detail by Fiscal Year

B Property Taxes  m Benefit Assessments  ® Other Miscellaneous = Interest Income

$195,900
I $97’332
I $21’387
I I $31’973
FY 24 FY 23 FY 22 FY 21

FY 20

$56,667




Expense Detail by Fiscal Year

H Total Salaries and Benefits i Total Service and Supplies

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$0

FY 24 FY 23 FY 22 FY 21 FY 20

Page 38 of 141




Page 39 of 141

Draft Final Budget Summary

This section of the budget provides the readers with
a summary comparison of the previous Fiscal Year’s
Final Budget and the Draft Final Budget for
Fiscal Year 2024-2025.



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget Summary

oposed

Page400f141

2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 _Budget $ !3udget %
FINAL Budget FINAL Budget PROPOSED increase/ increase/
Budget decrease decrease
Operating Revenues
Property Taxes $ 23749500 $ 25198200 $ 26,447,700 $ 1,249,500 5.0%
Benefit Assessments 2,814,800 2,932,000 3,039,151 107,151 3.7%
Total Operating Revenues 26,564,300 28,130,200 29,486,851 1,356,651 4.8%
Non-Operating Revenues
AMR Contract and Other Miscellaneous 1,311,000 1,361,000 1,376,300 15,300 1.1%
Interest Income 10,000 10,000 10,200 200 2.0%
Total Non-Operating Revenues 1,321,000 1,371,000 1,386,500 15,500 1.1%
Total Revenues $ 27885300 $ 29501200 $ 30873351 $ 1,372,151 4.7%
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits Costs
Director Fees 20,000 20,000 14,600 (5,400) -27.0%
Prior Directors Benefits 21,700 24,000 17,333 (6,667) -27.8%
Retiree Benefits 1,032,300 1,503,100 1,057,127 (445,973) -29.7%
Employee Salaries 9,566,633 10,072,950 10,228,800 155,850 1.5%
Employee Overtime 2,134,200 2,736,100 3,413,900 677,800 24.8%
Employee Benefits 3,154,200 3,553,600 3,889,549 335,949 9.5%
Financial Emergency Plan 208,705 332,500 332,500 - 0.0%
UAL - Pension Payment 1,416,775 1,420,000 1,658,061 238,061 16.8%
Pension Bond 1,058,850 1,260,700 1,439,600 178,900 14.2%
Pension Restructuring — Reserve 1,541,150 1,339,300 1,160,400 (178,900) -13.4%
Total Salaries and Benefits Costs $ 20154513 $ 22262250 $ 23211870 $ 949,620 4.3%



oposed

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

Page41of141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue

2024/2025 Proposed Budget Summary

2022-2023 2023-2024 2024-2025 _Budget $ Fudget %

FINAL Budget FINAL Budget PROPOSED increase/ increase/

Budget decrease decrease

Services and Supplies
Professional Services 2,071,600 2,138,100 1,920,500 (217,600) -10.2%
Special District Expense 312,410 285,950 184,750 (101,200) -35.4%
Maintenance 560,550 654,750 1,045,000 390,250 59.6%
Insurance 870,000 907,260 907,260 - 0.0%
Equipment 573,400 659,800 852,500 192,700 29.2%
Utilities 274,800 404,700 500,500 95,800 23.7%
Supplies 75,560 90,560 90,600 40 0.0%
Personnel Development 80,800 95,800 117,350 21,550 22.5%
Rents and Leases 43,300 44,400 46,190 1,790 4.0%
Total Service and Supplies $ 4862420 $ 5281320 $ 5664650 $ 383,330 1.3%
Total Expenses $ 25016934 $ 27543571 $ 28876520 $ 1,332,949 4.8%
Net Income before
Reserve Related Activities $ 2868366 $ 1957629 $ 199831 $ 39,202 2.0%
Fire Mitigation Revenue $ - $ - $ - $ - 0.0%
Miscellaneous Reserve Revenue - - - - 0.0%
Interest Reserve Revenue - - - - 0.0%
Total Reserve Revenues - - - - 0.0%
Total Reserve Expenditures 3,504,000 5,263,000 5,602,000 339,000 6.4%
Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance $ (635634) $ (3,305371) $ (3,605169) $ (299,798)

*Budget % increase/ decrease is budget $ increase/decrease divided by prior year final budget



Draft Final Budget Detall

This section of the budget provides readers with a
detailed line-item view of the budget, which fully reveals
what is budgeted by categories. It also includes a final
breakdown by Division and Program.

Page420f141



\\\\\\\\\\\
A A i
Fvi R IR R
R Th b S A T
Y NNINIRERENENENeN N
¥ NOVENIRINTRENE]

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\S j

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
\\\\‘\\\\\\\\\\\\\

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\
P TSR TR ER T ORI A A
BT 5 U0 LA TR ER O TR T T AT
nf 1/ \\\\\\\\'\\\\\\

The Final Budget is being
presented with an increase of
4.8% or approximately
$1,332,949 in General

Fund expenditures from the
previous years budget.




Page44 0f141

SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE

Pending/Deferred Budget Requests

Finance Staff met with Executive Staff and Program/Committee Leads throughout March and April regarding budgetary requests.
These one-on-one meetings helped staff look at the current and future needs of the department from different perspectives. From
there, the District held its first All Personnel Budget Workshop on May 15 & 16, 2024. It included an overview of the budgetary
process from a regulation standpoint and a comprehensive look at the internal budgeting process, including a review of all budget
requests. From here, the District will conduct future budgetary workshops earlier in next year’s budget process to discuss in-depth
revenue, expense line items, reserve funds, etc.

Below is a list of items that were considered in the preliminary budget.
It was determined that more information is heeded for these requests. Executive Staff and the requestors
will meet in October/November to review and prepare for the Fiscal Year 2025/2026 budget process.

DIVISION REQUEST

Health and Safety Cold Plunge

Health and Safety Infrared Sauna

Health and Safety Ballistic Equipment

Reserve Firefighter Program Paramedic School Sponsorship for Reserve Program

Training Firefighter / Academy Sponsorship

Explorer Program EMT Scholarship for Explorer Program

To Be Determined New Position (Classification Unknown)

All other items brought forward during the budget process were included in the preliminary budget. Many requests were added to
current line items and did not need to be separated. Those consisted of an increase in overtime for training and development of
Programs/Committees and support costs for the Peer Support, Community Outreach, and CERT Programs. A new position has been
considered for the past two years. Fire Chief Lawler has determined that a Staff Capacity Assessment is needed to determine what
type of position would be most beneficial at this time for the District as a whole. The goal is to complete this assessment for each
classification and determine high-level priorities and intent for each, including a workload review and Division Assessment for staffing
increase needs. There is a current need for additional staffing, and the request will be brought forward through the appropriate
channels. An amended budget will be needed for including any salary increases.



SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE

Budget Summary Revenue Narrative

Line 1 Property Taxes: Many discussions have been held throughout the year regarding property tax revenue. The District completed a
comprehensive property tax analysis, and it was determined that the Preliminary Budget's property tax revenue could be based on actual trends.
Once valuation assessments are completed and analyzed, this will be updated during the final budget. Finance Staff will be breaking this line item out
in the Quarterly Financial Updates to show delinquent assessments. The District will see a decrease in property tax by approximately $52,000 due to
the January 2024 flooding in San Diego.

Line 2 Benefit Assessments Revenue: The Preliminary Budget is based on the approved resolutions at the May 8, 2024, Regular Board Meeting.
These revenues are analyzed and provided to the Board of Directors before any Benefit Assessment increase is approved.

Line 3 AMR Contract and Other Miscellaneous Revenue: Includes plan check fees, inspection fees, AMR contract and miscellaneous
reimbursements.

Line 4 Interest Income: This income mainly consists of the County Investment Pool and the Public Agency Self-Insurance System (PASIS).

Page450f141



]

SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE

Detailed Expense Budget Narrative

The Detailed Expense Budget is shown by Division and account code to help pull actual expenditure data into the
budget. This format will be beneficial in moving forward with continued transparency, allowing Finance Staff to
analyze trends and determine the financial information needed to implement the new accounting software.

Line 1-2 Director Fees: Meeting fees for the Board of Directors and Medicare/Social Security payroll liabilities. Decrease of budget due to budgeting
based on trends.

Line 3 Prior Director Benefits: Past Directors' Health Insurance costs have decreased due to actual benefit payments in the year.
Line 4 Retiree Benefits: Retiree health insurance costs have decreased due to Retirees enrolling in Medicare and some coming off the planar.

Line 5-6 Employee Salaries: Based on approved Salary Schedules for FY 2023/2024 through the MOUs and Terms of Employment. This line item
is based on salaries only and not a rolled-up cost. No significant increases will be seen until new salary rates are determined. Salaries are budgeted
as actuals based on each employee.

Line 7-13 Employee Overtime: Increases in overtime due to budget requests from the Peer/Chaplain Support Program and the Community Outreach
Program for annual meetings. Fire Prevention overtime increased due to work completed yearly for mandatory inspections outside of regular working
periods. The Finance Staff moved FLSA out of employee salaries to better track actual costs and increased overtime based on a trend analysis
considering an average of three years of overtime usage, excluding any COVID-19 overtime and strike team/overhead assignments. The District
assists the State of California during major wildfires and emergency responses throughout California. These costs are reimbursed and offset through
the Overtime Trend Analysis included in the Quarterly Financial Statements.

Line 14 Employee Benefits (Health Insurance): Health Insurance costs are averaged by yearly increases based on actual CalPERS costs.
Line 15-18 Employee Benefits (Retirement — Normal Costs): Increases/Decreases are based on salaries related to Classic and PEPRA
classifications and the CalPERS rates for the year. As Classic members retire, the normal costs will decrease, and the PEPRA costs will increase

with attrition. Finance staff will code these costs separately to present accurate information.

Line 19 Employee Benefits (Dental Insurance): Dental Insurance costs increase/decrease based on actuals.

Page 46 of141



Line 20 Employee Benefits (Uniform Allowance): Uniform Allowance per Memorandum of Understanding for employees.

Line 21 Employee Benefits (Vision Insurance): Vision Insurance costs increase/decrease based on actuals.

Line 22 Employee Benefits (Paramedic/EMT Recertification): Paramedic/EMT Recertification per Memorandum of Understanding for employees.
Line 23 Financial Emergency Plan: This line item assists in planning for economic downturns and is tied to the Emergency Financial Plan. For more
information, see the Board of Director Financial Management Policy. This amount will change with the 2024/2025 Salary Schedules as a rolled-up
cost.

Line 24-25 UAL-Pension Payment: These costs are associated with the annual required payments to CalPERS for the Unfunded Annual Liability
(UAL) and 1959 Survivor Benefits. The CalPERS Valuation Report for the District provides more detailed information. These documents are located
on our website under District Financial Information. Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-32).

Line 26-27 Pension Bond — Reserve: These costs are associated with the strategy to pay off part of the CalPERS UAL through a private Lease
Revenue Bond to help stabilize increasing annual pension costs. The District continues researching strategies to ensure long-term financial stability
for pension costs.

Line 28-30 Communications: This includes increased fees/equipment costs for radios and computer service equipment. Equipment is being replaced
on an ongoing basis.

Line 31-32 Equipment Maintenance: This includes maintaining all fire equipment at the stations and apparatus.
Line 33-34 Facilities Maintenance: This includes the ongoing maintenance of all station facilities (eight fire stations and HQ Administrative Building).

Line 35 Fuel: This includes the fuel expense for all District operations. The increase is based on trend analysis and future cost assumptions per
economic monitoring.

Line 36 Fleet Maintenance: This includes the costs for all fleet maintenance and repairs for the District. Line item 36 has increased due to the shift
of the expenses from professional services (the fleet maintenance contract ended). These costs will be monitored and analyzed monthly.

Line 37 Housekeeping Supplies: Based on actuals and trend analysis.
Line 38 Medical Supplies: Based on actuals and trend analysis.
Line 39-40 Insurance: The final budget will provide Liability insurance rates reflecting any premium increases anticipated for the year. The District

continues to monitor and assess its need to increase the budget for Workers’ Compensation. The District uses a trend of three years of actuals spent
for this line item. FAIRA and PASIS JPA continue to provide the most competitive rates and the best coverage for Fire/EMS services.

Page47of141



Line 41-49 Minor Equipment: Administrative Staff requests an increase in line item 43 due to the Enterprise Resource Planning System request,
which will allow one system for all administrative needs. No other analytical platform would be needed for Administrative Support Services. Fire
Prevention Software (line 44) and Operations Analytics Software (line 45) do not have an increase in the line item from last year; however, for better
line-item acknowledgment, we moved the software costs under minor equipment and out of line item 85 & 86 Memberships and Subscriptions. The
request for line 50 to be increased is based on replacement costs on an as-needed basis for fire service equipment.

Line 50 Physical Fitness Equipment: All stations have been assessed, and each station will be put on a replacement schedule for the equipment—
no increase is being requested.

Line 51 Office Supplies: Office supplies for all District needs. The division/Program/Committee does not separate these costs because it does not
need those analytics separated.

Line 52-55 Personnel Development: Personnel Development includes education/tuition reimbursements, discretionary training for all personnel,
and training for programs/committees when approved.

Line 56-57 Wellness Services: Costs associated with the Wellness Program, available to all employees, and the Employee Assistance Program,
which provides services for all employees through several different avenues. Wellness in the fire service continues to be at the forefront of discussions
within the District and throughout California.

Line 58-65 Professional Services: These services include dispatching, legal counsel, audit fees, support services costs (i.e., fees paid to the COSD,
scanning projects), monitoring fees for bond issuance, training annual assessments, and training fees. Line 63 did include the previous fleet
maintenance contract but was removed, and fleet costs are now under Line 36 Fleet Maintenance. A new line item has been included for Nurse
Navigator (line 59). The entire Central Zone is adopting Nurse Navigator, becoming a nationally recognized program. The purpose of the Nurse
Navigator is to divert non-emergency calls to a nurse so that the 9-11 System is not overstressed. This will help reduce call volumes throughout the
Central Zone. Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-31).

Line 66 Property Tax Refunds: This line item accounts for any refund fees reduced from property tax received through the County of San Diego Tax
Apportionment. These costs are separated to ensure accurate reporting of property tax revenue.

Line 67 Property Tax Administrative Cost: This line item accounts for any administrative fees reduced from property tax received through the
County of San Diego Tax Apportionment. These costs are separated to ensure accurate reporting of property tax revenue.

Line 68-71 Publications and Media: Required publications (public notices and hearings) and media necessities (flyers, programs) separated by
Division. The District is working to transition some administrative management items into the correct division (i.e., RFP notice costs for facilities will
be moved into the Health & Safety Division under the Facilities Management Program).

Line 72-73 Rents and Leases: Equipment rent and leases for miscellaneous equipment (copier/printer) and Station 19 Lease of Property, which has
a 5% CPI increase.

Line 74-76 Safety Clothing: No increase in safety clothing budget per trend analysis and yearly needs.

Page 48 of 141



Line 77-81 Uniforms: Uniform Reimbursement per Memorandum of Understanding and Terms of Employment for employees. Line item #79 was
decreased based on actuals.

Line 82-93 District Support Costs: Miscellaneous support costs for providing necessary services for each division of the District. These include
permitting fees, election costs, membership and subscription fees, and recruitment materials.

Line 94-96 Travel Expenses: These line items are for meeting costs associated with miscellaneous associations that personnel are assigned to and
travel costs for professional development for conferences for all divisions. This line item has been put into one line item for better tracking of the
expenses, and a member of the Executive Staff must approve all travel.

Line 97-106 Utilities: The increase is based on actuals and trend analysis. Finance Staff are separating all utilities per station for continued trend
analysis based on actuals.

Page49of141



FY 25 Budgeted Expenses by Division

Training, 697,200, 2%

Operations, 3,439,800, 12%

Administration, 1,908,350, 7%

Prevention, 52,100,
0.2%

Salaries & Benefits,
22,779,070 , 79%

Page 50 of 141



DIVISION UPDATES
ADMINISTRATION

The Administrative Division of San Miguel Fire & Rescue is responsible for all adjunct services supporting fire personnel, the District’s citizens, and businesses. It integrates the
goals and objectives established by the Board of Directors and Fire Chief for all divisions of the District, manages monetary and human resources, and establishes department
policies and procedures in accordance with state and local laws. This division shows what dedicated public servants can do to make a local government successful.

Administrative Services:
Oversees all administrative functions within the department and plays a key role in support services for Operations, Health and Safety/EMS, and Fire Prevention.

Fiscal Oversight:

Responsible for the oversight of fiscal management and policies and procedures related to finances. Dedicated to long-term financial planning and continuously reviewing
strategies that will assist in sustainability for the District. Proper use of taxpayer's dollars is of the utmost importance. Administration monitors revenues and expenditures to
ensure that funds are allocated efficiently and spent in accordance with approved financial plans. This division ensures that public resources are managed responsibly, identifying
any discrepancies or financial risks and recommending adjustments to maintain fiscal sustainability.

Enterprise Resource Planning:

The implementation of an Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system is currently being configured. This type of software helps the District manage its day-to-day operations
and includes expense management and reporting tools. It will streamline processes and allow us to deliver better and faster administrative assistance to the public with greater
transparency and accessibility. It will also allow the administrative professionals who proudly service San Miguel Fire &Rescue to have sustainable office practices and
consistency in process management.

Human Resources:

Manages employee recruitment, hiring, and onboarding processes, ensuring that the workforce aligns with community needs and organizational goals. Oversees employee
relations, benefits administration, and compliance with labor laws to maintain a positive and legally sound work environment. Administration plays a critical role in staff
development, training, and performance management to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of public service daily.

Budget Management:
The Operations Division also plays a significant role in managing a portion of the District's budget. We carefully allocate resources to ensure that all employees have the tools,
firefighting gear, and training they need to perform their duties safely, aggressively, and efficiently.




DIVISION UPDATES
FIRE PREVENTION

The Fire Prevention Division (FP) continues to work on multiple aspects of reducing risks in our jurisdiction including:

State-Mandated Inspections:
Fire Prevention is tasked with conducting inspections of Educational Group E and Residential Group R occupancies. During the period of June 14, 2023 — June 5, 2024, FP
inspected all 321 of these occupancies in the District, which is a 100% rate of compliance.

Weed Abatement:

San Miguel Fire District continues to partner with Fire Prevention Services, Inc. to enforce FP’s weed abatement standards, ensuring property owners with hazardous dry brush
do not pose a hazard to neighboring properties. Out of the District’s entire service area of over 50 square miles, only 21 vacant parcels and 15 improved parcels failed to get into
compliance and went into forced abatement.

Plan Review and New Construction:

During Fiscal Year 2023/2024, FP conducted 605 plan reviews. Just a couple
months into FY2024/2025, FP has already completed 146 plan reviews.
Year over year, the number of construction projects coming across our front
counter continues to steadily increase.

Community Facilities District:

Incoming construction plans for certain occupancies, like commercial buildings
and multi-family dwellings, pose an increase in potential 9-1-1 responses.

To offset this growth and increase in dwellings and people potentially needing
Fire services, these properties must annex into the Community Facilities District,
where the annual tax levied on the property helps to offset the added emergency
responses. Since CFD 2022-1’s establishment in 2022, the District has seen

6 annexations (annexation numbers 5 and 6 are being finalized tonight).

Cost Recovery / Cost Neutrality:
FP continues to adjust fees as the cost for providing services steadily increases. The largest source of offsetting FP costs comes from County Fire Mitigation Program Fees and
in-house plan review fees. Both County and in-house fees are assessed annually and increased based on multiple factors.

Modernization:

FP strives to work efficiently and accurately. By implementing new software programs, streamlining processes, and investing on new and reliable vehicles, we are utilizing all of
the tools available to keep up with the increasing workload.

Page 52 of 141



DIVISION UPDATES
OPERATIONS

The Operations Division of the San Miguel Fire District plays a critical role in ensuring that the operational needs of our District and employees are met with the highest standards
of professionalism and efficiency. Our Division is responsible for a wide range of essential functions that keep our department running smoothly and effectively.

Fleet Management and Maintenance:
Operations oversees the procurement, maintenance, and repair of all District apparatus and vehicles. We work closely with our fleet mechanic to manage the replacement cycle
and determine the needs of our fleet, ensuring that our vehicles are always in optimal condition to respond to emergencies.

Training and Development:

The Operations Division also manages the Training Division, led by a Battalion Chief and supported by a cadre of Training Officers. This team is tasked with hiring, promoting,
evaluating, and testing personnel. We track certifications and licenses, develop training programs, and create training tracks for succession planning. Our goal is to ensure that
every member of the San Miguel Fire District has the skills and knowledge to perform their duties safely and efficiently.

Vendor Contracts and Dispatch Coordination:
We ensure that reliable contracts are established with vendors and work closely with dispatch to maintain industry-standard on-scene times of 8 minutes or less, 90% of the time.
This collaboration is vital in providing timely and effective responses to emergencies.

Resource Management and Staffing:
Operations ensures that staffing levels are adequate and that the deployment of resources - whether within our local area, across San Diego County, statewide, or even out-of-
state - is timely, manageable, and effective. We continuously assess and adjust our resource allocation to meet the dynamic needs of our community.

Budget Management:
The Operations Division also plays a significant role in managing a portion of the District's budget. We carefully allocate resources to ensure that all employees have the tools,
firefighting gear, and training they need to perform their duties safely, aggressively, and efficiently.

The Operations Division remains committed to enhancing the capabilities of our District and ensuring that all operational aspects of the San Miguel Fire District are executed to
the highest standards.

Page 53 of 141



DIVISION UPDATES
HEALTH & SAFETY/EMS

The Health and Safety (H&S) Division works to ensure every aspect of the District is progressing smoothly and follows all current OSHA laws and regulations. Most budgetary
outlay is associated with maintaining a safe and clean working environment for our employees. The H&S Division oversees and is responsible for several programs, and their
budgets, within the organization.

Facilities:
San Miguel has eight fire stations with a wide range of construction age and types. Housing fire crews 24 hours a day increases the wear and tear on facilities. Keeping up with
current workplace safety practices also adds a challenge to our staff.

Peer Support:
H&S oversees a team of peer support members that are tasked with serving as a resource to all employees as it pertains to mental wellness. San Miguel is active in the zone
and region with critical incident stress diffusion at the scene of traumatic incidents.

EMS Cadre:

H&S oversees all aspects of the EMS delivery system. Working closely with Operations, the EMS Cadre ensures the citizens of San Miguel are receiving the best pre-hospital
care possible. Medical devices are costly and are the most utilized pieces of equipment on our apparatus. A well-designed replacement plan has been developed for most
devices. Repairs remain a high cost of providing care to the citizens.

Community Outreach:
H&S oversees all aspects of community outreach, working to accurately and efficiently deliver information to the community. Community Outreach focuses on school visits and
station tours, and is currently working to expand our social media reach.

Recruitment:
H&S oversees recruitment teams that attend career days at local high schools, colleges and paramedic schools, making valuable contact with potential future

Station Open House In-house EMS Training

Page 54 of 141



Priority Division

] Board of Directors
2 Board of Directors
3 I sz/aries and Benefits

4 I sa/aries and Benefits

5 Salaries and Benefits
6 Salaries and Benefits

7 Salaries and Benefits

8 Admin Support Services
9 Salaries and Benefits

0 3 Fire Prevention

17 5  Board of Directors

2 2  Operations

13 3 Operations

4 - Salaries and Benefits

15 Salaries and Benefits
16 Salaries and Benefits
17 Salaries and Benefits
18 Salaries and Benefits

Page 55of 141

Program

Board of Directors
Board of Directors

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits
Community Outreach
Salaries and Benefits
Prevention

Board of Directors
Ops Management
Training Program

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Director Fees (5020)
Meetings
Medicare/Social Security

Prior Director Benefits (5010)
Past Directors - Health Insurance

Retiree Benefits (5012)
Health Insurance - Retirees

Employee Salaries (5050)
Base Salaries - Safety
Base Salaries - Non-Safety

Employee Overtime (5040)
Suppression Overtime
Community Outreach Overtime
FLSA

Prevention Overtime
Administrative Overtime
Facilities Overtime

District Training (All)

Employee Benefits (5031)
Health Insurance - Employees

Employee Benefits (5032)
Retirement - Safety - Classic
Retirement - Safety - PEPRA

Retirement - Non-Safety - Classic
Retirement - Non-Safety - PEPRA

2022/2023

FINAL
Budget

21,700
20,000
1,700

20,000
20,000

1,032,300
1,032,300

9,566,633
8,600,580
800,553

2,134,200
1,728,800
7,000
220,700
2,500

500
10,000
164,700

1,306,200
1,306,200

1,688,200
955,500
652,300

34,800
45,600

2023/2024

FINAL
Budget

21,700
20,000
1,700

22,300
22,300

1,503,100
1,503,100

10,072,950
9,087,580
810,500

2,736,100
2,109,800
10,000
218,800
2,500

500
10,000
384,500

1,425,700
1,425,700

1,947,800
1,174,300
677,700
54,200
41,600

2024/2025

PROPOSED
Budget

15,800
14,600
1,200

16,133
16,133

1,057,121
1,057,127

10,228,800
9,141,400
891,500

3,413,900
2,526,300
10,000
470,600
7,000

10,000
390,000

1,773,500
1,773,500

1,929,700
1,021,000
802,100
58,600
48,000

Increase/
(Decrease)

Budget FY 24
vs Budget FY
25 Amount

(5,900)
(5,400)
(500)

(6,167)
(6,167)

(445,973)
(445,973)

155,850
53,820
81,000

677,800
416,500
251,800
4,500
(500)

5,500

347,800
347,800

(18,100)
(153,300)
124,400
4,400
6,400

Percent

-21.2%
-21.0%
-29.4%

-21.71%
-21.7%

-29.7%
-29.7%

1.5%
0.6%
10.0%

24.8%
19.7%
0.0%
115.1%
180.0%
-100.0%
0.0%
1.4%

24.4%
24.4%

-0.9%
-13.1%
18.4%
8.1%
15.4%



Priority Division

19 - Salaries and Benefits
20 - Salaries and Benefits
21 - Salaries and Benefits
22 - Salaries and Benefits

23 2  Salaries and Benefits

24 Salaries and Benefits
25 Salaries and Benefits
26 Salaries and Benefits
27 Salaries and Benefits

28 I Operations

29 2  Operations

50 [ operations

31 WA Admin Support Services

32 2 Operations

Page 56 of 141

Program

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries and Benefits

Ops Management
Ops Management
Ops Management

Admin Management
Ops Management

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Employee Benefits (5033)
Dental Insurance

Employee Benefits (5036)
Uniform Allowance

Employee Benefits (5037)
Vision Insurance

Employee Benefits (5038)
Paramedic Recertification

Financial Emergency Plan (5201)
Financial Emergency Plan

Pension Benefit Costs (5030)
UAL Payment - CalPERS
Retirement - 1959 Survivor Benefit

Pension Bond - Reserve (5030)
Pension Restructuring - LRB
Pension Restructuring — Reserve

Communications (6010)

RCS Backbone Maint. & Fees
Radio Equip. and Maint.
Computer Service & Equip.

Equipment Maintenance (6020)
Scanner/Plotter Maint.
Fire Equipment Maint.

2022/2023

FINAL
Budget

84,300
84,300

56,700
56,700

10,400
10,400

208,705
208,705

1,425,175
1,416,775
8,400

2,600,000
1,058,850
1,541,150

196,000
119,000
52,000
25,000

95,300
600
94,700

2023/2024

FINAL
Budget

84,300
84,300

71,000
71,000

10,400
10,400

6,000
6,000

332,500
332,500

1,428,400
1,420,000
8,400

2,600,000
1,260,700
1,339,300

240,000
135,000
80,000
25,000

101,700
1,000
100,700

2024/2025

PROPOSED
Budget

90,549
90,549

71,000
71,000

10,400
10,400

6,000
6,000

332,500
332,500

1,666,461
1,658,061
8,400

2,600,000
1,439,600
1,160,400

260,000
150,000
80,000
30,000

101,000
1,000
100,000

Increase/
(Decrease)

Budget FY 24
vs Budget FY
25 Amount

6,249
6,249

238,061
238,061

178,900
(178,900)

20,000
15,000

5,000
(700)

(700)

Percent

1.8%
1.4%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

16.7%
16.8%
0.0%

0.0%
14.2%
-13.4%

8.3%
11.1%
0.0%
20.0%

-0.7%
0.0%
-0.7%



Priority Division

33 2  Health & Safety

34 3  Health & Safety

35 | overations

36 | overations

37 3  Health & Safety

38 | overations

39 Admin Support Services
40 Admin Support Services
41 3 Admin Support Services
42 N8| Admin Support Services
43 2  Fire Prevention

ez Operations

45 Health & Safety

46 Health & Safety

47 3 Operations

48 5  Operations

49 2 Operations

Page 57 of 141

Program

Facilities Management
Facilities Management

Fleet Management

Fleet Management

Facilities Management

Ops Management

Admin Management
Admin Management

Admin Management
Admin Management
Prevention

Ops Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Training Program
Explorer Program

Ops Management

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Facilities Maintenance (6030)
Facilities Maintenance
Station Improvement Program

Fuel (6031)
Fuel

Fleet Maintenance (6040)
Fleet Maint./Repairs Costs

Housekeeping Supplies (6050)
Cleaning/Household Supplies (all)

Medical Supplies (6070)
Medical Supplies

Insurance (6060)
FAIRA (Fire, Liability, Collision)
PASIS (Workers' Compensation)

Minor Equipment (6080)

I.T. Equipment

ERP Software

Fire Prevention Software
Inventory & Analytics Software
Appliance Replacement
Landscape Maint. Equipment
Training Props & Equip.

Safety Equip. (various)

Fire Service Equip.

2022/2023

FINAL
Budget

176,200
167,200
9,000

175,000
175,000

114,050
114,050

30,000
30,000

25,000
25,000

870,000
270,000
600,000

216,900
10,000
10,000

300
10,000
10,000

1,000
24,000
1,000
150,600

2023/2024

FINAL
Budget

189,000
180,000
9,000

250,000
250,000

114,050
114,050

35,000
35,000

35,000
35,000

907,260
307,260
600,000

231,300
10,000
300
10,000
10,000
1,000
35,000
1,000
170,000

2024/2025

PROPOSED
Budget

189,000
180,000
9,000

300,000
300,000

445,000
445,000

35,000
35,000

35,000
35,000

907,260
307,260
600,000

410,000
10,000
71,000
22,000
50,000
10,000
1,000
35,000
1,000

210,000

Increase/
(Decrease)

Budget FY 24
vs Budget FY
25 Amount

50,000
50,000

330,950
330,950

172,700

71,000
21,700
40,000

40,000

Percent

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

20.0%
20.0%

290.2%
290.2%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

12.8%
0.0%
100.0%
1233.3%
400.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
23.5%



Priority Division

50 [N Health & Satety

571 3 Admin Support Services
52 Operations

53 Operations

54 5  Operations

55 3  Health & Safety

56 2  Health & Safety

57 | Health & Satety

58 Operations
59 Operations
60 Admin Support Services
67 2 Admin Support Services
62 - Admin Support Services
63 Operations
64 2 Operations
65 2 Operations

66 [ Acmin Support Services

67 [ Acmin Support Services

Page 58 of 141

Program

Facilities Management

Admin Management

Training Program
Training Program
Explorer Program
Peer/Chaplain Support

Facilities Management
Facilities Management

Ops Management
Ops Management
Admin Management
Admin Management
Admin Management
Ops Management
Training Program
Training Program

Admin Management

Admin Management

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Physical Fitness (6083)
Physical Fitness Equip.

Office Supplies (6090)
Office Supplies/Equip.

Personnel Development (6100)
Education Reimb - All Employees
Discretionary Training Offset
Enrollment Fees & Training
Training & Outreach

Wellness Services (6105)
Wellness Program
Employee Assistance Program

Professional Services (6110)
HCFA Dispatching

Nurse Navigator

Consulting Costs (All)

Legal Counsel

Administrative Support Services
Professional Services

HTF Annual Assessment

FTES Tuition

Property Tax Refunds (6115)
Refunds - Property Taxes

Property Tax Admin Cost (6116)
Property Tax - Admin Charges

2022/2023

FINAL
Budget

8,000
8,000

20,560
20,560

50,200
20,000
25,000
2,800
2,400

145,600
123,600
22,000

1,526,000
841,100

75,000
80,000
110,600
334,800
71,000
13,500

150,000
150,000

250,000
250,000

2023/2024

FINAL
Budget

15,000
15,000

20,560
20,560

65,200
35,000
25,000
2,800
2,400

149,000
127,000
22,000

1,589,100
860,000

75,000
100,000
80,600
387,000
73,000
13,500

150,000
150,000

250,000
250,000

2024/2025

PROPOSED
Budget

15,000
15,000

20,600
20,600

69,350
35,000
25,000
2,800
6,550

149,000
127,000
22,000

1,321,500
903,000
25,000
75,000
100,000
80,000
40,000
85,000
13,500

200,000
200,000

250,000
250,000

Increase/
(Decrease)

Budget FY 24
vs Budget FY
25 Amount

40
40

(267,600)
43,000
25,000

(600)
(347,000)
12,000

50,000
50,000

Percent

0.0%
0.0%

0.2%
0.2%

6.4%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
172.9%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

-16.8%
5.0%
100.0%
0.0%
0.0%
-0.7%
-89.7%
16.4%
0.0%

33.3%
33.3%

0.0%
0.0%



Priority Division
68 3 Admin Support Services
69 Fire Prevention
70 Operations
71 3 Operations
72 - Admin Support Services
73 Admin Support Services
74 I Operations
75 3 Operations
76 5  Health & Safety
77 5  Admin Support Services
78 5  Fire Prevention
79 5  Operations
80 5  Health & Safety
81 5  Operations
&2 - Operations
83 Board of Directors
64 2 Admin Support Services
85 2 Fire Prevention
56 M operations
87 5  Operations
88 5  Operations
89 Operations
90 Operations
g1 5  Health & Safety

Page 59 of 141

Program

Admin Management
Prevention

Ops Management
Training Program

Admin Management
Admin Management

Ops Management
Reserve FF Program
Peer/Chaplain Support

Admin Management
Prevention

Ops Management
Peer/Chaplain Support
Explorer Program

Fleet Management
Board of Directors
Admin Management
Prevention

Ops Management
Training Program
Training Program
Reserve FF Program
Explorer Program
Peer/Chaplain Support

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Publications and Media (6120)
Publication & Media Needs
Publication & Media Needs
Publication & Media Needs
Publication & Media Needs

Rents and Leases (6130)
Equipment Rents & Leases
Station 19 Lease of Property (Rent)

Safety Clothing (6140)
Structure/Brush PPE Expense
Reserve Firefighter PPE Expense
Wildland Gear

Uniforms (6145)

Non Safety Uniforms
Uniform Expense

Class "A" Uniform Expense
Uniform Expense (Polos)
Uniform Expense

District Support Costs (6150)
Permits (HazMat, Fuel, etc.)
Election Costs (estimate)
Memberships and Subscriptions
Software & Subscriptions
Memberships and Subscriptions
Recruitment Materials/Supplies
Miscellaneous Expenses
Reserve FF Expenses

Explorer Fees & Expenses
Supplies & Misc Expenses

2022/2023

FINAL
Budget

24,560
600
6,260
500
17,200

43,300
8,600
34,700

152,500
137,000
13,800
1,700

31,000

31,000

253,750

40,000
104,700
19,700
36,100
200
10,050
21,700
1,400
2,000

2023/2024

FINAL
Budget

25,400
12,600
8,500
500
3,800

44,400
8,600
35,800

167,500
152,000
13,800
1,700

37,300
6,300

31,000

220,150

40,000
70,700
21,700
36,100
200
10,050
19,700
1,800
2,000

2024/2025

PROPOSED
Budget

25,400
12,600
8,500
500
3,800

46,190
8,600
37,590

167,500
152,000
13,800
1,700

29,200
14,000
4,500
7,500
200
3,000

137,050
10,000
40,000
20,000

500
10,000
5,000
10,050
19,700
1,800
2,000

Increase/
(Decrease)

Budget FY 24
vs Budget FY
25 Amount

(8,100)
7,700
4,500

(23,500)
200
3,000

(83,100)
10,000

(50,700)
(21,200)
(26,100)

4,800

Percent

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

4.0%
0.0%
5.0%

0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%

-21.7%
122.2%
100.0%
-75.8%
100.0%
100.0%

-31.1%
100.0%
0.0%
-11.7%
-97.7%
-72.3%
2400.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%



Priority Division

92 - Admin Support Services
93 Operations

94 5  Admin Support Services
95 Fire Prevention

96 Admin Support Services
97 2 Admin Support Services
98 Operations

99 Health & Safety

100 Health & Safety

101 Health & Safety

102 Health & Safety

103 Health & Safety

104 Health & Safety

105 Health & Safety

106 Health & Safety

Page 60 of 141

Program

Community Outreach
CERT

Admin Management
Prevention
Admin Management

Admin Management
Ops Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management
Facilities Management

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
2024/2025 Proposed Budget

Account Description

Program Development
Support Costs

Meeting & Travel Expenses (6160)
Administrative Meetings

Southern California FPO Meetings
Professional Development

Utilities (6170)

iPad & IT

Cell Phone Service & Equip
Utilities - Station 14
Utilities - Station 15
Utilities - Station 16
Utilities - Station 18
Utilities - Station 19
Utilities - Station 21
Utilities - Station 22
Utilities - Station 23

Total Budget Expense

Total Expense by Division
Board of Directors
Salaries and Benefits
Admin Support Services
Fire Prevention
Operations

Health & Safety

Total Budget Expense by Division/Program

2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025 Increase/
(Decrease)
FINAL FINAL PROPOSED  DuduetFY 24
Budget Budget Budget vs Budget FY
25 Amount
17,000 17,000 16,000 (1,000)
900 900 2,000 1,100
33,700 33,700 51,100 17,400
1,000 1,000 1,000 -
100 100 100 -
32,600 32,600 50,000 17,400
274,800 404,700 500,500 95,800
7,400 7,400 7,400 -
267,400 248,100 248,100 -
- 26,300 30,000 3,700
- 41,600 60,000 18,400
- 18,600 25,000 6,400
- 14,200 50,000 35,800
- 8,500 15,000 6,500
- 7,400 15,000 7,600
- 21,700 30,000 8,300
- 10,900 20,000 9,100
S 25016933 § 27543510 $ 28876520 S 1,332,950
62,200 62,200 55,800 (6,400)
19,948,113 21,833,050 22,779,070 946,020
1,790,360 1,796,420 1,892,050 95,630
28,860 33,100 42,600 9,500
2,810,500 3,264,500 3,452,550 188,050
376,900 554,300 654,450 100,150
$ 25,016,933 $ 21,543,570 $ 28,876,520 $ 1,332,950

Percent

-5.9%
122.2%

51.6%
0.0%
0.0%

53.4%

23.7%
0.0%
0.0%
14.1%
44.2%
34.4%
252.1%
76.5%
102.7%
38.2%

83.5%

4.8%

-10.3%
4.3%
5.3%

28.7%
5.8%
18.1%

4.8%



Reserve Fund Information

This section of the budget provides the readers with
detailed information related to budget forecasting
and Cash Reserve Projections, along with the
Draft Final Budget requests for the Fiscal Year
2024-2025 for all Reserve Funds.

Page 61 0f141



Seventeenth Edition

Accounting for
overnmental &

District Reserve
Fund Expenditures

Expenses that come out of
the Reserve Funds are
budgeted differently than
General Fund expenditures.
These expenditures follow
specific replacement
schedules and cannot be
budgeted unless there is
money set aside for the
purchase in its assighed
account.

Page 62 0f 141




Reserve Fund Balances
FY 2024-2025

Continaenc Long-Term  Uncompensated GRAND TOTAL
9eNcy | iabilities Leave OF CASH
BALANCES
Cash Balance | ¢4 103803 | $1,555,237 $1,063,883 $13,722,923
06/30/24 ) ) 3 ) ) ) H H
Year End
Transfers In Currently Under Review for Finalization $0
(06/30/24)
Year End
Transfers Out ($410,800) ($410,800)
(06/30/24)
Misc. Revenue .
07/01/24 $885,696 $885,696
Budgeted
Expenses ($100,000) ($100,000)
2024/2025
CashBalance | ¢4 478600 | §1,555,237 $1,063,883 $14,097,819
06/30/25 ) ) H ) ) t ) H)

* ARPA Funds

Page 63 of 141



Reserve Fund Balances
FY 2024-2025

Community . . Workers' Fire Sl
Fixed Capital . . e TOTAL
Facilities Equi . Facilities Vehicle Compensatio Mitigation
Fund quipment Equipment n Fees OF CASH
BALANCES
Cagg/gas/l;zce $8,911 | $1,293,512 | $805,326 | $4,155314 | $2,888,672 | $532,969 | $699,648 |$10,384,352
Year End
Transfers In Currently Under Review for Finalization $0
(06/30/24)
Year End
Transfers Out ($212,000) ($149,800) ($752,400) | ($401,500) ($1,515,700)
(06/30/24)
Misc.
Revenue $300,004 * | $31,000 ** $331,004
07/01/24
Budgeted
Expenses ($725,325) ($320,000) ($4,450,000) | ($500,000) ($195,000) |($6,190,325)
2024/2025
Cagglggllggce $8,911 | $356,187 | $335,526 -$747,082 | $2,018,172 | $532,969 | $504,648 | $3,009,331
* ARPA Funds ** Vehicle Surplus

Page 64 of 141



Contingency
Fund
Balance

As of June 30,2024...........oe o e $10,693,003
FY 2024-25 Budgeted General Fund Expenses...........ccccvievvivinnnnnn. $28,876,520
Contingency Fund Percentage of Budgeted Expenses ..................... 37.03%

Page 65 of 141



Reserve Fund Expenditure Narrative

Per the Board of Director Policy Manual, Subsection 802.1 Fiscal Management and Responsibility, some Reserve Fund purchases require
Board of Director approval prior to moving forward with the procurement process. These items will be placed on the agenda under "Action Item"
for approval.

All Facilities Replacement/Renovation Requests are per the Facilities Condition Assessment and must be bid at prevailing wage.
These items will follow the formal bid process and be sent out as a Request For Proposal ("RFP").

Contingency Reserve Fund:

The Administrative Division is transitioning its Accounting Software to an Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERP) approved by the BOD in Fiscal
Year 2022-2023. After multiple demos, research, and discussions with other special districts, it was determined that a consultant would be needed
to implement the system. This cost includes the implementation fees from the software vendor as well. The new system will also reduce software
costs in other administrative areas within the budget. The yearly amount of this system is approximately $71,000, which has been budgeted through
the General Fund. This system will move many manual related tasks to be completed in the system, including, but not limited to, the following: time
off requests, timesheet approvals, requisition requests/approvals, online payment source for customers, line-item budgetary tracking to actuals,
forecasting trends, budgetary request submission, human resources components, grant tracking, workers’ compensation claim tracking, more
automation in payroll processing, including the overtime analysis. All these components are currently being done using spreadsheets by administrative
staff. Expenditures for this request will be on an as-needed basis, not to exceed $100,000.

Vehicle Replacement Fund:
Type | Engine Refurbishment — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-25).

Emergency Command Vehicle — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-26).
Staff Vehicles (Fire Prevention) — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-27).

Apparatus — Major Repairs are budgeted ongoing for emergency repairs if needed throughout the year to stabilize the General Fund.

Capital Equipment Fund:
(3) Zoll X Series Advanced Cardiac Monitors — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-28).

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-29).

A scanner/printer is being requested to replace outdated equipment and allow plans to be scanned as the district progresses toward a fully digitized
plan check process.

Page 66 of 141



Capital Equipment Fund (Continued):

CradlePoint Equipment and Services is a hew request to the budget. CradlePoint R1900 router with (5G modems) is the standard for wireless routers
and modems used in the emergency industry. This product improves the speed and coverage of our communication between the engines and Central
Dispatch, with real-time monitoring, remote repair, and state-of-the-art security provided with NET Cloud Mobile monitoring. This will upgrade the
abilities of the engine to receive and transfer information up to 3x faster, improve their WIFI coverage by 35%, and the product is warranty for three
years with options to continue the warranty for up to nine years.

Fixed Equipment Fund:

Station HVAC System Upgrades (Stations 14, 15, 16, & 22) have been added to the final budget. The recent heat wave stressed several air
conditioning units in the district at four of our stations. An evaluation was performed by our A/C service provider. it was determined that the cost of
repairs would be a poor investment due to the age of the units as they approach the end of their service life. Climate-controlled living and sleeping
areas are a basic necessity for our employees.

Solar Equipment installation was budgeted for Fiscal Year 2023/2024; however, this project is still ongoing. The budgetary request is based on the
approved contract in Fiscal Year 2023-2024.

Station Alerting Upgrades was budgeted for Fiscal Year 2023/2024; however, this project is still ongoing.

If needed, Overhead Door Replacement and Asphalt/Concrete Work is based on emergency replacement.

Facilities Replacement/Renovations Fund:

** \With the ongoing Facilities Replacement and Renovations, the District will have dropped below its minimum funding reserve amount for
Fiscal Year 2024/2025. There is enough money for the requested budgeted items; however, it brings the reserve fund to less than $250,000.
This is before any end-of-the-year transfers occurring for Fiscal Year 2023/2024. Chief Lawler is working on funding opportunities for
facilities replacement/renovations.

Station 21 Physical Fitness Room/Wall Repair — Approved by Resolution during Preliminary Budget Adoption (Resolution 24-30).

Station 23's Bathrooms need to be remodeled per the Facilities Condition Assessment. This request is being reviewed and will be brought forward
for consideration of an RFP at a later date.

District Facilities Security (all stations) Project to review and provide additional security measures for the stations. This request is being reviewed and
will be brought forward for consideration of an RFP at a later date.

Shop Dedication Project for Bob Houston, San Miguel Mechanic. Mechanic Bob Houston was a pillar in the fire mechanic industry, and the shop's
dedication will allow his memory to be honored.

HQ/Station 15 Landscaping is a request to finish the renovation. This request is being reviewed and will be brought forward for consideration of an
RFP at a later date.

Station 18 Renovation Final Phase of Il, beginning phases of 11l & IV.

Facility Major Repairs/Emergency Needs are done on an as-needed basis.

Page 67 of 141



SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE
2024/2025 Proposed Reserve Fund Expenditures

THESE EXPENDITURES ARE COMMITTED IN THE BUDGET & PURCHASED THROUGHOUT THE YEAR

THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THESE ITEMS WILL BE PROCURED

Contingency Reserve Fund
Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERP) Implementation
Board Room & Conference Room IT Equipment
Total Contingency Reserve Expenditures

Vehicle Replacement Fund
Type 1 Engine Refurbishment (Request for Refurbishment #3)
Apparatus Type 1 Engine
Type 1 Engine Equipment
Emergency Response Vehicle (Fully Outfitted, including lights)
Type 1 Engine Refurbishment (Requested in FY 22/23)
Type 1 Engine Refurbishment (New Request)
Apparatus - Major Repairs
Total Vehicle Replacement Expenditures

Capital Equipment Fund
(3) Zoll X Series Advanced Cardiac Monitors
Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
Scanner/Printer
CradlePoint Equipment
Total Capital Equipment Expenditures

Fixed Equipment Fund

Station HVAC System Upgrade (Stations 14, 15, 16 & 22)
Solar Equipment (Stations 14)

Solar Equipment (Stations 22)

Solar Equipment (Stations 23)

Station Alerting Replacement (Stations 14,15,19,21,22,23)
Overhead Door Replacement

Asphalt/Concrete Work

Page 68 of 141

2024/2025
2023/2024 PROPOSED Comments/Justification
FINAL Budget
Budget
100,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
200,000 -
$ 200,000 100,000
450,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
975,000 -
300,000
130,000
325,000
350,000 -
50,000 50,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
$ 230,000 500,000
135,000 150,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
110,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
10,000 Approved in Preliminary Budget
50,000 New request
$ 135,000 320,000
40,000 115,000 New Request - Based on Current Assessment
80,000 176,070 Approved Contract in FY 2023-24
80,000 156,935 Approved Contract in FY 2023-24
40,000 87,910 Approved Contract in FY 2023-24
300,000 137,410 Remaining Balance of Project
22,000 22,000 Emergency Replacement (if needed)
15,000 30,000 Emergency Replacement (if needed)




SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE
2024/2025 Proposed Reserve Fund Expenditures

THESE EXPENDITURES ARE COMMITTED IN THE BUDGET & PURCHASED THROUGHOUT THE YEAR
THERE IS NO GUARANTEE THESE ITEMS WILL BE PROCURED

Fixed Equipment Fund Continued

Lease Payment - Solar Equipment | 236,000 | | - | Paid off in Last Fiscal Year

Total Fixed Equipment Expenditures  $ 813,000 $ 725,325

Facilities Replacement/Renovation Fund

Station 21 Physical Fitness Room/Wall Repair 50,000 Per Facilities Condition Assessment
Station 23 Bathrooms Remodel 100,000 Per Facilities Condition Assessment
District Facilities Security (all stations) 55,000 Upgrade Security Measures

Shop Dedication Project 5,000 Request to Complete Dedication Project
HQ/Station 15 - Exterior Renovation/Landscaping 150,000 Request to finish HQ/Station 15 Renovation
Station 16 Renovation 1,000,000 390,000 In Progress From Last Fiscal Year
Facility - Major Repairs/Emergency Needs 100,000 200,000 For Major/Emergency Repairs
Station 23 Kitchen Remodel 75,000 Completed in FY 2023-24

Station 18 Renovation 810,000 3,500,000 Phase Il, Ill, and IV - Estimated Cost

Total Facilities Replacement/Renovations Expenditures  $ 1,985,000 $ 4,450,000

Fire Mitigation Fee Fund

(2) Fire Prevention Vehicles 120,000 Approved by BOD through Fire Mitigation Fee Plan
Emergency Response Vehicle (Fully Outfitted, including lights) 75,000 Approved by BOD through Fire Mitigation Fee Plan
Total Fire Mitigation Fee Expenditures  $ - $ 195,000

Total Reserve Fund Expenditures |$ 5263000 | [$ 6,290,325 |

Per the Board of Director Policy Manual, Subsection 802.1 Fiscal Management and Responsibility, some Reserve Fund purchases require Board of Director approval prior to
moving forward with the procurement process. These items have been placed on the agenda under "Action Item" for approval.

Page 69 of 141



Class

Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Fixed Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment
Capital Equipment

Page 700f 141

[cNeoNoloNolololNololoNololNololoNeolNololNolollolNolNololNolNoNoelNololNoelNololNollololollolNollollollao]

Asset Description

1000 gal. Fuel Tank / FS-15 GAS

500 Gal. Fuel Tank / FS-18 DIESEL
500 gal. Fuel Tank / FS-15 DIESEL
500 gal. Fuel Tank / FS-23 DIESEL
500 gal. Fuel Tank / FS-16 DIESEL
Cabinets / PPE FS-21

Diesel Exhaust System (Station 21)
Diesel Exhaust System Station 22)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 23)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 18)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 19)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 15)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 14)
Diesel Exhaust System (Station 16)
PPE-Extractor / FS-15
PPE-Extractor / FS-14
PPE-Extractor / FS-16

HVAC Control System (Station 15)
HVAC Control System (Station 14)
HVAC Control System (Station 16)
HVAC Control System (Station 18)
HVAC Control System (Station 19)
HVAC Control System (Station 21)
HVAC Control System (Station 22)
HVAC Control System (Station 23)
Voting/Recording System (HQ)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
Thermal Imaging Cameras (FLIR-K65)
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56180
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56182
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 52892
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56183
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56185
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56184
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56649
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56181
SENSIT Gas Monitor / Serial # 56648

PP PPN PR PP D PP DN DL DR PN PP D PPN PPN PP AR PR

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Replacement Schedule

Original
Purchase
Price
15,000
32,625
9,250
9,250
9,250
10,033
21,875
21,875
41,715
20,395
27,915
70,000
19,682
19,682
8,838
8,768
9,613
21,900
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
5,450
22,346
16,861
16,861
7,428
7,428
7,428
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858
3,858

Replacement
Life

35
35
35

Q0 00 00 0O 00 CO 0O Co 0o

PR P AN ADAAPAPAAADARAAAADDAR AP ARDDD L PPN N PPN NN R

Current Est. Replacement Cost

60,000
60,000
60,000
60,000
60,000
15,000
45,000
45,000
65,000
45,000
45,000
70,000
45,000
45,000
15,000
15,000
15,000
50,000
25,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
30,000
150,000
24,000
16,000
16,000
8,000
8,000
8,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
5,000

33,264
33,264
33,264
33,264
33,264

166,321

2025

2026




San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Replacement Schedule

Original
Class Asset Description Purchase Repl?_‘.:f ment Current Est. Replacement Cost 2025 2026
Price e
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-14 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-15 $ 5,555 20 $ 60,000 71,286 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-16 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-18 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-19 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-21 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-22 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Alerting System - FS-23 $ 5,555 20 $ 45,000 53,465 - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 B/A Compressor (MAKO) (Station 18) $ 12,000 15 $ 60,000 - - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 B/A Compressor (BAUER) (Station 14) $ 50,388 15 $ 60,000 - - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-14 Diesel $ 40,000 35 $ 75,000 - - 105,869 -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-15 Diesel $ 30,000 35 $ 75,000 - - 105,869 -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-16 Diesel $ 30,000 35 $ 75,000 - - 105,869 -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-19 LPG $ 38,102 45 $ 75,000 - - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-18 Diesel $ 10,000 35 $ 75,000 - - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-21 LPG $ 38,102 45 $ 75,000 - - - -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-22 Disel $ 30,000 35 $ 75,000 - - 105,869 -
Fixed Equipment 1 Emergency Backup Generator FS-23 LPG $ 38,102 45 $ 75,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Rescue Tool Gas Power (Halmatro)1131-1132 $ 47,380 15 $ 50,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Rescue Tool Gas Power (Holmatro)1113-14-15 $ 20,326 15 $ 50,000 - 64,751 - -
Capital Equipment 1 Rescue Tool Battery Power (Holmatro)1136-1137 $ 34,211 18 $ 50,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Rescue Tool Gas Power (Holmatro)1135 $ 28,133 15 $ 25,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Rescue Tool Gas Power (Holmatro)1112 $ 7,800 15 $ 25,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Scott airpac X-3(2018 edition) $ 568,695 10 $ 651,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Scott 30 min Cyclinders (4500) $ 15,810 15 $ 18,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 1 Scott Voice Amplifiers $ 19,050 15 $ 20,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2010 FORD Pick Up(CERT)(1023) $ 27,842 25 $ 75,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2003 FERRARA (RERSRVE) 1120 $ 385,000 17 - - - -
Fleet 2 2004 FERRAEA (RESERVE) 1121 $ 385,000 17 - - - -
Fleet 2 2023 KME $ 880,000 7 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2023 KME $ 880,000 7 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 102 x 20 SuperCoachTrailer (CERT-1024) $ 18,492 25 $ 45,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 1997 International Navistar(BR46) (1111) $ 270,126 20 - - - -
Fleet 2 2005 Pierce FRONT LINE (E-23)(1115) $ 438,196 17 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2005 Pierce (RESERVE) (1113) $ 385,296 17 - - - -
Fleet 2 2005 Pierce (RESERVE)(1114) $ 438,196 17 - - - -
Fleet 2 2006 Expedition (log46)(1019) $ 15,000 25 $ 60,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2007 Pierce FRONT LINE (E21)(1116) $ 438,852 20 $ 960,000 - - - 1,546,090
Fleet 2 2007 Pierce FRONT LINE (E22)(1117) $ 438,852 20 $ 960,000 - - - 1,546,090
Fleet 2 2008 Ford F350 (Service Truck)(1016) $ 26,994 25 $ 135,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2012 Chevrolet (1025) $ 31,085 25 $ 135,000 - - - -

Page 710f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Replacement Schedule

Original
Class Asset Description Purchase Repli(;e ment Current Est. Replacement Cost 2025 2026
Price e
Fleet 2 2014 4x4 Brush Engine (BR14(1130) $ 270,121 17 $ 650,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2014 4x4 Brush Engine (BR23)(1129) $ 270,121 17 $ 650,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2016 F-250 4WD XLT (B6 Reserve-R1) $ 55,509 17 $ 145,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2017 Ford Focus (admin)(1030) $ 24,887 20 $ 50,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2017 Ford Police Interceptor (1029) $ 26,888 17 $ 135,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2017 Spartan (E18)(1132) $ 576,260 17 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2017 Spartan (E19)(1131) $ 576,260 17 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2018 Chevrolet Tahoe (4603)(1031) $ 60,330 17 $ 145,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2019 F250 4X4 (B6) (1033) $ 133,231 17 $ 145,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2019 Ford Explorer( Fire-P) (1032) $ 31,243 17 $ 70,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2019 Pierce (E14) (1133) $ 814,526 17 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2019 Pierce (E16)(1134) $ 814,526 17 $ 960,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2021 Chevrolet Tahoe (4602)(1034) $ 55,109 17 $ 135,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 1999 PIERCE LADDER TRUCK 215(1112) $ 528,162 20 - - - -
Fleet 2 2019 PIERCE LADDER TRUCK-15 (1135) $ 650,000 17 $ 1,100,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 2023 Chevy Silverado Z-71 1036 $75, 000 17 $ 135,000 - - - -
Fleet 2 1996 EONE LIGHT & AIR 1109 $ 305,000 30 $ 600,000 - - 878,460 -
Capital Equipment 3 (2) X-Series Zoll Monitors $ 72,795 10 $ 90,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 3 (2) X-Series Zoll Monitors $ 71,295 10 $ 90,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 3 X Series Zoll Monitor $ 225,600 10 $ 360,000 416,025 - - -
Capital Equipment 3 X Series Defibrillator Monitor $ 28,200 10 $ 45,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 3 Stryker LUCAS 3 Chest Compression System $ 90,000 10 $ 90,000 - - - -
Capital Equipment 3 PPE Bulk Replacement $ 720,000 10 $ 950,000 - - - 1,363,848
Facilities Fire Station 22 4,966,270 66,548 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 19 563,150 8,383 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 16 Storage 79,394 1,905 - - -
Facilities Fleet Maintenance Building 5,407,248 161,136 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 19 App Bay 150,063 6,136 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 23 2,979,401 137,648 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 14 5,864,515 277,567 - - -
Facilities HQ/Fire Station 15 22,229,630 1,200,400 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 16 6,165,259 347,891 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 21 1,686,874 96,557 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 18 App Bay 369,011 30,407 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 18 Admin/Living Quarters 1,382,494 138,457 - - -
Facilities Fire Station 23 Storage 11,872 11,872 - - -
Facilities FCA Reinvestment Scenario 3 - 1,776,434 1,835,057 1,895,614

Page 72 0f 141



INFORMATIONAL DATA

San Miguel Fire & Rescue
Replacement Schedule

Current Est. Replacement Cost 2025 2026
TOTAL $ 69,809,181 $ 3,956,842 $ 1,847,260 $ 3,450,434 $ 6,370,668
Fleet $ 13,050,000 $ - $ - $ 878,460 $ 3,092,179
Fixed Equipment $ 2,265,000 $ 1,049,838 $ - $ 718,544 $ -
Capital Equipment $ 2,639,000 $ 416,025 $ 64,751 $ 12,295 $ 1,376,794
Facilities $ 51,855,181 $ 2,484,907 $ 1,776,434 $ 1,835,057 $ 1,895,614
AVERAGE (Rolling 10 years for budget) 3,925,328 3,925,328 3,925,328 3,925,328
These amounts are based on several CPI Factors with historical data calculated. All Reserve Accounts
have been averaged based on a rolling 10 years for equalization of the amounts put into the reserve Fleet 1,205,700 1,205,700 1,205,700 1,205,700
accounts yearly. This tool will be adjusted every 4 years and data will be updated on a yearly basis with Fixed Equipment 209,426 209,426 209,426 209,426
analystical data received from expenditure trends and CPI factors. Capital Equipment 432,368 432,368 432,368 432,368
Facilities 2,075,404 2,075,404 2,075,404 2,075,404

Page 73 0f 141



Approved Purchasing
Resolutions

This section of the budget provides the readers with the
resolutions related to purchases that require additional
review and approval per the District’'s Financial
Management Policies.

Page 74 of 141



Page 75 0f 141

Resolution 24-25

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Purchase of
Type | Apparatus Refurbishment

WHEREAS, the District is working on maintaining the fleet replacement schedule;

WHEREAS, the fleet industry is experiencing significant delays in the build process, not
expecting delivery 2-3 years after order placement; and

WHEREAS, the District has two previous refurbishments in process; and

WHEREAS, the cost to refurbish a Type | apparatus will be $450,000, which has been
accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$450,000.00, for the refurbishment of a Type | apparatus.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Shayna R|ar«s Board Clerk Jesse A obles Board Pre3|dent



Resolution 24-26

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Purchase of a Command Vehicle and
Granting the Fire Chief Authority to Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District maintains multiple Command Vehicles including a primary Battalion 6,
a Reserve Battalion 6, and a Training Chief vehicle; and

WHEREAS, the necessity for a new Command Vehicle assigned to the Training Battalion Chief
has been identified; and

WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the new Command Vehicle will be approximately
$100,000.00, which has been accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$100,000.00, for the purchase of a new Command Vehicle.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST
?é/mzﬂ-— W - g
Shayna Rians,VBoard Clerk JessEA./Fﬁ)bles, Board President

Page 76 of 141



Resolution 24-27

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for the Purchase of (2) Fire
Prevention Vehicles and Granting the Fire Chief Authority to
Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District currently maintains one Fire Prevention vehicle, and has been utilizing
other division's vehicles, due to the surplus of previous vehicles due to age and maintenance
costs; and

WHEREAS, the necessity for two (2) vehicles assigned to the Fire Prevention Division has
been identified; and

WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the new Command Vehicle will be approximately $120,000,
which has been accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$120,000, for the purchase of two (2) new Fire Prevention Division vehicles.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: Director Nelson
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST
S// N )
Shayna Rians, Board Clerk Jesse AT Robles, Boam:_lgresident

Page 77 of 141



Page 78 of 141

Resolution 24-28

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Purchase of Zoll X Cardiac Monitors and
Granting the Fire Chief Authority to Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District maintains Zoll X Cardiac Monitor Defibrillators on all frontline
apparatus, and four reserve monitors; and

WHEREAS, the District has a replacement schedule that calls for the replacement of Zoll X
Cardiac Monitor Defibrillators after ten (10) years; and

WHEREAS, the District is now in Phase 2 of a three-year staggered purchase plan, looking to
purchase three (3) monitors in Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and

WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the replacement equipment will be approximately
$143,000.00, which has been accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$150,000.00, for the purchase of Zoll X Cardiac Monitor Defibrillators.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST
~ v e
Shayna Rians/Board Clerk Jesswbles, Board President



Page790f141

Resolution 24-29

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Purchase of Personal Protective
Equipment (Structure Gear) and Granting the Fire Chief Authority to
Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District adheres to NFPA 1971 industry standard that each suppression
employee be issued two sets of structure gear; and

WHEREAS, the District has a replacement schedule that calls for the replacement of Personal
Protective Equipment after 10 years, or earlier if damaged beyond repair, and the last major
purchase of this equipment occurred in 2017; and

WHEREAS, ongoing manufacturer and production delays continue to create challenges in
obtaining necessary equipment in a timely manner; and

WHEREAS, the cost to purchase the replacement equipment will be approximately
$110,000.00, which has been accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$105,000.00 for the purchase of Personal Protective Equipment (Structure Gear) through All
Star Fire Equipment, Inc.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Shayna Rla[ Board Clerk Jesse A. | Robles Board Pre3|dent




Resolution 24-30

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Station 21 Retaining Wall Repair and
Granting the Fire Chief Authority to Enterinto Request for Proposal Process

WHEREAS, the retaining wall on the west side of Station 21 has been identified as posing a
health and safety risk; and

WHEREAS, the existing wall will be fortified and repaired through a Request for Proposal
process; and

WHEREAS, the cost of wall repairs should not exceed $50,000, which has been accounted for
in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

WHEREAS, should the existing wall not be salvageable, an updated request and Resolution
shall be brought before the Board; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$50,000, for the repair of the west side retaining wall at Station 21.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary proposal process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:; None

ATTEST

%yna Rian$, Board‘CIerk JeSSE\A.«R%}%IeS, E%gard President

Page800f141



Page810f141

Resolution 24-31

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the New Program Nurse Navigator and
Granting the Fire Chief Authority to Enter into Procurement Process

WHEREAS, the District began utilizing ProQA through dispatching services in September
2022; and

WHEREAS,; the District has discussed a program called Nurse Navigator through the last
couple of years and has reviewed a comprehensive report on the program that was
implemented with the City of El Cajon; and

WHEREAS, Central Zone agencies discussed the program and unanimously expressed their
desire to move forward with the Nurse Navigator Program as a one (1) year pilot program; and

WHEREAS, the annual cost to be part of the Nurse Navigator program is $25,000, which has
been accounted for in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$25,000 to enter into a one (1) year pilot program agreement for Nurse Navigator.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:; None

ATTEST
Shayna Riansy, Board Clerk JeSWobleS, Board President



Page820f141

Resolution 24-32

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the CalPERS Unfunded Annual Liability Payment as a Lump Sum

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District,
County of San Diego (hereinafter referred to as “District”) is required to make yearly payments
to CalPERS to offset the cost of the Unfunded Annual Liability (UAL) either as a lump sum
payment or monthly payments; and

WHEREAS, the District’'s Finance staff reviewed the interest costs versus interest earned in
investing to see if there was a positive financial impact on keeping the money paid to CalPERS
in July for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 in the investment fund; and

WHEREAS, the District's Finance staff has determined that continuing to pay the CalPERS UAL
as one lump sum at the beginning of the fiscal year provides the most benefit to the department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds of $1,658,061 for
the payment to CalPERS for all four retirement classifications.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the payment through the necessary procurement process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST
Shayna Rians” Board Clerk Jesse(A. Rbbles, Board President



Page830f141

Resolution 24-33

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Adopting the Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District,
County of San Diego (hereinafter referred to as “District”) is required to adopt a preliminary
budget, on or before July 1 of each year, as per Section 13890 of the Health and Safety Code;
and

WHEREAS, the District, Finance Committee, Executive Staff, and Committee/Program Leads
have made recommendations and submitted the proposed preliminary budget for review and
adoption at a publicly noticed meeting; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that there will be enough revenue and fund balances to
meet total expenditures for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 adequately.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District, a public agency in the County of San Diego, California,
does hereby adopt the preliminary budget for the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 with a total expenditure
requirement of $28,900,020.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Final Budget will be adopted in accordance with
California Government Code prior to October 1, 2024.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 12" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None
ATTEST

W i

Shayna Riagfé, Board Clerk Jesse A—Rdbles, Board President




Financial Management Policy

This section of the budget provides the readers with the
comprehensive Financial Management Policy, which
was approved on July 12, 2023.

Page840f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Chapter 8 - Financial Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page850f141



Page860f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Financial Management Scope and Purpose

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

801.1 INTRODUCTION

The District has established, by resolution, the following policies, and practices to help guide the
District's financial management practices and efforts towards achieving its mission and strategic
goals. This document has been prepared by the District's Governing Body, Finance Committee,
and Executive Staff. These policies and practices will be used to help ensure that the financial
resources of the District are managed in a manner consistent with the District's vision, mission,
and goals.

801.1.1 PURPOSE

The District strives to attain and maintain a structurally sound, thoughtful, and balanced approach
to financial management and budgeting within statutory and local government requirements. The
following Policy is established to provide a comprehensive plan to deliver efficient and effective
services to residents and stakeholders of the District in a fiscally responsible manner. Furthermore,
this Policy will act as a guide in the formulation and consideration of financial discussions and
decisions.

This Financial Management Policy will be reviewed periodically to address potential policy gaps
and/or revise it as appropriate if changes are made to the District's budget practices, industry
best practice approaches, and applicable laws. Recommended changes shall be presented to the
Board of Directors for consideration and approval as part of the annual budget process.

801.1.2 SCOPE

The Financial Management Policy shall apply to all funds of the District which are accounted for
in the District's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR"), which will be completed by an
external auditor each year after the closing of a fiscal year

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page870f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 O 2 Board of Directors Manual

Fiscal Management and Responsibility

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

802.1 FISCAL MANAGEMENT AND RESPONSIBILITY

The primary responsibility for the District's fiscal soundness lies with the elected Board of
Directors. Fiscal plans must have a long-term focus — beyond the four-year election cycle. The
District shall only spend its resources in accordance with its Mission. The Board of Director's
Mission is to operate within available means and with optimal debt, seek funding opportunities to
enhance service levels, adopt balanced budgets, enforce budgetary controls, and make financial
responsibility a District-wide responsibility.

Good fiscal management requires the Board of Directors to think about the future using proactive
careful planning with prudent forecasting. The District shall operate in a predictable fiscal
environment where expenditures are controlled and, in good times, a reasonable portion of the
District's revenues shall be put aside in reserves to cope with swings in revenue and unanticipated
expenditures. A reasonable portion of the District's reserve transfers is determined by replacement
schedules and best practices for the District's entity type (i.e., Special District, Local Government,
Fire District). Good fiscal management requires the District to regularly evaluate its fixed assets
and proactively set aside sufficient funds to facilitate maintaining and enhancing the District's fixed
assets to fulfill its mission.

Fiscal responsibility and program priorities are closely intertwined. Fiscal plans must consider the
effects of fiscal policy in all areas. The Board of Directors must be proactive rather than reactive.
This approach includes an element of risk-taking in order to be innovative to respond to new
opportunities.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 O 3 Board of Directors Manual

Financial Management Policy Changes

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

803.1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY CHANGES

Only with an affirmative vote by a supermajority of the Board can the Financial Management Policy
be changed. A supermajority is defined as a 5-2 final vote whereas; a majority vote is defined as
a 4-3 final vote.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page880f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Financial Accountability

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

804.1 FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY

The purpose of this section is to ensure financial accountability and responsible use of taxpayer
funds by requiring the District to consider the best product service for the funds expended. The
policy mandates accurate recordkeeping, measuring outcomes and results, and periodic audits
of financial controls.

The District is accountable to its primary customers, the taxpayers. The question, "Are the
taxpayers receiving the best service for the funds expended by the District?" must be a part of
every financial allocation authorized by the Board of Directors.

In addition to accurate recordkeeping of what monies are spent by the District, governmental
financial accountability requires measuring the outcome and results of spending the taxpayers'
money.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page890f141



Page900f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Basis of Accounting

Effective Date:

07/12/2023

Revised Date:

07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

805.1 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Table 1.1 summarizes the major features of the District's financial statements, including
the portion of the District's activities they cover and the types of information they
contain Table 1.1 Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statement

Scope

Entire District

The activities of the District that
are not proprietary or fiduciary,
such as fire and ambulance
services

Required financial statements

- Statement of Net Position

- Statement of Activities

- Balance Sheet

- Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures & Changes in Fund
Balances

Accounting basis and

measurement focus

Accrual accounting and economic
resource focus

Modified accrual accounting and
current financial resources focus

Type of asset/liability

information

All assets and liabilities, both
financial and capital, short-term
and long-term

Only assets expected to be
used up and liabilities that come
due during the year or soon
thereafter; no capital assets
included

Type of inflow/outflow

information

All revenues and expenses during
year, regardless of when cash is
received or paid

Revenues fort which cash is
received during or soon after the
end of the year; expenditures
when goods or services have
been received and payment

is due during the year or soon
thereafter

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District




Page910f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

District-wide Planning

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

806.1 DISTRICT-WIDE PLANNING

The Board of Directors recognizes excellent fiscal planning as a key factor in attaining the District's
goals and priorities. The Board seeks to engage in thorough advanced planning of budgets to
devise expenditures that achieve the greatest returns given the District's available resources.

Reserve Funds, like other savings plans, are a mechanism for accumulating cash for future
capital outlays and other allowable purposes. The practice of planning ahead and systematically
saving for capital acquisitions and other contingencies is considered prudent management. Saving
for future capital needs can reduce or eliminate interest and other costs associated with debt
issuances (i.e., leasing equipment).

Planning today and saving incrementally for expected future events can help mitigate the financial
impact of major, nonrecurring, or unforeseen expenditures on the annual operating budget.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page920f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Fiscal Sustainability

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

807.1 FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY

Maintaining sustainable spending on programs is important to the District and there is a need
to find the appropriate balance between tax levels, fees, and services. Wherever and whenever
appropriate, programs providing specific services should recover the cost of the District providing
those services.

Fiscal sustainability requires the Board of Directors to establish and maintain sufficient financial
reserves to indemnify unfunded liabilities and provide for future anticipated and unanticipated
expenditures. The Board of Directors shall establish benchmarks for such reserves and prioritize
general fund expenditures to include maintaining or obtaining sufficient reserve balances. Reserve
funds shall only be used for singular nonrecurring expenditures.

Prior to authorizing or implementing any new program expenditure or commencing a new task, a
source of funding and/or allocation of District resources must be identified.

Prior to authorizing or implementing any new ongoing program expenditure or commencing a
new prolonged task, a source of ongoing sustainable funding and/or ongoing allocation of District
resources must be identified. The cost of any ongoing program expenditure must include both
anticipated increases in appreciable expenses as well as reserves for unanticipated expenses for
all resources attributable to sustaining the program throughout the duration of the commitment.

Prior to authorizing or implementing any change in an existing program expenditure or expanding
the scope of a task, a source of funding and/or allocation of District resources must be identified
to support the change.

Prior to authorizing or implementing any change in an ongoing program expenditure or expanding
the scope of a prolonged task, a source of ongoing sustainable funding and/or ongoing allocation of
District resources must be identified to support the change. The cost of any change of an ongoing
program expenditure must include both anticipated increases in appreciable expenses as well as
reserves for unanticipated expenses for all resources attributable to sustaining the change of the
program throughout the duration of the commitment.

At no time shall an allocation of District funding and/or resources diminish the mission of the
District.

Fiscal Responsibility includes:

. All tasks and programs must conform to the District's Mission.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page930f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Fiscal Sustainability

Roles and responsibilities of all members of the District must be clearly defined and
understood.

All tasks and programs must have clearly defined priorities and expectations.
Being proactive rather than reactive.
Abandoning personal agendas for the welfare of the District.

Cooperation of partnerships and relationships, internally and externally, to promote
and improve efficiency and maximize effectiveness.

Involving all members of the District in the budget process. Ultimately, everyone is
responsible for the fiscal soundness of the District.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page940f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Economic/Financial Crises Policy

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

808.1 ECONOMIC/FINANCIAL CRISES POLICY

The Board of Directors has a responsibility to ensure a sustainable and fiscally responsible
operating environment for the District during normal times. This policy provides a framework for
the creation and activation of an Emergency Financial Plan (EFP), including triggers, discussions,
and procedures required for its implementation. This policy also establishes guidelines for the use
of Contingency Reserve Funds.

Furthermore, this Policy outlines the responsibilities of the Board and Staff during the activation
of an EFP. While certain factors that may impact the District's financial stability are beyond the
control of the District or Board, it is crucial that the Board understands how these factors may
affect the District at any given time. To this end, triggers must be established to allow for the
use of Contingency Reserve Funds in emergency situations, and the Board must be aware of the
vulnerability of the General Fund to revenue reductions.

Economic crises can take many forms including, but not limited to, one, or a combination of, the
following:

1. Formal economic recessions, as defined by the National Bureau of Economic Research.

2. Two consecutive quarters of negative gross domestic product growth, as determined by the
Bureau of Economic Analysis.

3. General bear market conditions, indicated by a correction of 10% or more in any of the major
United States indices, or periods during which the United States Federal Reserve is engaged in
guantitative easing. Internal factors negatively impacting revenues/expenses as further defined
in section 800.10

808.2 PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish a framework for the Board of Directors to prepare for
and respond to financial or economic crises, through the creation and activation of an Emergency
Financial Plan (EFP).

808.3 SCOPE

The Economic Crises policy reviews the District's operating environment and the impacts of
external economic risks on revenues and expenditures and provides guidance on financial
impacts.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page950f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 O 9 Board of Directors Manual

Definitions

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

809.1 DEFINITIONS

Emergency Financial Plan (EFP): A plan developed by the Board of Directors to
address financial crises and minimize the impact on the District's operations.

Triggers: Specific indicators or events that signal the need to activate the EFP or utilize
Contingency Reserve Funds to mitigate a crisis.

Funding Priority: A system used to determine which expenses are considered priorities
for the District and should be prioritized for funding during financial crises.

Cost-Sharing, Cost-Saving, and Cost-Reduction Opportunities (CSSR): Opportunities
to reduce costs and increase efficiency in operations through partnerships,
procurement efficiency, and other means.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page960f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 10 Board of Directors Manual

Taking Action During an Economic Crisis

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

810.1 TAKING ACTION DURING AN ECONOMIC CRISIS

If a Director, Fire Chief, or Executive Staff believes there is an impending or ongoing crisis, they
may request the Board formally discuss the District's financial health and the need for activation
of an Emergency Financial Plan per Policy 500 — Board Meeting Agendas Section 5.1 Agenda
Preparation and Distribution.

When discussing the possible activation of an EFP, the Board should discuss, at minimum, the

following:

(a). Revenue Reductions/Restrictions

What revenues are trending negative?
What restrictions are limiting, or pose a threat to, traditional revenue streams?

What are the Short-Term and Long-Term Deficits the Board can anticipate because
of the decrease in revenues?

(b). Contingency Fund - What triggers the ability to use the Contingency Fund monies

Only with an affirmative vote by a supermajority of the Board can Contingency Funds
Segregated for Economic Downturns money be spent.

An Economic Crisis as defined above should serve as a necessary "trigger" to prompt
discussion for the discussion and vote for using Contingency Funds Segregated for
Economic Downturns.

Directors shall be notified when disbursements are made from the Contingency Fund.

(c). Freezing Spending - It is appropriate to freeze spending?

When considering freezing any type of normal expenditures, the Fire Chief should use
the Funding Priority system to determine which expenses are considered priorities for
the District and report out to the Board of Directors.

Tie loss of revenue to percentages based on priorities.

(d). Requirements and Accounting Practices - What are the requirements and accounting practices
that must be followed to ensure continued compliance?

(e). Cost-Saving, Cost-Sharing, Cost-Reduction Opportunities (CSSR)

1. Are there any immediate CSSR opportunities available to the District?

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page970f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Taking Action During an Economic Crisis

2. Directors and Staff should review expenditures and attempt to reduce costs by any means
possible including, but not limited to:

. Reviewing the District's Purchasing Efficiency at all levels of procurement
. Creating greater economies of scale by partnering with other agencies
(f). Financing Strategies

1. Are there any financing strategies or opportunities to manage short- or long-term finances
including the use of loans and lines of credit?

2. In the event the Board votes to approve the use of Contingency Funds for an economic crisis,
the entire Board of Directors shall be notified when outflows are made from Contingency Funds.

(9). Staff Responsibilities

1. Staff will provide the Board of Directors a Financial Update at every regular meeting until the
EFP is rescinded. The Update shall contain at least:

. A summary of the impacts from enacting the EFP, including historical financial
information

. Status report on formal CSSR efforts

. Confirmation of ongoing compliance with federal, state, and local grant eligibility and
maintenance requirements.

(h). Board Responsibilities

1. Should an EFP be activated, the Board is responsible for:

. Ensuring the EFP is communicated to all relevant community members stakeholders,
including personnel and partners, if applicable.

. Monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the EFP and make adjustments as
needed.

. Ensure that all decisions related to the EFP are made in the best interests of the District
and its stakeholders.

. Hold regular meetings to discuss progress and make decisions related to the EFP.

. Ensuring that the EFP is rescinded in a timely and responsible manner once the crisis

has passed and the District's financial health has been stabilized.

If there is consensus by the Board of Directors, an EFP will be activated and implemented.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page980f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 1 1 Board of Directors Manual

Emergency Financial Plan In Action

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

811.1 EMERGENCY FINANCIAL PLAN IN ACTION

The purpose of this section is to establish the framework for creating and implementing an
Emergency Financial Plan (EFP) in the event of a financial crisis within the District. The Board of
Directors shall create an EFP to be used in the event of a financial crises impacting the District.
The EFP shall be created based on the criteria in Policy Section 800.12 — Development of the
EFP and shall be reviewed and updated annually to ensure its effectiveness

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page990f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 1 2 Board of Directors Manual

Development of the EFP

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

812.1 DEVELOPMENT OF THE EFP

The EFP shall be developed by the Board of Directors, in consultation with the Fire Chief,
Executive Staff, and any District financial and/or legal advisors. The EFP shall include, at a
minimum, the following components:

A summary of the current financial situation and the anticipated impact of the crisis
Strategies for reducing costs, increasing revenue, and managing cash flow.
Criteria for prioritizing expenditures and freezing spending

Financing strategies, including the use of loans or lines of credit, if necessary

Review of the Contingency Fund Plan, including triggers for accessing funds and
notification requirements

° These triggers will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis dependent on the crisis
at hand.

Staff responsibilities, including regular meetings to discuss progress and make
decisions related to the EFP; including the development of a clear path to rescind the
EFP.

A plan for communicating the EFP to the communities served, personnel, and
stakeholders.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 1 3 Board of Directors Manual

Approval and Implementation of the EFP

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

813.1 APPROVAL AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THE EFP

The Board of Directors shall review and approve the EFP prior to its implementation. Once
approved, the EFP shall be communicated to all relevant communities served, personnel, and
stakeholders. The Fire Chief and Administrative Officer/Finance shall both be responsible for
implementing and monitoring the EFP and providing regular reports to the Board of Directors on
its effectiveness.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 1000f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Rescinding the EFP

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

814.1 RESCINDING THE EFP
Once the financial crisis has passed and the District's financial health has stabilized, the Board of
Directors shall review and rescind the EFP in a timely and responsible manner.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page1010f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Budgeting Policy

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

815.1 BUDGETING POLICY

The District's budgeting practices are governed by applicable federal, state, and local laws,
regulations, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and has been developed based upon
recommendations from the California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) and the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 1020f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Budgetary Controls

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

816.1 BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for budgetary controls approved through this Policy. Budgetary control is
maintained at the fund and division level. Budget accountability rests primarily with the operating
divisions of the District, with oversight of the Fire Chief.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 1030f141



Page 1040f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 1 7 Board of Directors Manual

Comprehensive Budget /Balanced Budget

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

817.1 COMPREHENSIVE BUDGET /BALANCED BUDGET

The District is required by law to have a "balanced budget". However, the law does not distinguish
between a budget that is balanced using short-term fixes and a budget that is structurally balanced
for the long-term. By defining our own balanced budget policy, the District is ensuring that we
maintain a strong financial foundation for our communities for years to come.

The District will adopt a structurally balanced budget. A structurally balanced budget has two
important qualities. First, ongoing expenses should be covered by ongoing revenues. Ongoing
revenues are revenues that can be expected to continue year-to-year. Property taxes are an
example of recurring revenue. Ongoing expenses can also be expected to continue year-to- year.
Staff salaries for services the District provides is an example of a recurring expense.

The second quality of a structurally balanced budget is that one-time or short-term revenues are
used to fund one-time or short-term expenses. An example of this is a grant with a term limit.
An example of a short-term expense could be contractors hired to provide the service that the
grant funds.

In accordance with California Statute, the District must adopt a balanced budget each year.
A structurally sound balanced budget means that recurring resources must equal recurring
expenditures. More specifically:

. It is appropriate to use unrestricted reserve fund balances for one-time expenditures
and ongoing replacement schedule costs. However, as part of the District's pursuit
for a structurally balanced budget, reserve fund balances shall not be used as a way
to balance general fund expenditures due to day-to-day operations as a long-term
approach to balancing the budget.

. New programs shall not be budgeted or implemented until the full annual cost and
the financial impact can be reasonably projected and the Board of Directors approves
the program. New or expanded services appropriations should be implemented
simultaneously with an associated off-setting new revenue, and existing revenue
source increase and/or other expenditure reduction.

The District will be efficient in its business practices and share resources between tasks
and programs whenever possible. The District shall consistently scrutinize expenditures of its
resources. At all times, both the financial and labor components of tasks and programs shall be
closely monitored to assure there is a link between payment for resources and the use of those
resources. A mechanism of measuring the accountability and outcomes of tasks and programs

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Comprehensive Budget /Balanced Budget

shall accompany all expenditures to ensure tasks and programs accomplish their goals and
objectives with a favorable return on the investment of the District's resources.

Fiscal soundness is affected by the volatility of the District's primary revenue resource and
changing demographics. The District is dependent on the Legislature of the State of California to
designate an annual apportionment from local property tax assessments. The long-term effects
of an aging community, expanding and changing commercial areas, and increasing residential
density contributes to financial pressures on the District's limited resources.

To ensure transparency to the communities served, and its members, the District will be open and
accountable and maintain good record keeping.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 1050f141



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Budget Criteria

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date:

07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

818.1 BUDGET CRITERIA
Operating Budget Criteria

Table of Contents

District's Vision/Mission

District Goals (one year & long-term)

Long-term forecasting & strategies

Long-term planning

Fund Management Descriptions

Budget Message or Transmittal Letter

[o]

[o]

Highlight policy, economic and/or legislative issues facing the District and their
impact on the budget and any recommended actions included to resolve these
issues

Highlight major changes in the budget from the current year regarding service
and/or funding levels

Highlight major organization priorities and their funding sources

Basis for budgeting described and explained

District's Prop 4 (GANN) Appropriation Limit

Budget process explained

District-wide organizational chart

[o]

[o]

[o]

[o]

[o]

Summary of personnel (headcount) as a District
Personnel/staffing levels listed for each detail budget division
Organizational charts included in document

Description of personnel/staffing level changes & justification
Including prior two years

Key revenue estimates described

Discussion of General Fund, special revenue funds, and a listing of all other funds
used in the jurisdiction (debt service and capital project funds)

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District

Page 1060f141



Page 1070f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Budget Criteria

Budget Summary that displays at least the proposed budget year and at least two prior
years for both revenue and expenditures

Budget Detail Pages

° Description of the division

° Analytics of budgetary information

° Trends

° Priorities

° % breakdown by division

° Justifications

Reserve Fund Discussion

° Cash Flow

° Expenditures

° Five year replacement schedule breakdown

Discussion of liabilities with strategies

Budget level control

Budget is presented as a complete document

Budget numbers and format are accurate and consistent throughout the document
Budget document displays an effective use of graphics, artwork and charts
In-Depth Description of revenue sources and basis for estimates

° Forecasting of three years for revenue sources

District profile, review of community demographics, location, and economic outlook
Adopted resolution included

Basis of accounting described

Description of financial/budget policies, which govern finance and budget
development such as reserves, debt management, and revenue projections

Budget detail highlighting recent accomplishments
Budget detail highlighting gaps in organization & needs

Budget detail identifying performance measures such as workload and/or efficiency
or effective indicators

Discussion of employee compensation and benefits
° Description of fire service compensation
° Overtime discussion

Description of debt obligations

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page 1080f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Budget Criteria

List of acronyms used and defined

Glossary of terms

Financial trend indicators and associated analysis explained
Comparison of financial status to other jurisdictions

Display exceptional format clarity and presentation effectiveness

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page 1090f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 1 9 Board of Directors Manual

Budget Adoption

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

819.1 BUDGET ADOPTION

The District's annual budget is prepared for the fiscal year beginning July 1st and ending June
30th of the following year. The operating budget represents the financial plan for the District and
serves as a policy document for the distribution of District resources in alignment with the long-
term vision, Mission, and goals of the District. The four uses of a budget document are: Policy
Document, Financial Plan, Operations Guide, and Communications Device. More specifically

. As a Policy Document, the budget must, at minimum, provide a coherent statement
of the organizational-wide strategic goals and strategies to address short- and long-
term concerns.

. As a Financial Plan, the budget document must, at minimum, include a summary of
major revenues and expenditures, financing sources and uses; and explain the long-
range financial plans and the effect upon the budget.

. As an Operational Guide, the budget document must, at minimum, include an
organization-wide chart; schedule or table summary of personnel or position counts
(prior, current, and budgeted year); described services and include goals and
objectives of the divisions.

. As a Communication Device, the budget document must, at minimum, include a
comprehensive table of contents and provide an overview of significant budgetary
issues.

Annually, the Fire Chief and Executive Staff shall submit to the District's Board of Directors a
proposed preliminary budget for the upcoming fiscal year based on operational needs and the
approved Strategic Plan. Prior to the final adoption of the budget, and in accordance with State
statutes, the District shall hold a public hearing where the public is allowed to make comments.
During the hearing, the Board of Directors may make revisions to the budget by majority vote.
Upon final adoption the budget is in effect for the ensuing fiscal year and becomes the authority
for various divisions to expend funds subject to controls established by this Policy and California
Statutes.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1100f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 2 O Board of Directors Manual

District Revenues

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

820.1 DISTRICT REVENUES

The District needs to continue researching ongoing revenue stream opportunities for the continued
success of the District. The majority of the District's revenue comes from property taxes, which is
approximately 80+% of all revenue for all services provided by the District.

820.2 RECURRING REVENUES

Recurring revenues are funds received throughout the fiscal year on a continuing basis. The
District currently receives three types of recurring revenue: property taxes, interest earnings and
miscellaneous revenue. Property taxes are collected by the County of San Diego and deposited
into the General Fund. Interest earnings are received from the County of San Diego and placed
directly into the individual funds that generate interest. The District collects miscellaneous revenue
from various sources, primarily ALS reimbursement and fire prevention fees.

820.3 NONRECURRING REVENUE

Nonrecurring revenues are funds that are received one time. Fire Mitigation Fees are restricted
one time revenue. All other nonrecurring revenues are those received in prior fiscal years and then
held on account for specific purposes. These include transfers from the General Fund and interest
earnings on non-discretionary funds. Other than specifically designated funds, nonrecurring
revenues shall not be used to fund ongoing expenses.

820.4 DISTRICT FINANCIAL FUNDS

The District shall give the highest priority in the use of nonrecurring revenues to the funding
of capital assets or other nonrecurring expenditures. The use of nonrecurring revenues to fund
ongoing expenditures results in incurring annual expenditure obligations that may be unfunded
in future years. Using nonrecurring revenues to fund capital assets or other nonrecurring
expenditures better enables future administrations and directors to cope with financial problems
when these revenue sources are discontinued, since these types of expenditures can more easily
be eliminated.

Funds allocated to long-term commitments such as bond payments for capital improvements,
facilities, and equipment, including lease payments, shall be considered fiduciary obligations
to maintaining the District's infrastructure. As bonds mature and payments expire, those funds
previously allocated to the Districts long-term well-being shall continue to be allocated to the

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

District Revenues

Districts long-term infrastructure needs. If long-term infrastructure requirements have not been
specifically identified as requiring reallocation, the amount of such funds or amount not reallocated
to long-term infrastructure requirements shall be annually deposited in a reserve account restricted
to the long-term infrastructure needs of the District.

Prudent fiscal responsibility requires the Board of Directors to establish financial reserves to
accommodate anticipated and unanticipated District expenditures. The Board of Directors shall
maintain reserve accounts and set appropriate funding levels for the following accounts:

(a). Contingency Reserve Fund
1. Stabilization Fund Subcategory
2. Recovery Fund Subcategory
3. Emergency Fund Subcategory
(b). District Liabilities Fund
(c). Uncompensated Leave Fund
(d). Vehicle Replacement Fund
(e). Facilities Replacement/Renovation Fund
(f). Capital Equipment Fund
(9). Fixed Equipment Replacement Fund
(h). Workers' Compensation Fund

Additional reserve accounts and their respective funding levels may be established as necessary
to ensure the long-term fiscal health of the District. All funding levels will be reviewed annually.
These funding plans are to be maintained and presented with the Final Annual Budget.

Transfers into reserve funds will take place after July 1st of each Fiscal Year to ensure adequate
fund balance for the Districts' annual audit. The priority order of transfers will be:

(a). Contingency Reserve Fund
1. Stabilization Fund Subcategory
2. Recovery Fund Subcategory
3. Emergency Fund Subcategory
(b). District Liabilities Fund
(c). Uncompensated Leave Fund
(d). Vehicle Replacement Fund
(e). Facilities Replacement/Renovation Fund

(f). Capital Equipment Fund

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page1110f141



Page1120f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

District Revenues

(9). Fixed Equipment Replacement Fund
(h). Workers' Compensation Fund

The Fire Mitigation Fund and Community Facilities District Fund (CFDs) are restricted funds of
the District and do not have a priority within the transfers. The funds are required to be transferred
per the statute they fall under.

If any funds remain after the transfers into the various reserve funds, those funds should be
transferred into the Contingency Reserve Fund until goal funding is met. After goal funding is met
in the Contingency Reserve Fund, any funds remaining should be discussed with the Finance
Committee to bring a recommendation back to the Board for approval.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1130f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Guidelines and Definitions

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

821.1 GUIDELINES AND DEFINITIONS

The Fund Balance Policy is intended to provide guidelines during the preparation and execution of
the annual budget to ensure that sufficient reserves are maintained for unanticipated expenditures
or revenue shortfalls. It also is intended to preserve flexibility throughout the Fiscal Year to make
adjustments in funding for programs approved in connection with the annual budget.

Fund Balance consists of five categories: Non-Spendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and
Unassigned.

821.2 NON-SPENDABLE FUND BALANCE
Amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or funds that legally or contractually
must be maintained intact.

It is the responsibility of the Administrative Officer/Finance Officer to report all Non-spendable
Funds appropriately in the District's Financial Statements.

821.3 RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE
Amounts that are constrained by external parties, Constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Restricted funds are those funds that have constraints placed on their use either:

. Externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or other
governments
. By law through Constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

It is the responsibility of the Administrative Officer/Finance Officer to report all Restricted Funds
appropriately in the District's Financial Statements.

821.4 COMMITTED FUND BALANCE

Amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself, using its highest level of
decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the
constraint.

The Board of Directors has the authority to set aside funds for a specific purpose. Any funds set
aside as a Committed Fund Balance requires the passage of a resolution by a simple majority

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1140f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Guidelines and Definitions

vote. The passage of a resolution must take place prior to June 30th of the applicable fiscal year.
If the actual amount of the commitment is not available by June 30th, the resolution must state the
process or formula necessary to calculate the actual amount as soon as information is available.

821.5 ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE
Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an individual authorized by the governing body.

Upon passage of the Fund Balance Policy, authority is given to the Administrative Officer/Finance
Officer to assign funds for specific purposes. Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance must
be reported to the District's Board of Directors at their next regular meeting. The Board of Directors
has the authority to remove or change the assignment of the funds with a simple majority vote.

The District's Board of Directors has the authority to set aside funds for the intended use of a
specific purpose. Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance requires a simple majority vote
and must be recorded in the minutes. The same action is required to change or remove the
assignment.

821.6 UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE
Amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are reported only in the General Fund.

Unassigned Fund Balance is the residual amount of Fund Balance in the General Fund. It
represents the resources available for future spending. An appropriate level of Unassigned
Fund Balance should be maintained in the General Fund. An appropriate level is determined
as the remaining balance after the amounts for the non-spendable, restricted, committed and
assigned classifications have been identified. For the General Fund, unassigned fund balance
may represent either a positive or negative balance per generally accepted and governmental
accounting requirements.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 2 2 Board of Directors Manual

Classifying Fund Balance Amounts

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

822.1 CLASSIFYING FUND BALANCE AMOUNTS
When both restricted and unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, restricted funds should
be spent first unless legal requirements disallow it.

When committed, assigned and unassigned funds are available for expenditure, committed funds
should be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds last, unless the Board of
Directors has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page1150f141



Page1160f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 2 3 Board of Directors Manual

Financial Reserve Funding Levels

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

823.1 FINANCIAL RESERVE FUNDING LEVELS

The Board of Directors shall periodically review the funding levels established for each reserve
account and make adjustments as necessary to ensure the long-term fiscal health of the District.
Funding levels are determined for each reserve fund based on classification. Funding levels
are determined by best practices for Special Districts, auditor recommendations, internal
needs, and replacement schedules. To facilitate determining appropriate funding levels, the
District shall perform an annual audit of the following critical elements of the District's operations,
at a minimum:

. Future cost of new facilities and equipment needs based on projection for year of
implementation for each identified facility and equipment acquisition.

. Replacement cost of existing facilities based on projection for year of implementation
for each identified facility.

. Facilities maintenance cost with assessment of maximizing the serviceable life of
facilities.

. Frontline vehicles and equipment inventory and replacement costs.

. Reserve vehicles and equipment inventory and replacement costs.

. Administrative equipment and other assets and replacement costs.
. Technology and infrastructure upgrades and acquisition costs.
. Cost of sustaining and obtaining grant funding and associated programs.

. Each reserve account shall show current and desired funding levels in the annual
budget.

823.2 GENERAL FUND (AN UNASSIGNED FUND)

This fund is used to finance the ongoing, day- to-day operations of the District. Sources of
operating funds include property taxes, interest earnings and miscellaneous revenue. The desired
minimum beginning cash balance for the General Fund is $500,000 after all transfers have been
considered.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Financial Reserve Funding Levels

823.3 CONTINGENCY RESERVE FUND (A COMMITTED FUND)

This fund is used as the District's unallocated contingency reserve to cover unexpected
expenditures that may be necessary to fund Board approved expenses, maintain operational
service (including salaries and benefits based on Emergency Financial Plan budgeting of
2%), and liquidity for dry yield cash flow interruptions in the event revenues are delayed or
reduced significantly and impacting day-to-day operations. This fund is used to fiscally stabilize
funds to cover budgetary shortfalls that arise when public revenues fall, thus allowing specific
public services to be safeguarded. These funds can promote fiscal discipline by restricting the
procyclicality and volatility of public spending.

The Contingency Reserves fund targeted level should be maintained in an amount equal to at least
50% of the annual General Fund Budget, respectively, each year. This amount, once the 50%
is attained, can range from $500,000 — $750,000. As the General Fund expenditures increase,
the amount needed each year to fund the targeted level will rise, respectively. Sources of funding
consist of interest earnings and transfers from other funds. This fund consists of the following
breakdown:

. Stabilization — To provide a safeguard against unknown economic shocks and
revenue declines to ensure sustainability during an economic downturn. To promote
fiscal discipline by restricting the procyclicality and volatility of District liabilities and
expenditures. This breakdown of the Contingency Reserve shall have a targeted
level of 31% of the 50% total target level. Recovery — To provide funding during
the recovery phase of an economic downturn. The recovery phase is the cycle
following downturns in the economy or a disaster that is normally characterized by a
sustained period of improving and returning to normal operations. During an economic
recovery, the economy undergoes a process of adaptation and adjustment to new
conditions, including the factors that triggered the downturn/disaster in the first place.
The recovery phase lasts longer than the stabilization phase. This breakdown of the
Contingency Reserve shall have a targeted level of 43% of the 50% total target level.

. Emergency Expenses — To provide cash flow for unknown expenses that are related
to operating and maintain day-to-day services for the communities we serve. This
breakdown of the Contingency Reserve shall have a targeted level as of June 30th
and December 31st of at least 60 days' operating expenses.

Contingency Fund
$13,412,317

.Emergency Fund
Stabilization $3,640,757
Fund 26%
$4,407,287
31%

Recovery Fund
$6,035,543
43%
Emergency Fund mRecovery Fund  m Stabilization Fund

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page1170f141



Page1180f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Financial Reserve Funding Levels

A spreadsheet will be maintained by the Administrative Officer/Finance with the breakdown of the
Contingency Reserve Fund, including dollar amounts, percentages, and charts.

This fund should be looked at on an annual basis. The reserve amounts are established by
determining the level of financial risk associated with the economy. It should be noted that the
Board of Directors are aware that we are currently under the 40% recommended funding level.
Each year, until the funding measurement is met, a minimum of $500,000 should be put into this
fund. This Funding Plan will be part of the Annual Budget.

823.4 DISTRICT LIABILITIES FUND (A COMMITTED FUND)

Fund was established to fund liabilities that show a risk in the sustainability of ongoing cash flow
for the District. These liabilities include, but are not limited, to pension costs and Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB), other than pension distributions, such as health insurance. The
targeted level for this fund is dependent on the outstanding liability costs and the strategies being
used by the District to address them. The Administrative Officer/Finance Officer, at the direction
of the Board of Directors, continually analyzes the needs of the District related to this fund.

823.5 UNCOMPENSATED LEAVE FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)

Fund was established to fund the cash value of all employees' accrued annual and sick leave. The
goal level on this fund is 100% of the previous June 30 book value of all leave credits. Sources of
funding are interest earnings and transfers from the General Fund. The annual transfer amount
into this fund is the difference between the current balance and the June 30 book value of leave
credits.

823.6 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)

This fund was established to replace existing staff vehicles and emergency apparatus. Sources
of funding are interest earnings and transfers from the General Fund. The Board of Directors
adopts, reviews, and when necessary, modifies the emergency apparatus and staff vehicle plans.
The replacement schedules should normally be reviewed every year to allow for cost-of-living
increases and other impacts that may affect the needed deposits in this fund. The goal level of
this fund is based upon the current fleet replacement schedule. This Funding Plan will be part of
the Annual Budget.

823.7 FACILITIES REPLACEMENT/RENOVATION FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)

This fund was established to replace and restore existing facilities. Sources of funding are interest
earnings and transfers from the General Fund. The District needs essential services buildings
in order to carry out the mission and strategic objectives as directed by the Board. An in-depth
Facilities Condition Assessment was completed and has been incorporated into the replacement
schedule under an approved funding scenario per the assessment. The Facilities Replacement/
Renovation Reserve Study must be reviewed at least every 5 years to determine the ongoing
funding needs per year. This Funding Plan will be part of the Annual Budget.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1190f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Financial Reserve Funding Levels

823.8 CAPITAL EQUIPMENT FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)

This fund was established to cover the cost of purchasing capital equipment (breathing apparatus,
radios, mobile data computers, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), etc.) Sources of funding
consist of interest earnings and transfers from the General Fund. The District needs to purchase
equipment in order to carry out the Mission and strategic objectives as directed by the Board.
The replacement schedules should normally be reviewed every year to allow for cost-of-living
increases and other impacts that may affect the needed deposits in this fund. The goal level of
this fund is based upon the current capital equipment replacement schedule. This Funding Plan
will be part of the Annual Budget.

823.9 FIXED EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)

This fund was established to cover the cost of ongoing fixed equipment replacement (HVAC,
vehicle exhaust extractors, generators, etc.). Sources of funding consist of interest earnings and
transfers from the General Fund or other funds. The District needs to maintain fixed equipment in
order to carry out the Mission and strategic objectives as directed by the Board The replacement
schedules should normally be reviewed every year to allow for cost-of-living increases and other
impacts that may affect the needed deposits in this fund. The goal level of this fund is based upon
the current fixed equipment replacement schedule. This Funding Plan will be part of the Annual
Budget.

823.10 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND (AN ASSIGNED FUND)
Workers' Compensation Fund (an assigned fund). This fund was established to help offset impact
of the General Fund when a significant injury occurs.

Funding level is established based off the District's Self-Insurance Retention (SIR) per a single
incident occurrence (1-2 employees) with a current minimum funding level of $300,000 and a goal
funding level of $600,000.

823.11 FIRE MITIGATION FEE FUND (A RESTRICTED FUND)

This fund was established by the County of San Diego. Sources of funding consist of interest
earnings and fire mitigation fees collected by the County for all types of new construction. The
District must receive approval from the County's Fire Mitigation Fee Review Committee prior to
the expenditure of this fund.

823.12 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND (A RESTRICTED FUND)

This fund was established by the County of San Diego. Sources of funding consist of interest
earnings and fire mitigation fees collected by the County for all types of new construction. The
District must receive approval from the County's Fire Mitigation Fee Review Committee prior to
the expenditure of this fund.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1200f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Replacement Schedules & 5-Year Plans
Established by the District

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

824.1 REPLACEMENT SCHEDULES & 5-YEAR PLANS ESTABLISHED BY THE DISTRICT
The intent of this section is to outline the development of the plans to guide asset management
practices that are supported by both finance and operational expertise. These plans will require a
complete inventory and periodic measurement of the physical condition and existence of capital
equipment, fixed equipment, fleet, and facilities.

Maintaining inventory with an asset tagging system will be essential in pulling information for the
plans and ensuring the District has effective control over tangible assets. Inventory will contain
essential information, including, but not limited to:

. Asset Description

. Location

. Physical Dimensions (if applicable)
. "As-Built" documents

. Warranties

. Condition Rating

. Maintenance History

. Replacement Costs

. Operating Costs

. Usage Statistics (if applicable)
. Date Placed In Service

. Original Useful Life

. Impairments

Replacement Schedules will be established and maintained for Fleet, Capital Equipment and
Fixed Equipment. A Facilities Replacement/Renovation Reserve Study will be established and
maintained. Spreadsheets and/or other documents/reports will be implemented to show the
following information:

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1210f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Replacement Schedules & 5-Year Plans Established by the District

. Budget Assumptions and Recommendations
. 5-Year Forecasting Funding Plans
. Fully Funded Plan Projections

A well-formulated Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is rooted in consistent planning for major
expenditures and in anticipation of the "just-in-time" replacement of apparatus, equipment, and
facilities. CIPs are most effectively done in 5-year increments in which the current year drops into
the annual operating budget an off the 5-year plan. Then the CIP is replaced by a new fifth year, so
that it is a continuous process that is tied directly to normal annual budget preparations. Supported
by an appropriate funding stream and thoughtful analysis and forecasting by staff, the CIP is a
powerful instrument for managing the District's level of service.

Major capital improvements may include the following:

. Apparatus: Purchase and/or refurbishment/replacement of Type | engines; ladder
truck; command vehicles; brush engines; and light vehicles or sedans.

. Major Equipment: Purchase and/or replacement of Personal Protective Equipment
(PPE); Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBAS); rescue tools; and Advanced Life
Support (ALS) cardiac monitoring.

. Facilities: New construction and/or renovation of stations/administrative buildings.

This financial strategy will provide an analysis and recommendations for the ongoing operations
and staffing to have the District represented in the most efficient and cost-effective manner and
within available resources to the District. These plans are designed to be living documents and
utilized along with thoughtful analysis and forecasting by staff, allows the Board of Directors and
management to effectively plan and approve a sustainable budget by being proactive.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1220f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Mitigating Negative Fiscal Impacts Caused by
Future Development

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

825.1 MITIGATING NEGATIVE FISCAL IMPACTS CAUSED BY FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
Subiject to limited exceptions, Section 65589.5(0)(1) of the California Government Code provides
that a housing development project is subject only to the ordinances, policies, and standards
adopted and in effect when a preliminary application was submitted by the housing development
project. The purpose of this policy is to ensure that all future development that causes a negative
fiscal impact to the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District (the "District")'s provision of
services is required to offset such negative fiscal impacts,

notwithstanding Section 65589.5(0)(1) of the California Government Code. This policy may be
amended or supplemented by resolution of the Board of Directors of the District at any time.

The requirement to Mitigate Negative Fiscal Impacts

All future development, including, but not limited to, housing development projects as defined in
Section 65589.5(h)(2) of the California Government Code, shall be required to offset any negative
fiscal impact such development has on the provision of service by the District. Such fiscal impact
shall be determined based on a fiscal impact analysis prepared by or on behalf of the District. A
development may meet this requirement by forming or annexing into a community facilities district
or by entering into some other arrangement that is agreeable to both the District and the developer.

Exceptions to this Policy:

The District may find that a waiver of any of the provisions of this policy is reasonable given
identified District benefits to be derived from such waiver. Such waivers only will be granted by
action of the Board of Directors.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1230f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility
District

826.1 PURPOSE
Section 53312.7(a) of the California Government Code requires that a district's Board of Directors

consider and adopt local goals and policies concerning the use of the Mello-Roos Community
Facilities Act of 1982 (the "Act"), prior to the initiation of proceedings on or after January 1,1994,to
establish a new community facilities district (CFD) under the Act. These goals and policies may be
amended or supplemented by resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated
Fire Protection District (the "District") at any time.

826.2 GOALS
The Goal of the CFD is the following

826.2.1 SERVICES

It is the goal of the District that new development generates sufficient additional revenues to fund
the District's costs of providing the public services required by that development. The Board of
Directors will consider the use of the Act to provide a portion of the required revenues.

826.2.2 FACILITIES

The Board of Directors will consider the use of the Act for financing public facilities and refinancing
existing liens levied or bonds issued to finance public facilities, only in connection with the
prospective development of land in the District or as otherwise referenced in a development
agreement to which the District is a party. Any request for a CFD which is not integral to the
development of land will require amendment of these goals and policies and will be considered
on a case-by-case basis.

826.2.3 COSTS
All District and non-contingent consultant costs incurred in the evaluation and establishment of

new CFDs and annexations to existing CFDs will be paid by the proponents of the formation/
annexation. With respect to CFDs that finance facilities, the District shall use all reasonable efforts
to reimburse all CFD formation/annexation costs from CFD bond proceeds when CFD bonds are
issued. Expenses incurred by the District that are not chargeable to the CFD shall be borne by
the proponent of the CFD.

826.3 ELIGIBLE PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES

826.3.1 SERVICES
The specific services to be funded shall include all services authorized under both Section 53313

of the Government Code and Section 13862 of the Health and Safety Code including, but not
limited to, fire protection and suppression services, and ambulance and paramedic services and

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1240f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility District

operation of any real property or other tangible property with an estimated useful life of five or
more years that is owned by the District or by another local agency pursuant to agreement;

826.3.2 FACILITIES

The improvements eligible to be financed by a CFD must be owned by a public agency or public
utility and must have a useful life of at least five (5) years, except that up to five percent of the
proceeds of a debt issue may be used for facilities owned and operated by a privately-owned
public utility. The improvements must be consistent with any relevant specific plan approvals.
A CFD shall not vest any rights to future land use on any properties, including those which are
responsible for paying special taxes.

The list of public facilities eligible to be financed by a CFD include all facilities authorized under
Government Code section 53313.5 and include, without limitation:

. Fire stations

. Administrative facilities

. Training facilities

. Emergency response equipment
. Firefighting apparatuses

The funding of public facilities to be owned and operated by public agencies other than the District
shall be considered on a case-by-case basis. If the proposed facilities are appropriate for financing
by a CFD and are consistent with approved land use plans or other governmental approvals for
the property, the District may consider entering into a joint community facilities agreement in order
to finance these facilities. A joint agreement with the public agency that will own and operate any
such facility must be entered into prior to the adoption of the resolution of formation, a resolution of
change altering the CFD, or a resolution authorizing the issuance of bonds, except as otherwise
permitted under the Act.

826.4 PRIORITIES FOR CFD FINANCING
Priority for CFD financing shall be given to public facilities and services which are necessary for
development, or otherwise required to satisfy any conditions of development.

826.5 CREDIT QUALITY REQUIREMENTS FOR CFD BOND ISSUES

All CFD bond issues should have at least a three-to-one property value-to-public lien ratio
after calculating the value of the financed public improvements to be installed and any private
improvements for which financing is reasonable assured, unless the Board of Directors finds
and determines that the proposed bonds do not present any unusual credit risk or, by a four-
fifths vote, that the proposed bond issue should proceed for specified public policy reasons.
Property value may be based on either an appraisal, or assessed values as indicated on the
county assessor's tax roll. Any appraiser shall be selected by the District, and the appraisal
shall be based on the definitions, standards and assumptions as described in "Appraisal

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1250f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility District

Standards for Land Secured Financings," published by the California Debt and Investment
Advisory Commission dated May 1994, as revised and as may be amended from time to time.
The appraisal must be dated within three months of the date the bonds are issued. The public lien
amount shall include the bond issue currently being sold plus any public indebtedness secured
by a fixed lien on real property currently existing against the properties to be taxed.

A reserve fund equal to the lesser of:
. ten percent of the original proceeds of the bond issue,
. the maximum annual debt service on the bonds, or

. one hundred twenty-five percent of the average annual debt service on the bonds is
considered as appropriate for any bond issue where less than seventy-five percent of
the buildable acreage has been developed.

A smaller reserve fund may be appropriate for bond issues in CFDs where over a significant
percentage of the buildable acreage has been developed. The reserve fund may be maintained
by or on behalf of a public financing authority, if such an authority purchases the CFD bonds,
and need not be held under the fiscal agent agreement pursuant to which the CFD bonds are
issued. Less than a three-to-one property value-to- public lien ratio, excessive tax delinquencies,
or projects of poor economic viability may cause the District to disallow the sale of bonds or require
credit enhancement prior to bond sale.

If the District requires letters of credit or other security in connection with the issuance of bonds
for a CFD, the credit enhancement shall be issued by an institution, in a form and upon terms and
conditions satisfactory to the District. Any security required to be provided may be discharged by
the District upon the opinion of a qualified appraiser, retained by the District (at the expense of the
CFD or the applicable land owner), that a value-to-lien ratio of three to one has been attained. As
an alternative to providing other security, a portion of the bond proceeds may be placed in escrow
with a corporate agent in an amount sufficient to assure a value-to-lien ratio of at least three to
one on the outstanding proceeds, or other appropriate release requirements.

826.6 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
Disclosure Requirements for Developers

. Developers who are selling lots or parcels that are within a CFD shall provide
disclosure notice to prospective purchasers that complies with all the requirements of
Section 53341.5 of the Government Code. The disclosure notice must be provided
to prospective purchasers of property at or prior to the time the contract or deposit
receipt for the purchase of property is executed. Developers shall keep an executed
copy of each disclosure document as evidence that disclosure has been provided to
all purchasers of property within a CFD, and shall provide the District with a copy of
each such disclosure document.

Disclosure Requirements for the Resale of Lots

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1260f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility District

. The District's Business Services Manager or designee shall provide a notice of special
taxes to sellers of property (other than developers) which will enable them to comply
with their notice requirements under Section 1102.6 of the Civil Code et seq. This
notice shall be provided by the Business Services Manager or designee within five
working days of receiving a written request for the notice, unless otherwise permitted
under the Act. A reasonable fee may be charged for providing the notice, not to exceed
any maximum fee specified in the Act.

826.7 EQUITY OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULAS AND MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES
Special tax formulas for CFDs shall provide for minimum special tax levels which satisfy the
following expenses of a CFD:

. 10 percent gross debt service coverage for all CFD bonded indebtedness.
. The cost of providing the authorized service.
. The projected administrative expenses of the CFD.

Additionally, the special tax formula may provide for the following:

. Any amounts required to establish or replenish any reserve fund established in
association with the indebtedness of the CFD.

. The accumulation of funds reasonably required for future debt service.
. Amounts equal to projected delinquencies of special tax payments.

. The costs of remarketing, credit enhancement and liquidity facility fees.
. The cost of acquisition, construction, furnishing or equipping of facilities.
. Lease payments for existing or future facilities.

. Costs associated with the release of funds from an escrow account.

. Any other costs or payments permitted by the Act and applicable law.

The special tax formula shall be reasonable and equitable in allocating the costs of the services
and the public facilities financed by the CFD to parcels within the CFD, unless otherwise agreed
to by at least the owners of two-thirds of the property to be subject to the special tax.

Exemptions from the special tax may be given to parcels which are publicly owned, are held by a
property owners' association, are used for a public purpose such as open space or wetlands, are
affected by public utility easements making impractical their utilization for other than the purposes
set forth in the easements, or have insufficient value to support bonded indebtedness.

The total projected property tax levels for any CFD shall not exceed any maximum specified in
the Act. The annual increase, if any, in the maximum special tax for any parcel shall not exceed
any maximum specified in the Act. The increase in the special tax levied on any parcel as a
consequence of delinquency or default by the owner of any other parcel shall not exceed any
maximum specified in the Act.

The District shall retain a special tax consultant to prepare a report which:

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1270f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility District

. Recommends a special tax for the proposed CFD.

. Evaluates the special tax proposed to determine its ability to adequately fund the
identified services and /or public facilities, CFD administrative costs, and other related
expenditures. Such analysis shall also address the resulting aggregate tax burden
of all proposed special taxes plus existing special taxes, ad valorem taxes and
assessments on the properties within the CFD.

826.8 APPRAISALS

The definitions, standards and assumptions to be used for appraisals shall be determined by
District staff on a case-by-case basis, with input from District consultants and CFD proponents,
and by reference to relevant materials and information promulgated by the State of California. In
any event, the value-to-lien ratio shall be determined based upon an appraisal by an independent
MAI appraiser of the proposed CFD. The appraisal shall be coordinated by and under the direction
of the District. All costs associated with the preparation of the appraisal report shall be paid by the
proponents of the CFD through an advance deposit mechanism. The District shall have discretion
to retain a consultant to prepare a report to verify market absorption assumptions and projected
sales prices of the properties which may be subject to the maximum special tax in the CFD.

826.9 TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF BONDS

All terms and conditions of any CFD bonded indebtedness shall be established by the District,
after consultation with the District's consultants, District staff and the proponents of the CFD. The
District will control, manage and invest, or cause to be controlled, managed and invested, all CFD
bond proceeds. Each bond issue shall be structured so as to eliminate any adverse impact on
the bonding capacity or credit rating of the District. The Board of Directors shall at all times retain
the discretion as to if and when any bonds shall be issued for a CFD. All statements and material
related to the sale of bonds shall emphasize and state that neither the faith, nor general credit of
the District is pledged to security or repayment of the bonds. The sole source of pledged revenues
to repay CFD bonds shall be the special taxes, bond proceeds and reserve funds held under the
bond document, and the proceeds of foreclosure proceedings and additional security instruments
provided at the time of bond issuance, unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing by the
District.

826.10 CFD INITIAL COSTS

All District and consultant costs incurred in the evaluation of CFD applications and the
establishment of CFDs or annexation into an existing CFD will be paid by the proponents of the
CFD by advance deposit increments. The District shall use reasonable efforts not to incur any
non-reimbursable expenses for processing and administering CFDs. In general, expenses not
chargeable to the CFD shall be directly borne by the proponents of the CFD.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1280f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Local Goals and Policies for Community Facility District

826.11 USE OF CONSULTANTS

The District shall select all consultants necessary for the formation of (or annexation to) and
administration of a CFD and the issuance of bonds, including the underwriter(s), bond counsel,
financial advisors, appraiser, any market absorption consultant and the special tax consultant.
Prior consent of any proponent of a CFD shall not be required in the determination by the District
of the consulting and financing team.

826.12 CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

By being allowed to participate in a Mello-Roos proceeding, each owner of land therein must be
willing to provide information deemed by the District and its financing team to be needed in order
for the District and the underwriter to comply with applicable Federal and state securities laws,
including continuing disclosure requirements imposed by SEC Rule 15¢2-12.

826.13 EXCEPTIONS TO THESE POLICIES

The District may find that a waiver of any of the above stated policies is reasonable given identified
District benefits to be derived from such waiver. Such waivers only will be granted by action of
the Board of Directors

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1290f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Debt Issuance and Management Policy

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

827.1 DEBT ISSUANCE AND MANAGEMENT POLICY

The purpose of this Debt Policy is to establish guidelines and parameters for the effective
governance, management and administration of debt and other financing obligations issued by
the District and its related entities (such as, but not exclusive to, any special districts and any
entities for which the Board serves as the governing board or legislative body). This Debt Policy
is intended to improve and direct decision making, assist with the structure of debt issuance,
identify policy goals, and demonstrate a commitment to long-term financial planning, including
the District's Capital Improvement Program. Adherence to a debt policy helps to ensure the
District's debt is issued and managed prudently in order to maintain a sound financial position and
credit worthiness. When used in this Debt Policy, "debt" refers to all indebtedness and financing
obligations of the and its related entities (together referred to as "District").

This Debt Policy is intended to comply with the requirements of Senate Bill 1029 (SB 1029),
codified as part of California Government Code Section 8855(i), effective on January 1, 2017, and
shall govern all debt undertaken by the District. The primary objectives of the District's debt and
financing related activities are to:

Maintain the District's sound financial position;

. Ensure the District has the flexibility to respond to possible changes in future service
obligations, revenues, and operating expenses;

. Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future taxpayers,
ratepayers, and residents/visitors within the boundaries of the District and its service
areas;

. Minimize debt service commitments through efficient planning and cash;

. Protect the District's credit worthiness and achieve the highest practical credit ratings,
when applicable; and

. Ensure the District is in compliance with all relevant State and Federal securities laws
and other applicable laws and regulations.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1300f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Acceptable Uses of Debt Proceeds

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

828.1 ACCEPTABLE USES OF DEBT PROCEEDS

The District will consider the use of debt financing primarily for assets and capital projects only
if the term of debt shall not exceed the asset(s) or project's useful life or will otherwise comply
with Federal tax law requirements. An exception to this long-term driven focus is the issuance
of short- term instruments, such as tax and revenue anticipation notes, which are to be used for
reasonable cash management purposes, as described below. Bonded debt should not be issued
to finance normal operating expenses. General Fund debt will not normally be issued to support
ongoing operational costs unless such debt issuance achieves net operating cost savings and
such savings are verified by independent analysis.

828.2 LONG-TERM DEBT.

Long-term debt may be issued to finance the construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of capital
improvements and facilities, equipment, and land to be owned and/or operated by the District.
Long-term debt financing are appropriate when any of the following conditions exist:

. When the project to be financed is necessary to provide basic municipal services;

. When the project to be financed will provide benefit to the District's constituents over
a duration of more than one year;

. When the total debt financing would not impose an unreasonable burden on the District
and its taxpayers and/or ratepayers, as applicable; or

. When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt service
savings or to benefit from debt restructuring.

The District may use long-term debt financings subject to each of the following conditions:
. The project to be financed has been or will be considered and approved by the Board;

. The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt allocated to the
project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed by more
than 20%;

o The District estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to service the debt
through its maturity; and

. The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the applicable
requirements of State and Federal law.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page1310f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Acceptable Uses of Debt Proceeds

828.3 SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing for the District's operational cash flows in order
to maintain a steady and even cash flow balance. Short-term debt may also be used to finance the
District's short-lived capital projects, such as undertaking lease-purchase financing for equipment.

828.4 FINANCINGS ON BEHALF OF OTHER ENTITIES

The District may also issue debt on behalf of other governmental agencies or private third parties in
order to further the public purposes of the District. In such cases, the District shall take reasonable
steps to confirm the financial feasibility of the project to be financed, the financial solvency of any
borrower, and that the issuance of such debt is consistent with the policies set forth herein.

. The project to be financed has been or will be considered and approved by the Board;

. The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt allocated to the
project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed by more
than 20%;

o The District estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to service the debt
through its maturity; and

. The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the applicable
requirements of State and Federal law.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1320f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 2 9 Board of Directors Manual

Standards for Use of Debt Financing

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

829.1 STANDARDS FOR USE OF DEBT FINANCING

The District recognizes that there are numerous types of financing structures and funding sources
available, each with specific benefits, costs, and risks. The District will consider debt issuance
only in those cases where public policy, equity, and economic efficiency favor debt financing
over cash funding. Prior to the issuance of debt or other financing obligations, the District will
carefully consider the overall long-term affordability of the proposed debt issuance by conducting
an objective analysis of the District's ability to support additional debt service payments. The
District will consider its long-term revenue and expenditure trends, the impact on operational
flexibility and the overall debt burden on the taxpayers/ratepayers. The evaluation process shall
include a review of generally accepted measures of affordability and will strive to achieve and/or
maintain debt levels consistent with its current operating and capital needs.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 1330f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 O Board of Directors Manual

Types of Debt

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

830.1 TYPES OF DEBT

In order to maximize the financial options available to benefit the public, it is the District's policy
to allow the consideration of issuing all generally accepted types of debt, on a public or private
placement basis, including, but not exclusive to the following:

Joint Powers Authority (JPA) Lease Revenue Bonds/Certificates of
Participation. The District may obtain financing through the issuance of debt by a
joint exercise of powers agency or through the execution and delivery of certificates of
participation with such debt payable from amounts paid by the District under a lease,
installment sale agreement, or contract of indebtedness.

General Obligation (GO) Bonds. GO Bonds are suitable for use in the construction
or acquisition of improvements to real property that benefit the public at large. All GO
bonds shall be authorized by the requisite number of voters in order to pass.

Loans/Equipment Leases. The District is authorized to enter into loans, leases,
equipment leases, installment payment obligations, or other similar funding structures
secured by a prudent source or sources of repayment.

Other Fire Protection District Debt.The District may issue any and all other types
of debt and enter into any and all other types of financings permitted under the Fire
Protection District Law of 1987 (being part 2.7 of Division 12 of the California Health
and Safety Code).

Short-Term Debt. Short-term borrowing, such as commercial paper, Tax and
Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRANS), and lines of credit, may be considered as an
interim source of funding in anticipation of long-term borrowing and may be issued to
generate funding for cash flow needs. The final maturity of the debt issued to finance
the project shall be consistent with the useful life of the project. Short-term debt may
also be used to finance short-lived capital projects such as lease-purchase financing
for equipment.

Refunding Bonds. The District shall refinance debt pursuant to the authorization that
is provided under California law including, but not limited to, Articles 9, 10 and 11 of
Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, as
market opportunities arise. Refunding's may be undertaken in order:

° To take advantage of lower interest rates and achieve debt service costs
savings;

0 To eliminate restrictive or burdensome bond covenants; or

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page 1340f141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

Board of Directors Manual

Types of Debt

° To restructure debt to lengthen the duration of repayment, relieve debt service
spikes, reduce volatility in interest rates or free up reserve funds

Generally, the District shall strive to achieve a minimum of 3% net present value savings. The
net present value assessment shall factor in all costs, including issuance, escrow, and foregone
interest earnings of any contributed funds on hand. Refunding's which produce a net present
value savings of less than 3% will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Upon the advice of
the Fire Chief and with the assistance of a financial advisor and bond counsel, the District will
consider undertaking refunding's for other than economic purposes based upon a finding that such
a restructuring is in the District's overall best financial interest.

The District may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be beneficial to further its
public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this Debt Policy.

Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the District makes a specific determination as to
why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the District in that circumstance.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 1 Board of Directors Manual

Relationship to Capital Improvement Program
and Operating Budget

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

831.1 RELATIONSHIP TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM AND OPERATING
BUDGET

The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and the decision to
incur new indebtedness should be integrated with the Board-adopted annual Operating Budget
and Capital Improvement Program Budget, if any. Prior to issuance of debt, a reliable revenue
source shall be identified to secure repayment of the debt and the annual debt service payments
shall be included in the Operating Budget.

The District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its Capital Improvement Program
by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in furtherance
of the District's public purposes.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 1350f 141



Page 136 of 141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 2 Board of Directors Manual

Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and
Objectives

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

832.1 POLICY GOALS RELATED TO PLANNING GOALS AND OBJECTIVES
This Debt Policy has been adopted to assist with the District's goal of financial sustainability and
financial prudence. In following this Debt Policy, the District shall pursue the following policy goals:

The District is committed to financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserves
levels, and employing prudent practices in governance, management, and budget
administration. The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this
Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the District's annual
Operating Budget;

It is a policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers, and constituents by
utilizing conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest
practical credit ratings, if applicable, and the lowest practical borrowing costs;

Itis a policy goal of the District to reduce the unfunded liabilities for employee pension
and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB);

The District will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the
maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes,
assessments, rates, and charges; and

When refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal of the District to achieve, whenever
possible and subject to any overriding non-financial policy, minimum aggregate net
present value debt service savings of at least 3% of the refunded principal amount.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue

District



Page 137 of 141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 3 Board of Directors Manual

Internal Control Procedures

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

833.1 INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURES

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the District shall
comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing disclosure,
post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds.

The District will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance with the
following:

. Federal securities law, including any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC
Rule 15c2-12, as amended,;

. Any federal tax compliance requirements including without limitation arbitrage and
rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues;

. The District's investment policies as they relate to the investment of bond proceeds;
and

. Government Code section 8855(k) and the annual reporting requirements therein.

The District shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purpose at
the time that such debt was issued. The Fire Chief, the Administrative Officer/Finance Officer
or designee will monitor the expenditure of bond proceeds to ensure they are used only for the
purpose and authority for which the bonds were issued. Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds
of debt will be held by a third-party trustee and the District will submit written requisitions for such
proceeds. The District will submit a requisition only after obtaining the signature of the Fire Chief,
the Administrative Officer/Finance Officer, or designee.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 138 of 141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 4 Board of Directors Manual

Amendment and Waivers of Debt Policy

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

834.1 AMENDMENT AND WAIVERS OF DEBT POLICY
This Debt Policy will be reviewed and updated periodically as needed. Any amendments to this
Debt Policy are subject to specific Board approval.

While adherence to this Debt Policy is required in all applicable circumstances, on rare occasions
there might be circumstances when strict adherence to a provision of this Debt Policy is not
possible or not in the best interest of the District. If the District staff has determined that a waiver
of one or more provisions of this Debt Policy should be considered by the Board, it will prepare an
analysis for the Board describing the rationale for the waiver and the impact of the waiver on the
proposed debt issuance and on taxpayers, if applicable. Upon a majority vote of the Board, one
or more provisions of this Debt Policy may be waived for a debt financing.

The failure of a debt financing to comply with one or more provisions of this Debt Policy shall in
no way affect the validity of any debt issued by the District in accordance with applicable laws.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



Page 139 of 141

San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 5 Board of Directors Manual

SB 1029 Compliance

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

835.1 SB 1029 COMPLIANCE
SB 1029, signed by the Governor on September 12, 2016, and enacted as Chapter 307, Statutes
of 2016, requires issuers to adopt debt policies addressing each of the five items below:

. The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used. Section 4 (Acceptable Uses
of Debt Proceeds) addresses the purposes for which debt proceeds may be used.

. The types of debt that may be issued. Section 6 (Types of Debt) provides information
regarding the types of debt that may be issued.

. The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer's capital improvement
program or budget, if applicable. Section 7 (Relationship to Capital Improvement
Program and Operating Budget) provides information regarding the relationship
between the District's debt and Capital Improvement Program and annual Operating
Budget.

. Policy goals related to the issuer's planning goals and objectives. Section 3 (Debt
Policy Objective) and Section 8 (Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and
Objectives) address some of the District's policy goals and how this Debt Policy has
implemented them.

. The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement,
to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the
intended use. Section 9 (Internal Control Procedures) provides information regarding
the District's internal control procedures designed to ensure that the proceeds of its
debt issues are spent as intended.

This Debt Policy, as written, complies with and meets the requirements of SB 1029.

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District



San Miguel Fire & Rescue District

8 3 6 Board of Directors Manual

References

Effective Date: 07/12/2023

Revised Date: 07/12/2023

Issuing Authority:
SMFR

836.1 REFERENCES
The Following documents have been reviewed and used to guide this policy

Shayne C. Kavanaugh, Financial Policies, Third Edition, Copyright 2023 by the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada.

Mark H. Moore, Creating Public Value: Strategic Management in Government (Cambridge, MA:
Harvard University Press, 1997). Government Finance Officers Association GFOA Best Practices
at www.gfoa.org

California Special Districts Association CSDA, Special District Reserve Guidelines — A Guide to
Developing a Prudent Reserve, Second Edition at www.csda.net

California Society of Municipal Finance Officers CSMFO Resources and Budget Awards Program
www.csmfo.org

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2024/09/17, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by San Miguel Fire & Rescue
District

Page 140 of 141



SAN MIGUEL FIRE & RESCUE

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Final Budget
Acknowledgments

Fire Chief Lawler and Executive Staff want to give a shout-out!

The budget process would not be possible without the following individuals/groups:

“ San Miguel Firefighters Association Local 1434
“ Program/Committee Leads
“* Chief Officers Association
+» Administrative Analyst Diana DeRobertis
+» Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Shayna Rians
“* Accounting Specialist Laura Fernandez
**Human Resources Specialist Brittanie Jacobson
“* Fire Services Officer Arthur Camarena

Special Thank You to the Communities we proudly serve!

SERVICE BEYOND EXPECTATIONS

Page 141 0f141



ATTACHMENT B

Resolution 24-45

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Adopting the Final Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District, County
of San Diego (hereinafter referred to as “District”) is required to adopt a preliminary budget, on or
before July 1 of each year, as per Section 13890 of the Health and Safety Code; and

WHEREAS, the District, Finance Committee, Executive Staff, and Committee/Program Leads
have made recommendations and submitted the proposed preliminary budget for review and
adoption at a publicly noticed meeting; and

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was conducted September 25, 2024 at a regular meeting of the
Board of Directors; and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that there will be enough revenue and fund balance to
meet total expenditures for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 adequately.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District, a public agency in the County of San Diego, California, does
hereby adopt the final budget for the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 with a total expenditure requirement
of $28,876,520.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Final Budget is being adopted prior to October 1, 2024, in
accordance with California Government Code.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District this 25" day of September 2024, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

ATTEST

Shayna Rians, Board Clerk Jesse A. Robles, Board President



AGENDA ITEM 3.5

FACILITIES REPORT
DATE: September 25, 2024
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Tobin Riley, Division Chief

SUBJECT: Station 21 Retaining Wall Contract

BACKGROUND

Fire Station 21 was built in late 1950’s. A block wall on the west side of the station retains approximately two
to three feet of soil. This wall has been discussed in previous board meetings as a concern due to water
seeping through and into the workout room. The storms of January 2024 resulted in significant water getting
into the workout room, which required emergency mitigation and created a health hazard due to the portions
of the drywall becoming saturated.

On July 6, 2024, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was advertised in local publications and mailed to
contractors, with a submittal due date of 2 p.m. on August 6, 2024. This is in accordance with current
procurement policies and procedures. The RFP process required a mandatory pre-bid walk, which was held
at 10 a.m. on Tuesday, July 23, 2024, and attended by two potential bidders.

DISCUSSION

Two companies submitted bids by the due date:
Company BTS Unlimited Inc. DLG Contractors Inc.
Total Bid $67,862.00 $45,910.00

Board Clerk Rians and Consultant Tockstein conducted the opening of bid packets. Consultant Tockstein
thoroughly reviewed each packet, conducting reference checks and verifying the status of all contractors’
licensure. Both companies have performed contract work with the District with no outstanding concerns. Due
to the minor scope of the work, the District waived further inquiry.

FISCAL IMPACT
$45,910.00 from the Facilities Replacement/Renovation Fund.

ATTACHMENTS
o Attachment A - Resolution 24-30 ~ Station 21 Retaining Wall (Adopted 6/12/2024)
e Attachment B - Station 21 retaining wall contract with DLG Contractors, Inc.
o Exhibit A (General Requirements and Scope of Work)

**Please contact Board Clerk Rians if you would like to review all RFP response submissions™*

RECOMMENDATION
Award contract to the low bidder (DLG Contractors, Inc.), granting the Fire Chief or designee authority to
execute said contract.



ATTACHMENT A

Resolution 24-30

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District
Approving the Expenditure of Funds for Station 21 Retaining Wall Repair and
Granting the Fire Chief Authority to Enter into Request for Proposal Process

WHEREAS, the retaining wall on the west side of Station 21 has been identified as posing a
health and safety risk; and

WHEREAS, the existing wall will be fortified and repaired through a Request for Proposal
process; and

WHEREAS, the cost of wall repairs should not exceed $50,000, which has been accounted for
in the FY2024/2025 preliminary budget; and

WHEREAS, should the existing wall not be salvageable, an updated request and Resolution
shall be brought before the Board; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel
Consolidated Fire Protection District hereby approve the expenditure of funds, not to exceed
$50,000, for the repair of the west side retaining wall at Station 21.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District authorizes the Fire Chief or designee to enter into and execute the
necessary proposal process.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Consolidated Fire
Protection District on this 121" day of June 2024, by the following vote:

AYES: Directors McKenna, Muns, Nelson, Pierce, Raddatz, Robles and Woodruff
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

ATTEST

Shayna Riané{, Board C’)Ierk JessM/R%%les, Board President




ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN

THE SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

AND
DLG CONTRACTORS, INCORPORATED
FOR
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AT SAN MIGUEL FIRE STATION 21
(REPAIR WALL AGAINST GYM AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION)
RFP NUMBER 2425-02

This contract is made and entered into this 25" day of September 2024 by and between the San
Miguel Consolidated Fire Protection District (a public agency organized under the laws of the
State of California with its principal place of business at 2850 Via Orange Way, Spring Valley,
California 91978) (“District”); and DLG Contractors, Incorporated (a general contractor with its
principal place of business at 10911 Wheatlands Ave, Suite J, Santee, California 92071)
(“Contractor”). District and Contractor are sometimes individually referred to as “Party” and
collectively as “Parties” in this contract.

Recitals

A. WHEREAS, District is a California Special District duly organized and validly
existing under the laws of the State of California with the power to continue its business as it is
now being conducted under the statutes of the State of California; and

B. WHEREAS, Contractor is a general contractor determined by the District to be
qualified by experience and ability to render the desired construction services; and

C. WHEREAS, Request for Proposals Number 2425-02 with an expiration date of
August 6, 2024 (“RFP”), issued by District, solicited proposals for construction services at Fire
Station 21 (located at 10105 Vivera Drive, La Mesa, California 91941) (“Fire Station 21”)(located
under the “RFP” tab on the District’s website at “https://sanmiguelfire.org/completed-rfps”); and

D. WHEREAS, Contractor submitted a proposal in response to the RFP prepared
by District (“Proposal”); and

E. WHEREAS, District’s Board of Directors approved the selection and award of the
contract to Contractor on September 25, 2024, contingent upon performance and payment bond
stipulations; and

F. WHEREAS, the Parties desire to contract for specific services in connection with
the repair wall against the gym and drainage construction as required at Fire Station 21
(“Project”) as set forth in this contract.

Agreement

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference.

2. Services. In addition to Document Number 00500 (Scope of Work) of the RFP,
Contractor shall provide District with the services described in the “General Work Description”
and “General Requirements” (attached hereto as Exhibit A).

Page 1 of 4



3. RFP and Proposal Incorporation by Reference. The RFP and Proposal, including
any amendments or modifications thereto, are hereby incorporated into and made a part of this
contract by reference. The terms and conditions of the RFP and Proposal, including any exhibits
or attachments, shall govern the performance of work and the obligations of the Parties under
the contract to the extent they do not conflict with the terms of this contract. In the event of any
conflict between the terms of this contract and the RFP and Proposal, the terms of this contract
shall prevail.

a. RFP Documents. The following documents listed in the “Table of
Contents” section of the RFP are specifically highlighted and noted as being included in this
contract and are hereby incorporated in full by reference: Document Number 00500 (Contract),
Document Number 00700 (General Conditions), Document Number 00750 (Special Provisions),
and Document Number 00800 (Scope of Work).

b. Articles to RFP Document Number 00700 (“General Conditions”). The
following Articles listed in the General Conditions section of the RFP are specifically highlighted
and noted as being included in this contract, and are hereby incorporated in full by reference:

Article 2 (Contract Documents)

Article 6 (Project Schedule)

Article 14 (Subcontractors)

Article 29 (Prevailing Rates of Wages)

Article 30 (Labor Compliance)

Articles 34-39 (Insurance)

Article 40 (Time for Completion and Liquidated Damages)
Article 47 (Indemnification)

Article 48 (Personal Liability)

Article 50 (Resolution of Construction Claims)
Article 51 (District’s Right to Terminate Contract)
Article 52 (Warranty and Guarantee)

Article 54 (Required Certifications)

Article 64 (Laws and Regulations)

4. Time for Completion. The work shall commence within ten (10) days of the date
stated in District’'s Notice to Proceed (“NTP”) in accordance with Article 40 to the General
Conditions section of the RFP. The contractor shall complete all work required by the contract
not later than thirty (30) working days from the date stated in the NTP. By its signature
hereunder, Contractor agrees the time for completion set forth above is adequate and
reasonable to complete the work.

5. Amount of Compensation. As consideration for performance of the work required
herein, District agrees to pay Contractor the total contract price of forty-five thousand nine
hundred ten dollars ($45,910.00), provided that such amount shall be subject to adjustment
pursuant to the applicable terms of this contract or written change orders approved and signed
in advance by District. Additionally, Contractor shall provide 100% performance and payment
bond as requested in the RFP. Bonds shall be included in the total cost of the project.

Page 2 of 4



6. Liguidated Damages. Contractor shall pay District the sum of five hundred dollars
($500.00) for each and every calendar day of delay beyond the time prescribed in the contract
for finishing the work as liquidated damages in accordance with Article 40 to the General
Conditions section of the RFP. In the event this is not paid, Contractor agrees District may
deduct that amount from any money due or that may become due Contractor under the
contract. This provision does not exclude recovery of other damages specified in the contract.

7. Authority to Enter Contract. Each Party warrants that the individuals who have
signed this contract have the legal power, right, and authority to make this contract and bind
each respective Party.

8. Entire Contract; Modification. This contract contains the entire agreement of the
Parties with respect to the contract (and supersedes all prior negotiations, understandings, or
agreements). This contract may only be modified by a writing signed by both Parties.

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE]

Page 3 of 4



SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
AND
DLG CONTRACTORS, INCORPORATED
FOR
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AT SAN MIGUEL FIRE STATION 21
(REPAIR WALL AGAINST GYM AND DRAINAGE CONSTRUCTION)
RFP NUMBER 2425-02

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the 25" day of
September 2024.

SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED DLG CONTRACTORS, INCORPORATED
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT LICENSE #988588
By: By:

Andrew Lawler David Grant

Fire Chief Vice President

Page 4 of 4



EXHIBIT A

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS & SCOPE OF WORK
FOR RFP 2425-02

RETAINING WALL

SAN MIGUEL CONSOLIDATED FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
FIRE STATION 21

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Secure Water Meter as required

Provide Sanitary facilities

Provide material and waste disposal
o Provide evidence of waste disposal to certified land fill or site
o Adhere to all federal, state, and local requirements
o Clean site of all Construction materials

Provide photo documentation of waterproofing materials on wall.

SCOPE OF WORK

Excavate to bottom of wall and remove spoils

Clean block wall

Apply moisture sealer as required

Install 4” perforated pipe from wall to drainage point
Backfill with a minimum of two feet of rock

Place filter fabric as required

Construct drainage on outside of wall ass specified

Final grade to slope from both sides to center of open area

PAGE 1 OF 1



AGENDA ITEM 4.3

SMER

FIRE CHIEF REPORT

September 25, 2024

STAFF INVOLVEMENT

Attended Spring Valley Chamber of Commerce Member Recruiting Meeting.

Myself, Fire Prevention, Training, and LOGS 46 attended Calavo Park ribbon cutting event.
Attended “Growing Spring Valley” event.

Administrative/Finance Officer Harris and | presented at the FDAC Leadership Symposium in
Sacramento.

FAIRA meeting-Rate impacts

e Board Clerk Rians attended San Diego County Fire Chiefs Association — Admin Section training on
Mental Awareness and Self Care.

IMPORTANT LEGISLATION

SB 937- Passed the State Legislature and now awaits Governor Gavin Newsom'’s consideration for
signature of veto by September 30. CSDA has asked the Governor for a veto and encourages its
members to consider doing the same.

e SB937 Defined- SB 937 amends the Mitigation Fee Act, which governs the collection of
development related fees that pay for the costs to install infrastructure necessary to build new homes
and other developments in livable, equitable, and thriving communities. These fees pay for critical
services such as water, sewer, fire protection, parks and open space, flood protection, libraries, and
other essential community needs prohibit the collection of development related impact fees until the
completion of the development at final inspection or certificate of occupancy.

Request- Veto Letter to Governor Newsom. See CSDA letter attached

POLITICAL PARTNERSHIPS

e Executive staff and Directors Robles and Pierce met with Chairwoman Vargas- County impacts
discussion.
e Meeting set with Supervisor Joel Anderson- County impacts discussion.

8/6 National Night Out - E15 and B6 participated in a SDSO-lead event held at Skyline church. This
is an annual event based around community safety.

e 8/8 Station 22 dinner for Austin Thomas - This 12-year-old boy collected all of San Miguel Fire &
Rescue's trading cards. He was told he would be rewarded with a dinner at a fire station if all cards
were collected. 22B and | hosted a total of 3 for a spaghetti dinner and tour.

o 8/16 Fire Safety Presentation — Fire Marshal Newman provided a fire safety presentation for Mt.
Miguel Covenant Village residents.

o 8/24 Chelsea Park Circle community safety event - An event held by residents of Chelsea Park
Circle to highlight community safety within their housing development. E15 attended to provide
apparatus and personnel for show and tell.

e 5t Strategic Plan Meeting held; 6" scheduled for October 15%.
e Annual report process to begin.

e ERAF update

e Station 19 property search update




RPD

California
Association

LEAGUE OF

California Special CALIFORNIA
Districts Association CITIES

(C|SIDJA| Districts Stronger Together

of Recreation
and Park
Districts

September 04, 2024

The Honorable Gavin Newsom
Governor, State of California
1021 O St., Ste. 2000
Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: Senate Bill 937 (Wiener) Development projects: permits: fees and charges-
Request for VETO (As Amended August 22, 2024)

Dear Governor Newsom,

The California Special Districts Association (CSDA), California Association of
Recreation and Park Districts (CARPD) League of California Cities (Cal Cities),
and the California State Association of Counties (CSAC) respectfully oppose
Senate Bill 937 (Wiener)and request the measure be vetoed.

Collectively, we represent the thousands of local agencies that provide
Californians with essential local services such as fire protection, emergency
medical services, water, sanitation, flood protection, healthcare, recreation and
parks, and more.

SB 937 amends the Mitigation Fee Act, which governs the collection of
development related fees that pay for the costs to install infrastructure
necessary to build new homes and other developments in livable, equitable,
and thriving communities. These fees pay for critical services such as water,
sewer, fire protection, parks and open space, flood protection, libraries, and
other essential community needs. Specifically, these fees and the infrastructure
they fund make new housing and economic development possible.

SB 937 restricts the timely funding of vital infrastructure and services necessary to
build new homes and develop livable, equitable, and thriving communities. The
bill for certain developments, defer development related fees until the
certificate of occupancy or its equivalent, while drastically limiting exceptions to
this rule.

SB 937 generally locks in the value of those impact fees prior to the issuance of a
building permit and prohibits the charging of interest or indexing for inflation on



Local Government Coalition AB 937 (Wiener) — OPPOSE
Page 2 of 2

those deferred fees, undermining the buying power of local agencies.
Developers have 5 years to begin construction to benefit from the deferral.

The measure creates an exclusive list of allowable public projects to warrant
early fee payment and omits any other projects like parks, open space, or other
public facilities that communities may need to support and build in tandem with
housing development will be at risk. The drafting of this exclusive list also creates
new and conflicting standards for the collection of water and sewer connection
and capacity fees, placing them in an inappropriate code section, putting local
agencies and their ratepayers at risk of higher rates and liability.

One-size-fits all mandates, through financial and legal risk-shifting from private
developers to local agencies, and the communities, taxpayers, and ratepayers
they serve, endanger the timely and affordable delivery of essential
infrastructure and services that are required to build and maintain housing
developments.

For these reasons we respectfully urge you to veto SB 937. Please feel free to
contact us if you have any questions; Anthony Tannehill, CSDA:
anthonyt@csda.net, Brady Guertin, Cal Cities: bguertin@calcities.org, Alyssa Silhi,
CARPD: asilhi@publicpolicygroup.com, Mark Neuburger, CSAC:
mneuburger@counties.org.

Respectfully,

/?,/.:ZJ/ Py DT

Anthony Tannehill, Legislative Representative Brady Guertin, Legislative Affairs, Lobbyist
California Special Districts Association League of California Cities

/ // { /] Ao ¢
//&ﬂ-é’/4z/; (A o
i

Mark Neuburger, Legislative Advocate Alyssa Silhi, Legislative Representative
California State Association of Counties California Association of Recreation and
Parks Districts

CC: The Honorable Scott Wiener, Senate District 11
Mary Hernandez, Chief Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom



	0.0 Agenda 09-25-2024
	1.1 Minutes 08-14-2024
	1.2 Board Member Stipends
	1.2 - Administrative Report ~ Board Member Stipends
	McKenna - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Muns - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Nelson - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Pierce - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Raddatz - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Robles - August 2024
	Sheet1

	Woodruff - August 2024
	Sheet1


	2.2 San Miguel Fire & Rescue Quarterly Financial Update for the Period Ended 06.30.24
	June 2024  Overtime Costs.pdf
	Annual Recap


	3.1 3.2 CFD Annexation Ordinances
	3.1 3.2 Fire Prevention Report ~ Finalize CFD Annexation 5 and 6 via Ordinances 24-05 and 24-06
	3.1 A Ordinance 24-05 - CFD Annexation 5
	3.2 B Ordinance 24-06 - CFD Annexation 6

	3.3 Cradlepoint Equipment and NetCloud Service
	3.3 Division Chief Report - Cradlepoint
	3.3 Attachment A (CDCE Quote)
	3.3 B - Resolution 24-44 - Cradlepoint Equipment and Services

	3.4 - Fire Chief Report ~ FY24-25 Budget Adoption
	SMFR 2024-2025 Final Budget for Adoption Consideration.pdf
	Timeline 2024.pdf
	Slide 6



	3.5 Station 21 Retaining Wall Contract Award
	3.5 Facilities Report - Station 21 Wall Contract
	3.5 A RFP 2425-02 Resolution 24-30 ~ Station 21 Retaining Wall
	3.5 B RFP 2425-02 Sta 21 CONTRACT
	3.5 C RFP 2425-02 EXHIBIT A OF CONTRACT

	4.3 Fire Chief Report
	4.3 Fire Chief Report September 25 2024
	4.3 Chief Report Attachment




